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It can begin with one conversation. Just 
one initiative taken by anybody can start a 
revolutionary change. One person’s effort 
can influence another to act. When we 
took one small step, everyone joined in. 
And it was that one small step combined 
with those small steps by all of you that 
has led Bangladesh to leap ahead. Today 
we are moving towards a growing 
economy, building a greener tomorrow, 
discovering new ways of building the 
country together.

wbQK mvaviY wKQz K_vB n‡Z cv‡i A‡bK 

wKQzi ïi“| Kv‡iv †QvÆ GKUv D‡`¨vMB 

AbycÖvwYZ Ki‡Z cv‡i A‡bK‡K, NUv‡Z cv‡i 

‰ecweK cwieZ©b| Avgv‡`i ïi“¸‡jvI 

GgbB wQ‡jv| Avgv‡`i cÖwZUv ïi“B Ab¨‡`i 

Rb¨ wQj Aby‡cÖiYv| †mRb¨B Avgv‡`i 

cÖwZwU D‡`¨v‡M memgq †hvM n‡q‡Q Ab¨‡`i 

†Póv¸‡jvI| Avi Gfv‡eB mw¤§wjZ †Póvq 

Avgiv GwM‡q wbw”Q A_©bxwZ‡K, MowQ 

AvMvgxi meyR evsjv‡`k Avi †QvUeo GB 

mvdj¨¸‡jvi gv‡S cÖwZw`b Ly‡uR wbw”Q 

AvMvgxi c_Pjvi †cÖiYv| 

GKUv †QvÆ ïi“B NUv‡Z
cv‡i ˆecweK cwieZ©b!

Igniting revolutionary 
changes: one step at a time
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Grameenphone Ltd., the largest telecommunications service provider in Bangladesh, 

received its operating license in November 1996 and started its operation from March 

26, 1997, the Independence Day of Bangladesh.

Now, after 14 years of successful operations, Grameenphone is the largest mobile phone 

service provider in Bangladesh, with about 30 million subscribers as of December 2010. 

The Company was successfully listed on the stock exchanges in November 2009 – after 

completion of the largest IPO in the history of the Bangladesh capital market.

Grameenphone provides services to rural and urban customers across Bangladesh, 

where mobile telephony is acknowledged as a significant driver of socio-economic 

development, both for individuals and the nation.

This is Grameenphone
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Our Vision 
We exist to help our customers get the full benefit of communications services in their 

daily lives. We’re here to help.

Our Mission
Grameenphone is the only reliable means of communication that brings the people of 

Bangladesh close to their loved ones and important things in their lives through 

unparalleled network, relevant innovations & services. 

Our Values
MAKE IT EASY

Everything we produce should be easy to understand and use. We should always 

remember that we try to make customers’ lives easier. 

KEEP PROMISES

Everything we do should work perfectly. If it doesn’t, we’re there to put things right. 

We’re about delivery, not over-promising. We’re about actions, not words. 

BE INSPIRING

We‘re creative. We bring energy and imagination to our work. Everything we produce 

should look fresh and modern. 

BE RESPECTFUL

We acknowledge and respect local cultures. We want to be a part of local communities 

wherever we operate. We want to help customers with their specific needs in a way that 

suits way of their life best.

Our
Vision, Mission
& Values
“We are here to help”



The year 1997 was a special year for Bangladesh. It marked the beginning of Grameenphone's journey - the journey of binding 

each and every Bangladeshi with the invisible thread of "words." Grameenphone was like a messenger of the coming days by 

being the first to bring mobile phone service coverage from the distant small hilly villages to the great urban localities. And our 

call of prospect was answered, one by one, by the people, the villages and the nation. Together we advanced towards a path 

of possibilities.

1997 evsjv‡`‡ki Rb¨ wQ‡jv Ab¨iKg| GB eQiB kyi“ n‡qwQ‡jv MÖvgxY‡dv‡bi c_Pjv| ïi“ n‡qwQ‡jv †`‡ki cÖwZwU cÖv‡š—i me gvbyl‡K 

ÔK_vÕi A`„k¨ GK my‡Zvq †eu‡a †djv| evsjv‡`‡ki †ekxi fvM RvqMv‡Z MÖvgxY‡dvbB cÖ_g †cuŠ‡Q w`‡q‡Q †gvevBj †dvb †mev, cÖZ¨š— Rbc` 

†_‡K ïi“ K‡i †QvÆ cvnvwo MÖvg ch©š— wb‡q †M‡Q bZzb w`‡bi evZv©| Avi bZz‡bi GB Avnev‡b mvov w`‡q AMÖMwZi c‡_ G‡K G‡K GwM‡q 

†M‡Q gvbyl, MÖvg Avi Rbc`|
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Converted to a Public Limited Company;

Re-launched Business Solutions;

Launched New VAS, Bull Stock Information, Missed Call Alert & PayForMe Service;

Re-branded djuice;

Reached 16 Million Subscribers

2007

Introduced BlackBerry Service;

Commissioned Brand Positioning & launched Stay Close & Customer Care Campaign;

Reached 20 Million Subscribers

2008

Listed on Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. and Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.;

Reached 21 Million Subscribers

Reached 29.97 Million Subscribers

Launched Internet Modem, Special Olympic Regional Talent Hunt, Stay Green Campaign, 
Internet Package P5 & P6, Grameen Branded Handset & Studyline; 

2009

Launched New Tariff Plan, MobiCash Financial Service Brand, Ekota for SME, 
Baadhon Package, Mobile Application Development Contest & Network Campaign;

2010

Grameenphone Milestones

Commenced Operation on the Independence Day of Bangladesh1997

Launched Mobile to Mobile Service (without PSTN Access)1998

Launched First Prepaid Service in the Country1999

Launched WAP Service2001

Achieved BD Business Award for “Best Joint Venture Enterprise”2002

Launched Prepaid Product with PSTN Connectivity;

Reached 1 Million Subscribers

2003

Reached 2 Million Subscribers2004

Reached 4 Million Subscribers

2005 Launched Electronic Recharge System, Djuice Brand Targeting Youth Segment, EDGE & 
Voice SMS for the first time in Bangladesh; 

Reached 10 Million Subscribers

Introduced new GP Logo Following Maiden Decade of Operation;

2006 Launched HealthLine, Smile Prepaid & Xplore Postpaid, Cellbazaar, Business Solutions for 
Business Class & Community; 

Incorporated as a Private Limited Company1996
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Xplore

Business Solutions

Ekota

GP Public Phone

Shohoj

Aapon

Bondhu

Baadhon

djuice

Business Solutions

Ekota

GP Public Phone

Village Phone

Minipack Pay Per Use
(Max 20Tk./Day)

Pay As You Go (P1)

Unlimited Pack (P2)

Unlimited Night Pack (P3)

150 MB Daily Pack (P4)

3 GB Monthly Pack (P5)

1 GB Monthly Pack (P6)

15 MB Minipack (P7)

GSM

In-Flight

Maritime

EDGE/GPRS

International SMS

International MMS

Handset

Modem

Power Menu

StudyLine

Bill Pay

Web SMS

MobiCash

Call Block

Stock Info

Instant Messaging

SMS Chat

Music

Cricket Update

Namaz Alert

Downloads

Cellbazaar

Mobile Backup

HealthLine

E-Bill

Team Tracker

Missed Call Alert

Vehicle Tracking

Cricket Score

Namaz Timing

News

Welcome Tune

Messaging Mobile Ticketing

Prepaid Postpaid Internet Value Added
Services (VAS) Roaming Device
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In 2010, Grameenphone has performed phenomenally for which 
it has gained immense recognition and popular acclaim which 

has been highlighted by the following awards.

1 ICAB award for “Best Published Accounts & Reports 2009”
2 1st Runner up in SAFA award for “Best Presented Accounts and

Corporate Governance Disclosures Awards 2009”
3 Asia’s Best Brand Award by CMO Asia awards
4 Chairperson’s Appreciation Award (Jury Award) at e-Content and ICT Development Award
5 e-INDIA award for e-Governance/m-Governance Initiatives of the Year 2010
6 CEO Conclave Award 2010
7 Most effective Social Campaign Award, Commward 2010
8 Telenor Group Brand Award 2010
9 Telenor Group People Award 2010



An essential ingredient in the route to advancement and growth at an individual, organizational and national level is the 

internet. That is why Grameenphone Internet is working hard to ensure that every individual can access the World Wide Web. 

Since its inception, Grameenphone has made this medium of knowledge and possibilities accessible all over Bangladesh, even 

among the remotest of villages where Internet was completely unheard of.

e¨w³, cÖwZôvb I RvZxq chv©‡q AMÖMwZi Rb¨ B›Uvi‡bU GLb AZ¨š— Ri“ix GKwU AbymM©| †mRb¨B evsjv‡`‡ki cÖwZwU gvby‡li Kv‡Q 

B›Uvi‡bU †cŠu‡Q w`‡Z KvR K‡i hv‡”Q MÖvgxY‡dvb B›Uvi‡bU| c_Pjvi ïi“ †_‡KB Ávb Avi m¤¢vebvi me‡P‡q eo GB gva¨gwU‡K MÖvgxY‡dvb 

†cŠu‡Q w`‡q Avm‡Q Ggb me cÖZ¨š— cÖv‡š— †hLv‡b B›Uvi‡bU †mev †cŠuQvqwb Av‡M KL‡bvB| 



(Figures in BDT)

NAV- Net Asset Value;  NOCF- Net Operating Cash Flow

Revenue

Net Profit After Tax

Gross Profit

Operating Profit

Profit Before Tax

NOCF Per Share

NAV Per Share

Earnings Per Share

14.4%
growth

74.7 Bn

38.7 Bn

20.2Bn

20.9 Bn

10.7 Bn

23.16

35.57

7.93

20.2%
growth

-1.5%
growth

12.5%
growth

-28.5%
growth

-6.5%
growth

-4.2%
growth

-34.4%
growth
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Corporate Information

Company  Name
Grameenphone Ltd.

Company  Registration  No.
C-31531 (652)/96

Legal  Form
A public listed company with limited liability. Incorporated 
as private limited company on October 10, 1996 and 
subsequently converted to a public limited company on 
June 25, 2007. Listed on the Dhaka and Chittagong Stock 
Exchange Ltd. on November 11, 2009.

Board of Directors

Chairman
Sigve Brekke

Directors
Nurjahan Begum
Hilde Tonne
M. Shahjahan
Per Erik Hylland
Md. Ashraful Hassan
Knut Borgen
Snorre Corneliussen

Independent Director
Dr. Jamaluddin Ahmed FCA

Company Secretary
Hossain Sadat

Audit Committee
M. Shahjahan (Chairman)
Per Erik Hylland
Dr. Jamaluddin Ahmed FCA
Emadul Hannan (Secretary)

 

Treasury Committee
M. Shahjahan (Chairman)
Pal Stette
Raihan Shamsi
Imdadul Haque (Secretary)

Human Resources Committee
Per Erik Hylland (Chairman)
M. Shahjahan
Arnfinn Groven
Hossain Sadat (Secretary)

Health, Safety, Security
& Environment Committee
Per Erik Hylland (Chairman)
M. Shahjahan
Dr. Mohammad Shahnawaz 
Hossain Sadat (Secretary)

Management Team
Tore Johnsen, Chief Executive Officer
Raihan Shamsi, Deputy CEO  &  Chief Financial Officer 
Tanveer Mohammad, Chief Technology Officer
Arnfinn Groven, Chief People Officer
Kazi Monirul Kabir, Chief Communications Officer
Arild Kaale, Chief Marketing Officer
Mahmud Hossain, Chief Corporate Affairs Officer

Head of Internal Audit
Emadul Hannan

Statutory Auditors
Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisors
Hasan & Associates
Sheikh & Chowdhury

Registered Office
GPHouse
Bashundhara, Baridhara
Dhaka-1229, Bangladesh
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Marking another successful year, Grameenphone ended 2010 with 

29.97 million subscribers, up from 23.26 million in December 

2009.

Grameenphone has played a leading role in increasing the 

country’s tele-penetration rate in mobile industry from less than 

one percent in 1997 to over 40 percent as of 2010.

The Company committed to making modern mobile telephony 

and data services available to everyone, both in urban and rural 

areas, thereby making a positive contribution to the lives of the 

people of Bangladesh.

Grameenphone earned BDT 7,473 crore revenues for the year 

2010 with a 14.4% increase from 2009. The growth was mainly 

from voice as well as interconnection revenues driven by 

subscription growth and revenues from sales of mobile devices. 

Data revenue has also contributed to this strong revenue growth 

for the year 2010 going up by 64.0% from 2009.

Grameenphone has been able to maintain its leadership 

position in the industry by both continuing to deliver innovative 

and relevant products and services to its customers, and by 

providing a quality network with the widest coverage.

The Company has so far invested BDT 15,796 crore to build the 

network infrastructures since its operation on March 26, 1997. 

BDT 846 crore was invested during 2010 alone. Grameenphone 

has built the largest cellular network in the country, covering 99 

percent of the population and over 89 percent of land areas.

The entire GP network is EDGE/GPRS enabled, allowing its 

customers access to high-speed Internet services from 

anywhere within its network. Presently, more than 2.6 million 

GP subscribers are using the EDGE/GPRS services to access the 

Internet through mobile phones. By far, more people are 

accessing the Internet through mobile phones than through 

any other means, which indicates the future trend.

One of the biggest highlights for 2010 has been the announcement 

of the four price packages – Shohoj, Aapon, Bondhu, along with 

djuice – developed for pre-paid subscribers and with an offer of  

interchangeability and easy migration facilities.

This was the largest and most comprehensive tariff offer for 

Grameenphone subscribers since its inception.

Another big offer was a new package named Baadhon, designed 

to serve the rural population of Bangladesh. This package 

contains a “Grameenphone C100” handset and a Grameenphone 

prepaid connection. 

The “Grameenphone C100” handset is also very suitable for rural 

areas. It has a user friendly interface, a built-in torch light, long 

lasting battery and both Bangla and English menu. It also has an 

extended warranty period of 16 months.

Grameenphone has also introduced a full-fledged and innovative 

telecom solution - Ekota. This package was especially designed to 

meet the business needs of small organizations. Simplicity and 

innovativeness are the unique features of the product.  Business 

relevant tariff has been introduced to ensure greater convenience 

for business communication. 

Subscribers of this business package can get instant help from any 

of our marked customer service points available countrywide, 

along with Grameenphone Centers across the country. Ekota 

subscribers enjoy prioritized customer service while dialing 121.

As a company that provides its subscribers with solutions to 

make life easier, Grameenphone became the first company in 

Bangladesh to launch mobile ticketing system for train tickets 

through its MobiCash  service.

The electronic ticketing service was launched by Grameenphone 

with data support from Bangladesh Railway and CNS, the authorized 

ticketing partner of the Bangladesh Railway. Using the MobiCash 

service, a traveller can purchase electronic railway tickets at anytime 

and from anywhere from his/her mobile phone and avoid the hassle 

of travelling to the station during working hours or standing in queue 

for long.

Apart from train tickets, different lottery tickets have also been 

made available through MobiCash service.

In another business development, Grameenphone signed 

agreements with different mobile phone operators to share its  

infrastructures. Leading mobile operators Orascom Telecom  

Bangladesh Ltd.(Banglalink), Axiata (Bangladesh) Ltd.(Robi) 

and Airtel Bangladesh Ltd. (formerly known as Warid) are among 

the major signatories. WiMax operators, Augere and Banglalion 

also opted for Grameenphone’s infrastructures to expand their 

services around the country. 

Infrastructure sharing agreements, done in compliance with the 

guidelines issued by BTRC, enabled all parties to optimize their 

resource utilization and minimize cost of network deployment as 

well as of operations and maintenance. As a result, it would  

ensure sustainable utilization of national resources and reduce 

deployment of unnecessary infrastructural facilities in  future.  

In 2010 Grameenphone strengthened its environment friendly 

position by signing agreements to bring renewable energy to its 
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140 base stations. The company signed three power purchase 

agreements with renewable energy producers. The suppliers will 

install solar panels on Grameenphone’s Base Transceiver Station 

(BTS) premises and maintain them. Grameenphone will be 

buying electricity on unit (Kwh) consumption basis for a contract 

period of 10 years with a buy back option after that period. 

Grameenphone's environmental roadmap aim to promote a 

low-carbon society, and its first priority is to take responsibility for 

the excessive CO2 emissions generated by its own operations. 

Grameenphone has set a target of reducing 30% of its emission 

within 2015 from the business as usual situation considering 

2008 as the baseline. In this regard, deploying solar power 

system in large scale will definitely help achieve that target.

Grameenphone shifted its corporate head office to its own 

building named GPHouse, situated at Bashundhara, Baridhara, 

Dhaka-1229. GPHouse is an embodiment of Grameenphone’s 

corporate identity, its values and culture.

GPHouse is a unique building – an environment friendly, and at the 

same time, very cost efficient office. Incorporating a new way of work, 

environmentally responsible work practices and technologies, this 

truly sustainable architecture and contemporary art hub has 

translated our corporate identity into a different level. It represents 

Bangladesh into global context with the nation’s pride, values, 

heritage and growth. 

Last year Grameenphone undertook two interesting competitions, 

one was a Mobile Application Development Contest titled 

“Aloashbei” and another was a Jersey Design competition named 

“Jersey Utshob.” 

Aloashbei was arranged in association with Microsoft to hunt for 

mobile application developers in Bangladesh. On the other 

hand,  Bangladesh Cricket Board was the partner in Jersey 

Utshob, which was arranged to get the best design for the jersey 

of the National Cricket Team.

Both contests received a huge response from the public and the 

media.

Another two patriotic campaigns by Grameenphone caught 

the attention of people around the country. One was arranged 

to observe the Language Martyrs’ Day on February 21, 2010. 

The programme titled “Duniya Kapano Tirish Minute” was 

orchestrated under the historical Amtala in front of the Dhaka 

Medical College Hospital (DMCH) emergency gate. It was a 

dramatization of the events of the fateful thirty minutes from 

1952 when the Pakistani police opened fire on a band of 

unarmed student protesters who had defied Section 144 to 

raise support for their rights to speak their mother language. 

Eminent soldiers of the language movement along with 

thousands of people, young and old, congregated in front of the 

DMCH emergency gate to witness the history being retold.

Another programme titled “Amar Desh Amar Gorbo” was held to 

celebrate Victory Day on December 16, 2010. Freedom fighters, 

Grameenphone employees and thousands of general people 

sang the National Anthem with eminent singers of the country in 

the programme held at the south plaza of National Parliament.

Both programmes were broadcast live by major television 

channels. 
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Grameenphone IT is a new initiative created with the purpose of making developments in the field of information technology in 

Bangladesh. Taking on board some of the most talented computer engineers and graduates of the country, software and IT services 

are now being exported all around the globe. By using these advancements in information technology, Grameenphone IT is going to 

march forward, taking Bangladesh to new heights.

Z_¨cÖhyw³-‡Z evsjv‡`‡ki m¤¢vebv¸‡jv‡K mvd‡j¨ cv‡ë w`‡Z MÖvgxY‡dvb wb‡q G‡m‡Q MÖvgxY‡dvb AvBwU| B‡Zvg‡a¨B G‡Z †hvM w`‡q‡Q 

A‡bK cÖwZfvevb Kw¤úDUvi BwÄwbqvi I MÖ¨vRy‡qU| mdUIq¨vi I AvBwU †mev ißvbx n‡”Q c„w_exi wewfbœ †`‡k| Gfv‡eB Z_¨cÖhyw³i 

m¤¢vebv¸‡jv‡K Kv‡R jvwM‡q mvg‡bi w`b¸‡jv‡Z Av‡iv GwM‡q hv‡e MÖvgxY‡dvb AvBwU Avi †mBmv‡_ GwM‡q hv‡e evsjv‡`k|



General Public &
other Institutions

(10.00%)

Telenor Mobile
Communications AS

(55.80%)

Grameen
Telecom

(34.20%)

The Shareholders
The shareholding structure comprises mainly two sponsor Shareholders namely Telenor Mobile Communications AS (55.80%) 

and Grameen Telecom (34.20%). The rest 10.00% shareholding includes General public & other Institutions.

Telenor Mobile Communications AS (TMC)

TMC, a company organized under the laws of the Kingdom of Norway, seeks to develop and invest in telecommunications 

solutions through direct and indirect ownership of companies and to enter into national and international alliances relating to 

telecommunications. It is a subsidiary of Telenor Mobile Holdings AS and an affiliate of Telenor. Telenor ASA is the leading 

Telecommunications company of Norway listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange. It owns 55.80% shares of Grameenphone Ltd.
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Telenor's strong international expansion in recent years has been based on leading-edge expertise, acquired in the Norwegian 

and Nordic markets, which are among the most highly developed technology markets in the world. It has substantial international 

operations in mobile telephony, satellite operations and pay television services. In addition to Norway and Bangladesh, Telenor 

owns mobile telephony companies in Sweden, Denmark, Hungary, Serbia, Montenegro, Thailand, Malaysia, Pakistan and India. 

Including its 39.6% ownership stake in VimpelCom, Telenor has more than 200 million mobile subscriptions worldwide as of 

December 31, 2010.

Telenor uses the expertise it has gained in its home and international markets for the development of emerging markets like 

Bangladesh.

As part of the conversion of Grameenphone from a private limited to a public limited company, Telenor Mobile Communications 

AS transferred 10 shares each on May 31, 2007 to its three (3) affiliate organizations namely Nye Telenor Mobile Communications 

II AS, Norway; Telenor Asia Pte. Ltd., Singapore; and Nye Telenor Mobile Communications III AS, Norway.

Grameen Telecom (GTC)

Grameen Telecom, which owns 34.20% of the shares of Grameenphone, is a not-for-profit company in Bangladesh, working in 

close collaboration with Grameen Bank, winner of the Nobel Peace Prize in 2006 along with its founder Professor Muhammad 

Yunus. The internationally reputed bank for the poor has the most extensive rural banking network and expertise in microfinance. 

It understands the economic needs of the rural population, in particular the women from the poorest households.

GTC’s mandate is to provide easy access to GSM cellular services in rural Bangladesh and creating new opportunities for income 

generation through self- employment by providing villagers, mostly the poor rural women, with access to modern information 

and communication-based technologies.

GTC is the authorized service provider of Nokia Care network, providing after sales services to the Nokia customers.

With the help of Grameen Bank, Grameen Telecom, with its field network, administers the Village Phone Program, through which 

Grameenphone provides its services to the fast growing rural customers. Grameen Telecom trains the operators, supplies them 

with handsets and handles all service-related issues.

GTC has been acclaimed for the innovative Village Phone Program. GTC and its chairman Nobel Peace Prize laureate Professor 

Muhammad Yunus have received several awards which include: First ITU World Information Society Award in 2005; Petersburg 

Prize for Use of the IT to Improve Poor People’s Lives” in 2004; GSM Association Award for “GSM in Community Service” in 2000.

As part of the conversion of Grameenphone from a private limited to a public limited company, Grameen  Telecom transferred 

one share each on May 31, 2007 to its two affiliate organizations namely Grameen Kalyan and Grameen Shakti.
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Top Twenty Shareholders as on December 31, 2010

Sl.            Name of Shareholders               Number of Ordinary Shares held Percentage

1 Telenor Mobile Communications AS 753,407,724 55.80%

2 Grameen Telecom 461,766,409 34.20%

3 Grameen Bank Borrower’s Investment Trust 11,037,221 0.82%

4 AB Investment Limited - IDA                                    10,004,800 0.74%

5 IDLC  Finance Ltd. Portfolio A/C  6,277,400 0.46%

6 IFIC Bank Limited  3,684,900 0.27%

7 United Commercial Bank Ltd. 2,096,700 0.16%

8 Prime Bank Ltd. – Investors‘ A/C 1 1,932,302 0.14%

9 LankaBangla Finance Ltd. - IP A/C 1,686,225 0.12%

10 Grameen One: Scheme Two 1,549,000 0.11%

11 Rupali Bank Ltd. 1,283,800 0.10%

12 Delta Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 1,111,200 0.08%

13 Union Capital Ltd. – Investors’ A/C 1,043,651 0.08%

14 Prime Finance & Investment Ltd. - Portfolio A/C  989,653 0.07%

15 The City Bank Ltd. 975,600 0.07%

16 The Trust Bank Ltd. - IDA 973,854  0.07%

17 Grameen Capital Management Ltd. Investors’ A/C 949,100 0.07%

18 ICB Unit Fund 826,200 0.06%

19 Trust Bank 1st Mutual Fund 665,200 0.05%

20 Sonali Bank Ltd. 629,800 0.05%

 Total 1,262,890,739 93.52%

(as per CDBL records)
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Organogram & Management

* Not a member of the Management Team 

** Deputy CEO has a special role on Stakeholder Relation of the Company. Stakeholder Relation team of Corporate Affairs has a dotted reporting to Deputy CEO. 

Board of Directors
Board  

Audit Committee 

Tore Johnsen
Chief Executive 

Officer

Emadul Hannan* 
Internal Audit 

Raihan Shamsi 
Deputy CEO 

**Ishtiaq Hussen 
Chowdhury* 
Stakeholder 

Relation 

Hossain Sadat*
Company Secretary  

Tanveer Mohammad
Chief Technology 

Officer 

Arild Kaale  
Chief Marketing 

Officer 

Kazi Monirul Kabir  
Chief 

Communications 
Officer 

Raihan Shamsi  
Chief Financial 

Officer 

Arnfinn Groven 
Chief People

Officer

Mahmud Hossain  
Chief 

Corporate Affairs 
Officer 

Delwar  Hossain 
Azad* 

Financial Services 

Mustaque Ahmed* 
Strategy 

Serajus Saleheen* 
Wholesale Business 

Arne Viggo 
Aronsen* 
Sourcing 
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Directors’ Profile

Mr. Sigve Brekke was appointed to the Board on September 1, 2008, and is also the Chairman 

of Grameenphone Board. Mr. Brekke has held a number of positions of the Telenor Group. He 

joined Telenor Asia PTE Ltd. in 1999 as Manager of Business Development, and later became 

Managing Director. He served as the Co-CEO of Total Access Communication PLC (“DTAC”) from 

2002 to 2005, was the sole CEO and Director from 2006 to 2008 and was elected as the Vice 

Chairman of DTAC Board in 2008. In July 2008, he was appointed as Director and Executive 

Vice President of Telenor Group, Head of Asia Region, Telenor. In 2009, Mr. Brekke was elected  

as Director of Unitech Wireless and the Chairman of DiGi Board. In July 2010, he was appointed 

as the Managing Director of Uninor. Prior to joining Telenor, Mr. Brekke served as the Deputy 

Minister (State Secretary) of Defence in Norway in 1993 and was also an associate research 

fellow at the John F. Kennedy School of Government, Harvard University. Mr. Brekke holds a 

Master of Public Administration from John F. Kennedy School of Government, Harvard 

University.

Ms. Hilde Tonne was appointed to the Board on January 20, 2010. She currently serves as the 

Executive Vice President and Deputy Head of Asia Region, Telenor Group. Ms. Tonne came to 

Telenor in 2007 from Norsk Hydro, where she was Head of Technology & Research in Hydro Oil 

& Energy. During the years from 1991 to 1999, Ms. Tonne held various positions in Saga 

Petroleum. From 2000 to 2007, she served in several managerial positions in Hydro. Ms. Tonne 

serves on the Board of Directors in Total Access Communication PLC, Telenor Pakistan Ltd. and 

Det Norske Veritas AS. She obtained a Master of Science in Petroleum Technology from the 

Norwegian Institute of Technology in Trondheim, Norway and RWTH Aachen in Germany.

Hilde Tonne

Sigve Brekke

Ms. Nurjahan Begum was appointed to the Board on January 20, 2010. She is currently serving 

as Deputy Managing Director of Grameen Bank, and also as an honorary Managing Director of 

Grameen Shikkha (Education), a non-profit organization in the Grameen family. She was one of 

the earliest associates of Professor Muhammad Yunus when the latter started the Grameen 

Bank Project in 1976 in the village of Jobra in Chittagong district of Bangladesh. Ms. Nurjahan, 

who was a student of Chittagong University, played an important role in organizing poor rural 

women in Grameen Bank’s grassroots groups during the bank’s earliest and most challenging 

days. She was the first ‘Principal’ of the Grameen Bank Training Institute. She served as 

consultant, trainer and evaluator of microcredit programmes in many countries and lectured at 

different universities, conferences and seminars in different countries. She is also serving on 

the Board of several organizations including Grameen Foundation, USA. She was awarded the 

Susan M. Davis Lifetime Achievement Award 2008 by Grameen Foundation. She was also 

awarded World Summit Millennium Development Goals Award 2009 and the Vision Award 

2009. She participated in the Fortune Most Powerful Women Summit held in Los Angeles in 

2007 and was appointed president to the Foundation for Justice Prize giving ceremony held in 

Valencia, Spain in 2007. 

Nurjahan Begum



Directors’ Profile

Mr. Per Erik Hylland was appointed to the Board on June 25, 2007 and is also Chairman of the 

Company’s Human Resources Committee and Health, Safety, Security & Environment 

Committee. He is Senior Vice President in Telenor Asia and serves as Country Manager in 

Bangladesh. Mr. Hylland has professional experiences in the banking, information technology 

and telecommunications industries. He joined Telenor in 1994 and since then has held several 

senior management positions. During the past eleven years, he has worked in ten countries as 

a Telenor representative for Central and Eastern Europe, North Africa and Asia. During the same 

period, Mr. Hylland acted as a Director for Telenor companies in Austria, the Czech Republic, 

Hungary and Slovakia. He is an information technology engineer educated in the Norwegian 

Ministry of Defence.

Mr. M. Shahjahan was appointed to the Board on June 26, 2006 and is also Chairman of the 

Company’s Treasury Committee and Board Audit Committee. He currently serves as the General 

Manager and Head of the Accounts, Finance, Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation Division of 

Grameen Bank. Prior to joining the Company, he served in several executive management 

positions in Grameen Bank, including Chief of the Audit Department and Zonal Manager. Mr. 

Shahjahan is a member of the Board of Directors of several Grameen peer companies that work 

in the fields of health, education, agriculture, welfare, renewable energy, telecommunications, 

venture capital financing and merchant banking. He obtained, from the University of Dhaka, a 

Bachelor of Commerce (Honours) in Accounting in 1976, as well as a Master degree in 

Accounting in 1977 and a Master degree in Finance in 1981. He was awarded ICAB Medal (Silver) 

for passing the ‘C.A Intermediate’ examination at the earliest eligible chance in 1981.

M. Shahjahan

Mr. Md. Ashraful Hassan was appointed to the Board on January 20, 2010. He currently serves 

as Managing Director of Grameen Telecom, engaged in promoting and providing easy access 

to GSM cellular services in rural Bangladesh. He also serves as Managing Director of Grameen 

Knitwear Ltd., Grameen Distribution Ltd. and Grameen Fabrics & Fashions Ltd. He gained 

diversified knowledge in textile sector especially in the field of composite knit wear having 

wide exposure in the industrial management, export market, labour management and so on. 

Mr. Hassan also acquired wide range of experience for project development and different 

kinds of industry setup. He started his career in Grameen Bank, the Nobel Peace Prize winning 

organization, in 1984. During his 15-year tenure with the Bank, he held various key positions 

including the Chief of Engineering section. He has gained extensive knowledge in the field of 

construction engineering and extended notable contribution for the infrastructural 

development of Grameen Bank. He serves as a member of the Board of Directors of several 

enterprises of Grameen family that play commendable role in the fields of renewable energy, 

health care, food & nutrition, information and communication technology and so forth. He 

holds Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering from Khulna University of Engineering and 

Technology, Bangladesh. 

Md. Ashraful Hassan

Per Erik Hylland
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Mr. Knut Borgen was appointed to the Board on January 20, 2010. He currently serves as Senior 

Vice President - Business Development, Telenor Asia (ROH). Mr. Borgen has professional 

experiences in banking and telecommunications industries. He joined Telenor in 1997. He has 

been working in the Asian region since 2001. He is currently a member of the Board of Directors 

of Total Access Communications (Thailand). He obtained B.A. in Economics from San Jose State 

University in 1984 and Master of Business Administration from University of Michigan in 1987.

Knut Borgen

Dr. Jamaluddin Ahmed FCA was appointed to the Board on March 19, 2010 as an Independent 

Director. Dr. Jamal is a Partner at Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co., Chartered Accountants, which is 

the associate firm of Deloitte & Touche in Bangladesh. Dr Jamal was the President (2010) of the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). He is engaged in assignments in 

Financial, Banking and Energy Sector industries. He worked as country specialist in Migrant 

Remittance Management. He was involved in DFID funded Cheque Automation, Automated 

Clearing System and in the development of National Payment System in Bangladesh. Currently, 

he is involved with Bangladesh Energy Regulatory Commission for introducing Uniform Energy 

Accounting in Bangladesh. Over his professional career, Dr. Jamal has written copious 

publications and conducted numerous research papers on various aspects. Recently, Dr. Jamal 

completed his research paper on mobile banking for speedy remittance to rural Bangladesh, 

Cost and Pricing of Remittance - A Comparative Study. Moreover, he conducted a study in 2008 

on mobile banking in Afghanistan for the Micro Finance Transaction funded by the USAID. He 

holds Master degree in Accounting from Dhaka University, PhD from the Cardiff Business 

School, under the University of Wales United Kingdom, and is also a fellow of the ICAB.

Dr. Jamaluddin Ahmed FCA

Mr. Snorre Corneliussen was appointed to the Board on March 23, 2009. In January 2009, he 

joined the Telenor Asia office as a director. Previously, he was serving as Senior Advisor at the 

Telenor Global Coordination in Norway. Mr. Corneliussen started in Telenor in 2003 as 

Operations Manager responsible for the operations of the fixed, mobile and data networks in 

Norway, Sweden and Denmark. Before he began working for Telenor, Mr. Corneliussen held 

several positions in Ericsson. He started working as a researcher in 1997 and then became a 

project leader and led several of the early 3G and IP related development projects. In 2000, 

Mr. Corneliussen became a Product Manager before he moved to Sweden in 2001 and worked 

as project office manager at the Ericsson head office in Stockholm. He is currently a Board 

member at DTAC in Thailand and Telenor in Pakistan. Mr. Corneliussen holds a Master of 

Business Administration degree from the Norwegian School of Economics and Business 

Administration (NHH). He also holds a Master of Science degree in telecommunication from 

the Norwegian School of Technology (NTH) and he has additional education in Social Economy 

from the University in Oslo (UiO). Mr. Corneliussen has also studied leadership development at 

Harvard Business School and is an HBS Alumni.

Snorre Corneliussen



Raihan Shamsi
Deputy CEO & CFO

Tore Johnsen
CEO

Kazi Monirul Kabir
CCO

Tanveer Mohammad
CTO
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Arnfinn Groven
CPO

Mahmud Hossain
CCAO

Arild Kaale
CMO



Mr. Raihan Shamsi was appointed as our Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO), effective from March 9, 2010. He served as Company Secretary from 2005 to late 2010. He was 
previously our Chief Corporate Affairs Officer and, before that, Director of Financial Management and 
Head of Internal Audit. Prior to joining us in late 2001, he worked in a number of multinational 
organizations, including Shell, Unilever and KPMG Bangladesh. He is a Chartered Accountant in 
profession and has been working in financial management and internal control functions for around 
thirteen years.

Arild Kaale
CMO

Arnfinn Groven
CPO

Tore Johnsen
CEO

Mr. Arnfinn Groven was appointed as our Chief People Officer (CPO), effective from January 19, 2009. 
He was previously Director of Customer Services. He joined us as Senior Advisor in the Customer 
Management Division in August 2007. He started his career in 1984 at the Work Research Institute in 
Oslo as a Scientific Assistant. For the next 12 years, he developed his expertise in human resource 
management and career counseling in different reputable organizations in Norway. In 1996, he joined 
the Telenor Consumer Customer Service. In 2000, he became the Operational Director of Telenor 
Customer Service in Oslo. He is currently on secondment from Telenor. He holds a degree in 
Psychology from the University of Oslo and an executive degree on the Telenor International 
Management Program from the Stockholm School of Economics.

Mr. Tore Johnsen was appointed as our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) effective from March 01, 2011. 
Before joining Grameenphone, he was CEO of the Thai mobile operator, DTAC. Previously he has also 
held positions as CEO of Telenor Pakistan and CEO of DiGi in Malaysia. He joined the Telenor Group in 
1974, and he has held a number of managerial positions and international assignments. He holds a 
Master of Science in addition to studies in International Business Management.

Raihan Shamsi
Deputy CEO & CFO

Mr. Arild Kaale was appointed as our Chief Marketing Officer (CMO), effective from September 10, 
2009. Before joining Grameenphone, he was Chief Marketing Officer in Telenor Promonte, the 
number one operator in Montenegro. While with Telenor and Promonte, he has been a part of the 
Board of Directors of Penetrace in Norway. After serving three years as a second lieutenant in the 
Norwegian Armed Forces, He started his career as Managing Director in Lasbuakonsernet in 1995. 
He joined Scandinavian Airlines System in 1997, working both in Sweden and in the US with Star 
Alliance related activities. In 1998 he was appointed Marketing Director for the Swedish market. 
Before joining Telenor Zonavi as Commercial Director, he served in Office 24-7 AS in the capacity of 
Nordic Marketing Director. In 2003, Arild joined Telenor Business Norway as Head of Marketing with 
responsibilities of marketing/CRM activities, segment management, analysis and training. He has 
also been responsible for third party distribution within the business segment in Norway. He holds a 
Master of Business and Economics from Bedriftsokonomisk Institute in Oslo and Indiana University 
in the US.
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Mr. Mahmud Hossain was appointed as our Chief Corporate Affairs Officer (CCAO), effective from March 
08, 2010. Immediately prior to taking on this role, he was serving as General Manager, Regulatory 
Affairs of Corporate Affairs – a position he has held since August 2009. He started his career as a 
telecom professional since the beginning of the liberalization of the industry in Bangladesh in 1990. 
He joined the Technical team of Hutchison BD Telecom (presently CityCell) after his completion of 
Bachelor degree in Electrical & Electronic Engineering from the Bangladesh University of Engineering 
& Technology (BUET). Later he did his MBA (major in Finance) from IBA, University of Dhaka, and his 
Masters (Telecom) from Concordia University, Canada. He had earlier worked for Grameenphone as 
Additional General Manager in Network Operations for a brief period in 2000-2001.

Tanveer Mohammad
CTO

Kazi Monirul Kabir
CCO

Mahmud Hossain
CCAO

Mr. Kazi Monirul Kabir was appointed as our Chief Communications Officer (CCO), effective from 
September 01, 2009. He has been a part of Grameenphone since April 2008 when he joined as the 
Head of Regional Sales to lead the largest team in Grameenphone. He moved to Communications 
Division as Head of Market Communication before being appointed as the Chief Communications 
Officer. He has extensive experience spanning over 11 years in the corporate world. He started his career 
at British American Tobacco Bangladesh where he received numerous accolades for his role in Trade 
Marketing & Distribution, Brand Communication and Change Management at company level. He was 
the architect of the Direct Sales team of Banglalink GSM that was pivotal in achieving wide reach and 
sales volumes that the initiatives generated. He has also held an Executive Director position at one of 
the leading media agencies in the country. Prior to his corporate life, he had completed his Bachelor of 
Business Administration from School of Management & Business Administration of Khulna University.

Mr. Tanveer Mohammad was appointed as our Chief Technology Officer (CTO), effective from July 1, 
2010. He was serving as Deputy CTO prior to his appointment as CTO. He has been working with 
Grameenphone since 1997. In this long journey with Grameenphone, he has worked with Roll Out, 
Operation and overall network responsibilities. He has played pivotal roles in developing local 
entrepreneurs in civil works, tower fabrication, installation and commissioning, ensuring speed and 
efficiency for the coverage and capacity expansion of the network. He has also contributed towards 
creating the efficiency focus in the operational activities with upholding the network leadership, 
through aggressive service level agreements, high customer focus, steep cost efficiency targets and 
strengthening operational teams. Before joining Grameenphone, he worked with Hyundai Engineering 
and Construction. He has a graduation in engineering from Bangladesh University of Engineering and 
Technology (BUET). He has also taken part in several Telenor Leadership Development Programs.
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Sigve Brekke
Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

Grameenphone passed another successful year as a result of the dedicated efforts of its highly skilled employees and support 

of the shareholders. Since the IPO was floated in 2009, our new shareholders have also shown their trust in us by staying with 

the Company in a large number. The share price remained stable even with the occasional instability in the market. 

The Company has seen gradual increase in revenue but due to higher subscriber acquisition cost, EBITDA margin was lower 

compared to 2009. The higher subscriber acquisition cost was mainly driven by high SIM tax, which has remained as the 

biggest barrier to the growth of mobile telephone industry in Bangladesh.

Nonetheless, at the end of 2010, the number of subscribers has reached near 30 million, which translates to around 44% of 

market share.

To provide quality products and services to this huge number of subscribers, your company will continue to invest in Bangladesh. 

Since its inception, the Company has invested BDT 15,796 crore to make an infrastructure spread around the country. It has 

invested BDT 846 crore alone in 2010.

As a responsibale corporate house in Bangladesh, in 2010 Grameenphone has paid to Bangladesh Government BDT 3,344 

crore as direct taxes, VAT and duties, and in fees paid to the Bangladesh Telecommunication Regulatory Commission (BTRC). 

Additionally, Grameenphone paid another BDT 371 crore through commercial agreements with the Bangladesh Railway (BR), 

Bangladesh Telecommunications Company Limited (BTCL) and withholding Taxes.

Happily, the Grameenphone network presently covers almost the entire population with more than 13,000 base stations 

located in about 7,200 sites in operation around the country. The network is also fully EDGE/GPRS enabled, allowing the 

customers to access high-speed internet from anywhere within its coverage area.

In 2010, your company has formed a subsidiary company named Grameenphone IT Ltd., which is an international B2B 

company with a profit balance and stable corporate clienteles right from day one.

During the year, infrastructure sharing has become a steady revenue source. All major mobile operators and WiMax operators 

signed agreements with Grameenphone to share our resources. This practice has enabled all parties to optimize their resource 

utilization and minimize cost of network deployment as well as of operations and maintenance.

Some developments in regulatory arena were somewhat unsettling for the telecom sector. The amendment to Telecom Act 

2001 introduced some nontransparent regulations and abnormally high fines, which are not conducive for further investment. 

The license renewal guidelines drafted by BTRC also raised serious concern among the operators. 

I hope that the government will do everything to maintain a level playing field and an investment friendly environment. Mobile 

phone technology is the main instrument for implementing the vision of Digital Bangladesh. Any barrier to the growth and 

business continuity of this industry will be detrimental to the timely implementation of Digital Bangladesh.  

At the end, I would like to thank you, our valued shareholders for your support which is helping this company to remain an 

innovative and dynamic organization.
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Dear Shareholders,

The year 2010 was a great year for Grameenphone. Although the competition was intense, we have managed to retain our 

position as the market leader with a considerable margin. Last year was a good year for your Company – both in terms of 

revenue growth, and maintenance of a high market share – as the number one operator in Bangladesh.

Looking back, I am pleased to report that our revenue went up by 14.4% - to about BDT 7,473 crore in 2010, compared to 2009. 

However, higher selling and distribution expenses, mainly SIM tax subsidies pushed the EBITDA margins down to 49.5% - in 

2010 compared to 57.0% - in 2009.

At the end of 2010, we were just short of the 30 million subscriber mark, which gives us a market share of around 44%. Although 

we have added 6.7 million subscribers in 2010, that came at a price of higher subsidy paid for the high SIM tax.  This is becoming 

more and more a challenge for our industry. Admittedly, the next market is the cost conscious rural customer, and, given the 

present market conditions, companies cannot continue to subsidize this tax - which then is passed onto the customer, thus 

significantly reducing penetration rates.

However, despite the increasingly price-conscious market we operate in, we are still seen as the innovative company. This is 

because we are continuously trying to give our customers better value for their money. 

To serve that, at the end of last year we have introduced the largest and most comprehensive tariff offer for Grameenphone 

subscribers since its inception through four price packages – Shohoj, Aapon and Bondhu, along with djuice. We have also 

launched a new package named Baadhon, designed to serve the rural population of Bangladesh. This package contains a 

“Grameenphone C100” handset and a Grameenphone prepaid connection. 

In our quest to make life easier for our countrymen through technology, we have introduced mobile ticketing system for train 

tickets through MobiCash service for the first time in Bangladesh.

Using the MobiCash service, a commuter can purchase electronic train tickets at anytime and from anywhere from his mobile 

phone and avoid the hassle of traveling to the station during working hours or standing in queue for long periods.

We have also started to share infrastructures with other mobile operators and ISPs. This practice has enabled all parties to 

optimize their resource utilization and minimize cost of network deployment as well as of operations and maintenance.

Our green initiative got a boost when we signed agreements to buy solar power from three renewable energy suppliers to run 

140 of Grameenphone’s BTS. The initiative is supposed to save 1.15 million litres of diesel fuel per year and annual carbon 

emissions will be reduced by 3,062 tonnes once it is fully implemented. 

We have also shifted our corporate head office to our own building GPHouse - a truly environment friendly and cost efficient 

building. Incorporating a new way of work, environmentally responsible work practices and technologies,  this truly sustainable 

architecture and contemporary art hub has translated our corporate identity into a different level. 

In 2010, your Company has launched an offshoot company named Grameenphone IT Ltd., which is an international B2B 

company with a profit balance and stable corporate clienteles right from day one.

The year 2010 also brought some instability to the telecom industry in the form of Telecom Act and uncertainty over the absence 

of license renewal framework. I believe that a level playing field for sound competition and investment-friendly regulations are 

much needed for the telecom industry as well as the general development of the country.

I would like to thank all of our shareholders and the stakeholders for their support to our journey towards a brighter future.

Tore Johnsen
CEO
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It all started with one base station in Chhagolnaiya which initiated the process of converting our base station engines to an 

eco-friendly solar panel and windmill powered system. The use of this alternate energy shall restore large amounts of 

electricity to the national grid, which in turn will light more of our houses and surroundings. By reducing carbon emissions and 

saving power for the national grid, we are joining in the ongoing green revolution for Bangladesh.

cÖ_g cv‡ë wM‡qwQ‡jv QvMjbvBqv MÖv‡gi GKwU †em †÷kb| †mLvb †_‡KB ïi“ GK GK K‡i cwi‡ek evÜe evZvm ev †mŠi BwÄ‡b me¸‡jv 

†em †÷kb‡K cv‡ë †`qvi| weKí kw³i G e¨envi b¨vkbvj MÖx‡W wdwi‡q w`‡”Q wecyj cwigvY we`y¨r, hv w`‡q Av‡jvwKZ n‡”Q Avgv‡`i 

Nievwo I Pvicvk| Avi Gfv‡eB wb:mwiZ Kve©‡bi cwigvb Kgv‡bvi cvkvcvwk b¨vkbvj MÖx‡W we`y¨r wdwi‡q w`‡q MÖvgxY‡dvb †bZ…Z¡ w`‡q 

hv‡”Q evsjv‡`‡ki meyRvq‡bi Av‡›`vj‡b|
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Corporate Governance
in Grameenphone
In the fast-paced and versatile world of telecommunications, vibrant 
and dynamic Corporate Governance practices are essential ingredient 
to success. Grameenphone believes in continued nurturing and 
improvement of corporate governance. This in turn has led the Company 
to commit considerable resources and implement internationally 
accepted Corporate Standards in its day-to-day operations.

Being a public limited company, the Board of Directors of Grameenphone 
has a pivotal role to play in meeting stakeholders’ interests. The Board of 
Directors and the Management Team of Grameenphone are committed to 
maintaining effective Corporate Governance through a culture of 
accountability, transparency, well-understood policies and procedures. The Board of Directors and the Management 
Team also endeavour to maintain compliance of all laws of Bangladesh and all internally documented regulations, 
policies and procedures.

Grameenphone is a transparent company and maintains highest level of integrity and accountability practised on a global standard.

Board Organization & Structure

a)      Role  of the Board

The Directors of the Board are appointed by the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and are accountable to the 
Shareholders. The Board is responsible for guiding the Company towards accomplishment of the goals set by the Shareholders. 
The Board also ensures that Grameenphone Policies & Procedures and Codes of Conduct are implemented and maintained; and 
the Company adheres to generally accepted principles for good governance and effective control of Company activities. In 
addition to other legal guidelines, the Grameenphone Board has also adopted Governance Guidelines for the Board for ensuring 
better governance in the work and the administration of the Board.

b)      Board Composition

The Board in Grameenphone is comprised of nine Directors, including the Chairman who is elected from amongst the 
members. In compliance with the Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(SEC) and as per provision of the Articles of Association (AoA) of the Company, the Board of Directors has appointed an 
Independent Director to the GP Board in 2010. We believe that our Board has the optimum level of knowledge, composure 
and technical understanding of our business which, combined with its diversity of culture and background stands as the 
perfect platform to perform and deliver.

c)      Board Meetings

The AoA of the Company requires the Board to meet at least four times a year or more when duly called for in writing by a Board 
member. Dates for Board Meetings in the ensuing year are decided in advance and notice of each Board Meeting is served in 
writing well in advance.
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d)      Division of work for the Board and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

The roles of the Board and Chief Executive Officer are separate and delineation of responsibilities is clearly established, set out in 
writing and agreed by the Board to ensure transparency and better corporate governance. To that end, GP has also adopted 
“Governance Guidelines for Chief Executive Officer”. The CEO is the authoritative head for day-to-day management in GP. He acts 
to reasonably ensure that GP develops and conducts  business  as per the  Articles of  Association, decisions made by the Board and 
shareholder, as well as according to Grameenphone Policies and Procedures, and applicable regulatory legislations.

Board Committees

a)      Audit Committee

The Grameenphone Audit Committee was established in late 2008 and has jurisdiction over Grameenphone and its 
subsidiaries. The Audit Committee is comprised of three members of the Board including the Independent Director. The 
Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit are permanent 
invitees to the Audit Committee meetings.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in discharging its supervisory responsibilities with respect to internal control, financial 
reporting, risk management, auditing matters and GP’s processes of monitoring compliance with applicable legal & regulatory 
requirements and the Codes of Conduct. The Audit Committee Charter, as approved by the Board, defines the purpose, authority, 
composition, meetings, duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee.

b)      Treasury Committee

This Committee consists of three members who are appointed by the GP Board. All significant financial matters which concern the 
Board are discussed in this committee meeting in detail. Upon endorsement of the Treasury Committee, such issues are forwarded 
to the Board for their final review and approval.

c)      Human Resources Committee

This Committee consists of three members who are appointed by the GP Board. The Committee supports the Board in discharging 
its supervisory responsibilities with respect to Company’s Human Resources policy, including employee performance, motivation, 
retention, succession matters, rewards and Codes of Conduct.

d)      Health, Safety, Security and Environment Committee

This Committee consists of three members who are appointed by the GP Board. The Committee supports the Board in fulfilling its 
legal and other obligations with respect to Health, Safety, Security and Environment (HSSE) issues. The Committee also assists the 
Board in obtaining assurance that appropriate systems are in place to mitigate HSSE risks in relation to the Company, employees, 
vendors etc.

Board of Directors

Audit Committee Treasury Committee Human Resources 
Committee

Health, Safety,
Security and 

Environment Committee
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Company Secretary

The Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission require a company to appoint a full 
fledged Company Secretary, as distinct from other managers of the Company. In pursuance of the same, the Board of Directors 
has appointed Company Secretary in GP and thoroughly defined his roles & responsibilities. In GP, among other functions, the 
Company Secretary:

  performs as the bridge among the  Board, the Management and the Shareholders on strategic and statutory 
decisions and directions.

  acts as a quality assurance agent in all information  streams towards the Shareholders/Board.

  is responsible for ensuring that  appropriate Board procedures are followed and advises the Board on Corporate 
Governance matters.

  acts as the Disclosure Officer of the Company and monitors the compliance of the Acts, rules, regulations, 
notifications, guidelines, orders/directives etc. issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) or Stock 
Exchange(s) applicable to the conduct of business activities of the Company as well as to the interest of the investors.

Management Team
The Management Team is the Executive Committee of Grameenphone managing the affairs of the Company. The Management 
Team consists of the CEO and other key Managers across the Company. The CEO is the leader of the team. Management Team 
endeavours to achieve the strategic goals & mission of the Company set by the Board of Directors. The Management Team 
meets on a weekly basis to monitor the business performance of the Company.

Control Environment in Grameenphone 
In implementing the right Governance in Grameenphone, the Board and the Management Team ensures the following:

a) Beyond Budgeting Management Model

 Beyond Budgeting is a strategic management model that focuses on relating strategic ambitions with actions and 
emphasizes on regular monitoring of the KPIs with a realistic predictive model (rolling forecast). This enables a 
forward-looking and action oriented approach towards managing the business. The resource allocations are dynamic 
and are based on the intended actions linked with the strategy. It aims to build a culture of freedom through 
responsibility and thereby inculcating an entrepreneurial mindset in the organization leading to increased 
responsiveness to surrounding changes.

 As opposed to traditional budgets where targets, resource allocation and forecasts are combined, the Beyond Budgeting 
concept manages the aforesaid three processes separately. By separating these three processes, the model tries to 
eliminate the "budget-gaming" and re-focuses on initiatives to minimize the gap between the targets (KPIs) and 
forecasts and drives business towards ambitions. The corporate level initiatives are cascaded down at divisional & 
individual levels and reviewed and monitored continuously against the forecasts, which serves as a radar screen, showing 
the future outcome of actions undertaken. Targets/KPIs are set on relative terms to reflect the changes in business 
environment and thus ensuring a performance culture focused on attainting strategic ambitions. Resource allocations 
are aligned with strategic ambitions through the setting of relative KPIs.

 
b) Financial Reporting 

 Grameenphone has strong financial reporting procedures in line with the requirements of International Financial 
Reporting Standard (IFRS), Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) and other related local legislations. In 
Grameenphone, financial reports are generated from ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) system.

 Apart from the statutory reporting, Grameenphone also maintains regular reporting to its group company Telenor which 
consolidates all its subsidiaries’ financial information in its consolidated Financial Statements. 
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c) Management of Assets

 Grameenphone is continuously investing in telecom network and other related infrastructure in line with the Company 
Strategy. To maintain accountability and proper utilization of assets, it complies with clearly defined and approved 
policies starting from procurement, recording, reporting and up to the level of disposal of assets. To ensure proper 
safeguarding of assets, physical verification of network assets is conducted periodically on test basis and all risks relating 
to these assets are properly insured both locally and internationally.

d) Statutory Audit

 Statutory Audit of the Company is governed by the Companies Act, 1994. The Companies Act specifically provides 
guidelines for the appointment, scope of work and retirement of auditors. Shareholders appoint auditors and fix their 
remuneration in the Annual General Meeting. The auditors also carry out interim audit and review the quarterly financials 
of the Company.

e) Internal Audit

 Internal Audit supports the Company to achieve its objectives by bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes. In order to ensure 
organizational independence of Internal Audit, the Head of Internal Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee 
and administratively to the Chief Executive Officer.

 Grameenphone Internal Audit is empowered to carry out its activities in Grameenphone and its subsidiaries. Internal 
Audit activity is governed by the Internal Audit Charter, which is approved by the Board. Grameenphone Internal  Audit 
department discharges its assurance and consulting activities through management of three distinct audit streams: 
Finance, Technology and General Business processes. Additionally, a separate team is responsible for quality assurance 
of internal audit activity. A risk-based annual audit plan is in place, which takes into consideration the strategic 
imperatives and major risks surrounding Grameenphone, while considering pervasive audit needs. Grameenphone 
Internal Audit also works closely with Telenor Group Internal Audit in sharing knowledge and resources to ensure 
achievement of internal audit deliverables.

f) Internal Control

 Corporate Governance is on its strong foot in GP supported by sound internal control system in pursuance of Sarbanes 
Oxley Act. The partnership efforts of the Board of Directors, Management and Employees of the Company have made the 
company SOX successful since 2006. As a good business practice, Sarbanes Oxley (SOX) Act is a dominant guiding 
principle of the Company to attain Internal Control over Financial Reporting (ICFR) consisting of complete, valid and 
accurate information while protecting its access to the right person.

 After the Company’s enlistment with the Stock Exchanges, the reasonable assurance of operational efficacy, reliable 
financial reporting and legal compliance have become more crucial which is persistently enforced by sound internal 
control system. 

 SOX guidance is a continuous process of achieving the objective of being ‘good to great’ by ensuring:

  Better quality and output from defined significant business processes having financial impact

  Job done right at the first time

  Good, consistent processes

  System in place than person in place

  Trust towards the capital market

  Tangible benefit from strong ICFR efforts

  Less error in financial reporting

g) Risk Management

 Risk Management at Grameenphone is concerned with earning competitive returns from the Company’s various business 
activities at an acceptable risk level. It supports the Company’s competitiveness by developing a culture, practice and 
structure that systematically recognize and address future opportunities whilst managing adverse effects (threats) 
through recognizing risk and acting appropriately upon it. The Company has well defined risk management policy, 
procedures and processes to mitigate strategic and enterprise level risks.
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 Further to address & manage risk, the Company also works on ensuring,

  Implementation & good practice of required policies & procedures

  Controls on different Revenue Assurance & Fraud Management functions

h) Compliance with Rules & Regulations of the Country

 Compliance builds trust. To have governance cascaded right through the whole Company, the Management Team of 
Grameenphone as the leaders of a compliant Company acclimatized ways that assure compliance to all regulatory 
requirements and instill organizational trust amongst their Board Members, Shareholders and customers. The regulatory 
bodies maintain a close monitoring process on Grameenphone and has heightened the focus on transparency, as well as 
an increased need to provide accurate and periodic reporting of issues/events and certifications. In this context, the 
Company provides complete set of Financial Statements to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), Stock 
Exchanges, National Board of Revenue (NBR), Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms (RJSC), Bangladesh 
Telecommunication Regulatory Commission (BTRC) and the Board of Investment (BoI). In order to conduct day to day 
business, Grameenphone has been rendering its best effort to comply with the existing applicable laws of the country as 
well as with the directives/guidelines of various Government Authorities.

i) Business Continuity  and Crisis Management (BCCM)

 We must recognise the fact that no matter how solid any business is, things may go wrong at any time which might have 
catastrophic consequences. As GP entered into local Capital Market, it is becoming more and more a necessity to be 
prepared to encounter any contingency with an optimal level efficiency to uphold the shareholders’ interest and gain a 
competitive edge. It is crucial for a company like GP to have plans in place in addition to a trained and capable team to 
respond to an emergency incident, restore business operation effectively and safeguard GP employees, assets and 
reputation. So to generate resilience in entire business operations, GP started practicing world class Business Continuity 
& Crisis Management since May 2008 to avoid this kind of catastrophic situation and also to uphold the shareholders’ 
value. 

  Business Continuity Management is a holistic management process that GP embeds in its business culture by this 
time with several different methodical approach including Business Continuity Plans, Disaster Recovery Plan, Crisis 
Management Plan & specialized Activity Resumptions Plans.

  Major initiatives taken by BCCM last year were “BCCM resilience at regional level”, “BCCM knowledgebase portal”, and 
“Crisis Management Plan Review”. Apart from all these there are other significant projects ongoing at this moment. 
BCCM is working with GP’s critical business partners for building resilience at supply chain continuity, Disaster 
Recovery Site for Service Operation Centre (SOC) etc. 

   To enhance Incident Management capability, GP BCCM also conducted functional exercises last year. Two separate 
tabletop exercises were arranged for Finance Management Team and Chittagong Regional Sales Management. 
Objectives of both the exercises were to train and improve Business Continuity & Incident Management capability, 
Exercise relevant operational procedure and Foster & Embed business continuity culture.

 In BCCM’s continuous journey, it has got many initiatives and is trying to perform the entire BCM life cycle in true sense so 
that GP can leverage its business efficiency and generate more resilience to protect its shareholder’s value.

j)  Ethics and Behaviour

 i. Codes of Conduct

     Grameenphone has adopted clearly defined Codes of Conduct approved by the Board of Directors for securing good 
business ethics and conduct in all aspects of the Company’s activities. The Codes of Conduct are properly 
communicated to all the employees and others acting on behalf, who are strictly required to abide by it.
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 ii. Restrictions on dealings in GP Shares by Insiders

     The Company has established policy relating to trading in the GP shares by Directors, Employees and other Insiders. 
The securities laws also impose restrictions on similar sort of transactions. All the Insiders are prohibited from trading 
in the GP shares, while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company during 
prescribed restricted trading period. Directors and Employees are also required to notify their intention to trade in the 
GP shares prior to initiating the same.

k)  Investor Relations (IR)

 As the largest public listed corporate house in Bangladesh, Grameenphone always pays great importance to the investor 
community and their various information requirements. With a vision of establishing the most effective two way 
communication between the investors and the Company, a dedicated Investor Relations department started its journey 
in 2010. IR as a specialized department has maintained contact with local and international investors, analysts, market 
experts, regulators and financial community on proactive basis to communicate the pulse of the Capital Market to the 
management throughout the year. Notable events that IR conducted during the year were: workshop for financial 
journalists on capital markets, first ever international analyst meeting, launching of a dedicated investor relations 
website,  quarterly financial publications and press conferences.

 
l) Communications with Shareholders

 We believe good corporate governance involves openness and trustful cooperation between all stakeholders involved in 
the Company, including the owners of the Company – the Shareholders. Information is communicated to the 
Shareholders regularly through a number of forums and publications. These include:

  Annual General Meeting of the Company

  Quarterly, Half-yearly and the Annual Financial Statements, which are also posted at Company’s website

  Price Sensitive Disclosure and other disclosures to the SEC, Stock Exchanges and general shareholders; and

  Company’s website, where the Company announcements, media releases, previous year’s results etc. are posted 
under the Investor Relations section

 The Company has adopted a detailed policy on information disclosure and communication. In compliance with 
continuous disclosure requirements, the Company’s policy is that Shareholders will be informed in a timely manner of all 
major developments that impact the business of the Company and also are able to make informed decisions.

Grameenphone believes in transparency and accountability to society as a whole through establishment of efficient and 
effective Corporate Governance procedures. It also believes that Corporate Governance is a journey and not a destination 
and it needs to be continuously developed, nurtured and adapted to meet the changing needs of a modern business as well 
as the justified expectations of our investors and other stakeholders.
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Partnership which strives to achieve common economic and social goals
At Grameenphone, we acknowledge the complementary relationship and interdependency between responsibility and 
commercial interest. Our strategic ambitions and the country’s development issues are mutually inclusive, and hence, they 
cannot be treated in isolation. 

We believe good business is good development and vice versa. As the business grows, it generates positive economic and social 
impact in the form of beneficial services, jobs and contributions to the National Exchequer. Likewise, good development equals 
good business. Thus, our relationship with Bangladesh is built on a partnership which strives to achieve common economic and 
social goals.

When the future is shared, so is the responsibility to perfect it. We believe, we have important contributions in order to ensure  
continued growth and development of Bangladesh. Through our commercial presence and our corporate initiatives, we aim to 
aid in reaching the development targets set for the country. 

Our Social investments are consolidated in three main focus areas, namely, Healthcare, Education and Environment.

Health
Safe Motherhood and Infant Care Project
In partnership with Pathfinder International and USAID, Grameenphone has been supporting the “Safe Motherhood and 

Infant Care” program since May 2007. Under the program, free comprehensive primary healthcare services are provided 
to economically disadvantaged pregnant mothers and infants through 320 Smiling Sun clinics located in 61 districts 
around the country. From inception up to November 2010, 1,765,088 services have been provided to the economically 
disadvantaged mothers and infants under this program. Four clinic-on-wheels and ten ambulances were handed over to 
different NGOs of Smiling Sun Network, to increase the accessibility of maternal and infant healthcare services to the 
hard-to-reach economically disadvantaged population as well as to facilitate home delivery by skilled birth attendants.  
Under the project, 15,976 deliveries had been conducted by skilled professionals.

Free Eye Care Camps
Grameenphone, jointly with Sightsavers International, organized free Eye Camps to ensure eye-care services since 2007. In 
total, 24 such free eye-camps have been organized throughout the country and a total of 36,327 patients were given free 
eye care support, among them 4,743 patients were administered Intra Ocular lens or cataract surgeries.

Education 
Grameen Shikhkha
In collaboration with Grameen Shikhkha, an organization of Grameen Bank Family, Grameenphone provides scholarship to 
meritorious but underprivileged students through a scholarship fund at different academic levels.

Alokdeep, Non-Formal Primary School cum Cyclone Shelter
Grameenphone, as part of its rehabilitation plans in the SIDR affected areas, provided financial assistance to build four 

education center-cum-cyclone shelters in the southern belt of the country. These cyclone shelters are used as non 
formal primary school throughout the year to provide non-formal primary education to underprivileged children of the 
locality.  
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Environment
Climate Change Initiative
Grameenphone Climate project aims to reduce carbon emission, become environment friendly and create a momentum 

with the community and people. The ambition of the project is to reduce the overall company’s carbon footprint by 30% 

within 2015. The target was set using the year 2008’s actual emission as the baseline emission. The reduction target for the 

year 2010, ‘11, ‘12 and ‘13 are 11%, 13%, 15% and 20% respectively. One of the major focus areas is to gain energy efficiency 

in Grameenphone Networks by implementing energy efficient base stations, DC ventilation system and alternative energy 

solutions. The target of the Company is to deploy solar power system in all the off-grid sites. Currently Grameenphone has 

15 Green Base stations and works are going on for deploying solar power system in another 140 sites. 

Grameenphone has adapted environmental procedures to minimize its direct impact on environment. The objective of 

implementing Environmental Management System is to become an environment friendly sustainable company. 

Grameenphone also continued its environmental campaign “Stay Green, Stay Close” in 2010. 

Other Initiatives
Sponsoring Special Olympics Bangladesh
Grameenphone became the sole sponsor of Special Olympics Bangladesh in 2007 when it provided necessary support and 
training for the athletes to participate in the Special Olympics Games 2007 in Beijing, China. The team won 71 medals in 
different categories. In 2008-10, the Company supported and organized regional talent hunts across the country. A total of 
400 intellectually challenged athletes were selected from six divisions through regional talent hunt programs. In October 
2010, National Games of the Special Olympic Bangladesh took place through which 80 athletes were selected. Athletes 
selected from 5th National Games will be further groomed and nurtured to form the brave team of individuals who will 
represent Bangladesh in the 2011 Special Olympics International Games to be held in Athens, Greece.

Emergency Relief Works
A total of 7,000 blankets were distributed in different regions of the country during the cold wave in December 2010. 
Grameenphone employees donated warm clothes and actively participated in the distribution of relief materials.

Supporting E-health 
Ministry of Health and Family Welfare is currently working to implement the computer-based health information system 
for gathering data from rural and other levels to central and sub-national levels. Information technology is also being 
scaled up to provide health services to the people by a means called e-health. Grameenphone Ltd. donated 200 
computers to the Directorate General of Health Services (DGHS) of the Ministry of Health and Family Welfare. The 
computers will be used to digitize the Health Management Information System (HMIS) and to provide e-health services.
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Grameenphone’s faith in the capabilities of one of the youngest Test Cricket playing nations is unconditional and irrevocable. For 

all the celebrations of victory and the heartbreaks of defeat – Grameenphone stood by the tigers through thick and thin.  And it 

wasn’t just about supporting the team. Grameenphone’s partnership with Bangladesh Cricket Board (BCB) to build the National 

Cricket Academy only further exemplifies a blind faith towards Bangladeshi Cricket. It’s a step towards conquering the world with 

the red and green – a day we are all looking forward to. 

†U÷ wµ‡K‡Ui bexbZg m`m¨-†`kwUi cÖwZ AÜwek¦vmx Av¯’v †i‡LwQ‡jv MÖvgxY‡dvb| cÖwZwU weR‡q †hgb †g‡Z‡Q euvafvOv Djv‡m, cÖwZwU

civR‡q †Zgwb nZvkvq jywK‡q‡Q gyL, wKš‘ KL‡bvB †Q‡o hvqwb cvk| ïay RvZxq `‡ji cv‡k †_‡KB bq, wewmweÕi mv‡_ †hŠ_ D‡`¨v‡M RvZxq

wµ‡KU GKv‡Wwg M‡oI MÖvgxY‡dvb Rvwb‡q‡Q evsjv‡`‡ki wµ‡K‡Ui cÖwZ AÜ mg_©b| MÖvgxY‡dvb Avi evsjv‡`k wµ‡K‡Ui GB cvU©bviwkc

GKw`b evsjv‡`k‡K G‡b w`‡e wek¦‡mivi ghv©`v Avi bZzb GK D”PZvq wb‡q hv‡e jvj-mey‡Ri cZvKv‡K- GLb A‡c¶v ïay †mB w`bwUi|
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  2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
  Consolidated  

Operational Results in million BDT     
Revenue  74,733 65,300 61,359 54,303 45,640 
Gross Profit  38,730 32,222 28,667 29,946 26,962 
Operating Profit  20,207 20,518 15,350 16,287 18,195 
Profit before tax  20,913 18,596 11,579 13,535 17,020 
Net Profit after tax  10,705 14,968 2,984 3,060 7,484 

Financial Position in million BDT
Paid-up Capital  13,503 13,503 12,152 2,430 2,430 
Shareholders' equity  48,032 50,154 27,588 26,111 24,509 
Total assets  109,502 109,162 108,194 88,461 66,757 
Total liabilities  61,470 59,008 80,606 62,350 42,247 
Current assests  30,802 22,182 14,430 6,851 10,442 
Current liabilities  44,642 38,952 50,231 36,445 23,568 
Non current assets  78,700 86,981 93,765 81,610 56,314 
Non current liabilities  16,828 20,056 30,375 25,905 18,680  
Financial Ratios
Current Asset to Current Liability  0.69 0.57  0.29  0.19  0.44  
Debt to Equity  0.11 0.14  0.68  0.63  0.32  
Gross Profit Margin  52% 49% 47% 55% 59% 
Operating Profit Margin  27% 31% 25% 30% 40% 
Net Profit Margin  14% 23% 5% 6% 16% 
Return on Equity  22% 38.5% 11.1% 12.1% 35.0% 
Return on Total Assets  10% 13.8% 3.0% 3.9% 12.9% 

Ordinary Shares Information
Ordinary Shares outstanding (in million) 13,503.00 13,503.00 12,151.75 56.52 56.52 
Face Value per share  10 10 1 43 43 
Cash Dividend on paid up capital  120% 60% 13% 62% 60% 
Dividend payout  151% 54% 53% 49% 19% 
NAV per Share *  35.57 37.14 22.70 21.49 20.17 
Net Operating Cash Flow per Share ** 23.16 24.77 20.24 19.86 21.53 
Earnings Per Share**  7.93 12.08  2.46  2.52  6.16  

* Based on Tk. 10 equivalent ordinary share outstanding at December 31.

** Based on weighted average number of share of Tk. 10 each.
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*ARPU - Average Revenue Per User  **AMPU - Average Minutes Per User
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Grameenphone has set a new benchmark for the telecom industry with its aggressive subscriber acquisition and hefty 
revenue generation in 2010. Even in fierce market competition and heavy SIM tax burden, Grameenphone has managed to 
add more than 6.7 million subscribers. Emergence of new entrant and belligerent price war in the market could not cast a 
shadow over Grameenphone’s performances. 

Grameenphone has diversified its business by forming an IT company, Grameenphone IT Ltd. to give a way to the ‘Digital 
Bangladesh’. Side by side, Grameenphone has strengthened its rural footprint through new product ‘Baadhon’ bundled 
with low cost handsets and continued to be top on the innovation front through segmented price plans with migration 
facility, mini-packs for economy internet users and services like Bill Pay, e-ticketing and vehicle tracking.

Grameenphone’s cost optimization initiatives through operational excellence program as well as opting for cost-efficient 
network solutions through swapping of assets with Huawei have played a constructive role. 

Regulatory authorities have played a pivotal role in business environment with new directives and guidelines such as SMS 
tariff, toll-free hotline and likewise.

   Subscriber base reached almost 30 million at the end of 2010.

   During the year, subscription base increased by 29% with 6.7 million additions.

   Active internet users increased to 2.6 million from 1.4 million in 2009.

   In the competitive market, GP’s subscriber market share stood stable at around 44%.

Subscriptions

    Total revenue increased by 14% (BDT 943 crore) mainly due to growth in traffic revenue driven by subscription 
growth and revenues from sale of GP branded handsets and EDGE modems.

 Impressive 64% growth in data revenues against 82% increase in active users, mainly driven by economy 
mini-packs.

 New segmented price plans designed as per the users’ needs and migration facility well-received by the 
subscribers. Strengthened rural footprint by “Baadhon” product bundled with very low cost GP branded 
handsets and extended distribution network.

Revenue

 Total operating expenditure in 2010 increased by 35% (BDT 970 crore) from 2009 mainly due to higher 
subsidy (BDT 455 crore), commissions (BDT 116 crore), SIM card and cost of device (BDT 108 crore), rent, 
electricity and maintenance cost (BDT 90 crore) and revenue sharing (BDT 43 crore).

 A total savings of BDT 270 crore have been achieved through the operational excellence initiatives 
during the year.

Operating Expenditure

 Lower net profit after tax for the year 2010 compared to 2009 was mainly driven by heavy subsidy of 
BDT 680 crore, partly offset by revenue growth.

 The 2009 net profit after tax was higher due to a positive adjustment of BDT 412 crore in income tax 
after successful listing into the stock exchanges. Without this adjustment, the 2009 net profit after 
tax was BDT 1,085 crore.

 EPS of 2010 (BDT 7.93) was lower than that of 2009 (BDT 12.08); yet it is considered reasonable in 
the competitive environment where SIM tax has restricted EPS growth.

 Total asset base increased marginally by BDT 34 crore between 2009 and 2010 mainly due to higher 
cash generation from operation and higher inventory build-up of handsets and SIM card in line with 
higher sales target.

 However, this increase in assets was partly offset by higher depreciation and amortization expenses 
charged on existing asset base during the year.

 Capital expenditure during 2010 was BDT 846 crore compared to BDT 1,037 crore in 2009.

 Total liabilities increased by BDT 246 crore during the year mainly on account of payables against 
income tax and SIM tax. The increase was partly offset by settlement of long term borrowings obligation 
and reduced deferred tax liabilities.

Net Profit After Taxes

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

23.26 

29.97 6.71 

2009 2010

6,530 

7,473 943 

2009 2010

2,584 
3,099 226 

680 
515 

455 
2,810 

970 3,779 

2009 2010

Subsidy

1,497 

1,071 

(426) 

12.08 

7.93 

2009 2010

EPS

10,916 10,950 

34 

2009 2010

5,901 6,147 
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in '000 BDT

Value Added

Available for distribution

%

Revenue
Other income including interest income
VAT on revenue and other income

Less: Cost of network and services 

Distributions
Employees and channel partners
Government 
Providers of debts and banks 
Shareholders*

*Distribution for 2010 was BDT 16,203,600,264 (including the proposed dividend) out of which BDT 10,705,351,608 was
from the wealth created during the current year. The rest of the distribution was from wealth accumulated in earlier years.        
        
        

Retained for reinvestment & future growth
Depreciation
Retained profit

%

74,733,076

2009 %

65,299,567
256,066

9,801,424
75,357,057
 12,010,166 

 63,346,891 100%

8,184,542 13%
 21,567,193 34%

1,900,001 3%
8,101,800 13%

 39,753,537 63%

16,726,988 26%
6,866,366 11%

23,593,354
 63,346,891 100%

2010 %

1,509,457
11,219,024

87,461,558
 14,352,457 

 73,109,101 100%

11,172,668 15%
 33,581,941 46%

855,568 1%
10,705,352 15%
 56,315,529 77%

16,793,572 23%
- 0%

23% 37%16,793,572
 73,109,101 100%

Distribution of Value Added (2009)

Employees and channel partners (13% ) 

Retained profit reinvested for expansion (37%)

Dividend to Shareholders (13%)  

Contribution to Government (34%) 

Providers of debts and banks (3%) 

Distribution of Value Added (2010)

Employees and channel partners (15%) 

Retained profit reinvested for expansion (23%)

Dividend to Shareholders (15%)  

Contribution to Government (46%) 

Providers of debts and banks (1%)
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Largest Corporate Taxpayer in the Country

The collective contribution to the National Exchequer from inception up to December 2010 was BDT 185.0 billion (BDT 18,502 
crore), of which, BDT 37.15 billion (BDT 3,715 crore) was made in 2010 alone. Out of total BDT 185.0 billion (BDT 18,502 crore), 
BDT 149.5 billion (BDT 14,951 crore) was made on account of direct tax, VAT and duties through National Board of Revenue (NBR) 
and Bangladesh Telecommunication Regulatory Commission (BTRC), BDT 6.15 billion (BDT 615 crore) on account of purchase of 
additional spectrum and equipments for Lawful Interception Compliance for the government, BDT 21.28 billion (BDT 2,128 crore) 
through commercial agreements with Bangladesh Railway (BR) and Bangladesh Telecommunications Company Limited (BTCL) 
and BDT 8.08 billion (BDT 808 crore) as indirect payments on account of local and foreign staff income taxes and withholding 
taxes on operating expenditure payments. So far, Grameenphone has been the largest corporate taxpayer in the country for the 
last couple of years.

Grameenphone has also generated direct and indirect employment for a large number of people over the years. The Company 
presently has about 5,000 employees while 180,000 people are directly dependent on Grameenphone for their livelihood, 
working for the dealers, retailers, electronic reload and scratch card retail outlets, suppliers, vendors, contractors and other 
business partners.

With the payment of taxes and the investment in the network, Grameenphone is making a significant contribution to the 
country’s economic & social development and growth.

Year-wise Contribution to National Exchequer
as of December 31, 2010
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1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 

Withholding Taxes -    1  2  2  3  4  8  14  26  44  75  113  119  140  

BTCL/BR -    13  18  23  50  43  123  147  147  256  278  403  335  180  

BTRC 1  3  3  7  21  57  71  65  117  124  252  477  879  717  

NBR -    30  12  27  39  103  200  357  535  872  1,213  1,851  2,174  2,014  

824  

2010 

257

114

431

2,913

Total Payment 1  47  35  59  113  208  402  584  1,296  1,818  2,843  3,507  3,050  3,715

 3,715  
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management, I welcome you all to the 14th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of 
Grameenphone Ltd. (GP). We are very delighted to place herewith the Directors' Report and the Auditors' Report together with 
the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2010 thereon, for your valued 
consideration, approval and adoption.

2010 – Another Year of Accomplishment

GP had another successful business year in 2010 achieving more than 6.7 million new subscribers. The total subscribers’ market 
share in the year stood at 43.7 % with the 29.97 million subscribers’ landmark. When we started our journey in March 1997, this 
was a dream figure and very few people could imagine that this would ever be accomplished. At the same time, our revenue is 
up with double digits in percentage growth and we have a consistent profit throughout the year in spite of challenging macro 
economic conditions. However, SIM tax remains the main hurdle to mobile industry growth, hindering further investment as well 
as the progress of the Government's much envisaged digitalization of Bangladesh to a great extent.

Superior service quality and innovative products and services have given us a competitive edge over the market. In 2010, we 
have strengthened our rural footprint through the introduction of new product ‘Baadhon’ bundled with low cost handsets. We 
have diversified our business portfolio through infrastructure sharing and formation of a wholly owned subsidiary company 
“Grameenphone IT Ltd.”

GP completed a full year 2010 as a listed company. GP was seen as benchmark for its compliance, transparency and service to 
its close around 100,000 shareholders. Amongst, the most significant event of the year was holding flawless AGM of the largest 
shareholder base of the country in June 2010. GP was also commended for completing dividend disbursement process in the 
quickest possible time. Those all reveal the Company's ability and candid commitment to deliver to its shareholders.

GP has been contributing significantly to heritage, culture, sports and welfare through its various initiatives. We have been 
maintaining high standards in Corporate Responsibility, Health, Safety, Security and Environment (HSSE) and Employee 
welfare. We have further enhanced our cooperation with Government such as sponsored the 11th South Asian Games, Access to 
Information (A2I) Programme and other initiatives. 

2010 - Socio Economic Environment

On the way to new and digitalized Bangladesh, 2010 was the year of bounce for the global economy as well as for Bangladesh. 
Despite acute power & energy crisis and infrastructure deficiency, most of the economic indicators showed positive trend 
throughout the year except some volatility in the money and capital markets and inflation at the end. The country registered a 
GDP growth of 5.8% in the fiscal year 2009-2010 driven mainly by the services and industrial sectors. An optimistic economic 
growth has, however, been envisaged for the coming years by the experts and analysts. With the support from the international 
bodies, the Government strives to maintain the ongoing trend of economic stability in Bangladesh.

The year 2010 witnessed a number of hiccups in commodity markets that created some challenges for the fixed and 
low-income groups. The Consumer Association of Bangladesh (CAB) has said that the prices of some major food items have 
increased by more than 20 percent year on year basis. Managing inflation is emerging as a major macroeconomic challenge. 
Bangladesh’s growth prospect would depend on large and quick investments in power, energy, transport infrastructure and tax 
reforms etc. 
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Telecommunication Industry Scenario 

As per the Global Information Technology Report 2009-2010 of World Economic Forum, Bangladesh in terms of network 
readiness has moved up from global ranking at 130 to 118. This readiness is mainly attributed to the mobile sector of Bangladesh 
which has connected and empowered people and made revolutionary changes in their lifestyles. It has brought basic Internet 
to the people and thereby increased productivity in services, manufacturing & agriculture and improved access to education, 
health care and rural lives. 

Total mobile phone subscribers in Bangladesh reached 68.6 million as of December 2010, whereas the tele-density for the 
mobile industry reached approximately 40%. Six mobile phone operators of the country added 16.2 million customers in 2010.  

Despite rapid growth over the last 5 years, Bangladesh remains as one of the lowest in Internet penetration and the scenario is 
likely to change once the 3G technology is introduced in Bangladesh. Currently Internet penetration is soaring around 6.5%. 

Regulatory Environment 

In terms of regulatory environment, 2010 has been a very eventful year. There has been quite a few regulatory activities 
changing the business environment significantly. 

The 2010 saw the amendments in Bangladesh Telecommunication Act 2001 (BTA), despite opposition by the telecom industry. 
These amendments have increased the risk of doing business in the telecom sector in Bangladesh.

Towards the end of 2010, BTRC has proposed a renewal framework to Ministry of Posts and Telecommunications, without 
consultation with the mobile sector operators. Proposed renewal fees are very high and a total of USD 1.6 billion is indicated to 
be recovered from four renewing mobile operators. It is also indicated that GP would be paying more than other operators 
because of its business success. Renewal framework also contains quite a few non-price but significant elements, without 
adequate details e.g., Unified Licensing, Significant Market Power (SMP), Mobile Virtual Network Operator (MVNO) etc., which 
adds to the already prevailing uncertainty.

There is only slow movement on 3G. BTRC issued an Expression of Interest (EoI) in later part of December 2010 seeking interest 
of international consultants to prepare a 3G framework, with an indication that auction would be the mode of allocation of 
spectrum and license.  This shows that 3G deployment probably will be further delayed in the country. 

Like previous years, despite best efforts of the mobile operators, the Government did not reduce SIM tax in 2010. It makes 
difficult to deliver mobile services to the poor people especially in the rural areas. 

A stable and long term telecom policy is badly needed to stimulate industry growth and enable the mobile industry to make 
further investments in new services and technologies. 

2010 - Capital Market Overview 

In 2010, the total turnover of Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) was a record of BDT 4,009.9 billion compared to BDT 1,475.3 billion 
in 2009, an increase of 171.80%. The total market capitalization in 2010 was BDT 3,508 billion, posting an 84.81% rise from that 
in 2009. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) remained vigilant throughout the year. The regulator changed and/or 
modified securities rules time to time in 2010 in order to maintain discipline in the market. The country’s capital markets 
witnessed a sharp fall on December 19, 2010. The DSE index fell by 551 points or 6.71%, leading to angry protests from retail 
investors forcing regulator to withdraw certain regulatory directives. The number of Beneficiary Owners (BO) account has nearly 
doubled to 3.3 million in 2010. The regulator approved Initial Public Offerings (IPO) of 8 companies, gave go-ahead to 2 
companies with direct listings while 25 companies offered right shares.

On October 28, 2010, around 66 million placement shares of GP were released from “lock-in”. Despite expiry of lock-in, no 
significant fluctuation was noticed in GP share price. GP shares soared in early February 2010 and then came down following 
SEC directive to place GP in spot market. It has been on a gradual decline since then with periodic upward movements from time 
to time. Subsequently, GP shares were reinstated to regular trading on December 21, 2010. At the beginning of 2010, GP share 
price was BDT 187.0 on DSE and BDT 188.6 on Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) while the highest share price was BDT 395.0 
on DSE and BDT 396.5 on CSE during the year. GP’s market capitalization as of December 31, 2010 was BDT 331.9 billion on DSE 
representing 9.5% of the total market capital of DSE.

Innovative Products & Services 

Mobile telephony is playing a major role around the world to bring positive changes. GP has already taken modern 
telecommunications to the easy reach of the common people around the country. We are dedicated to continuous 
improvement to develop innovative and useful products & services to keep our customers close. Over the past 14 years, the 
Company has demonstrated its commitment as such to connect people, keeping them close to their dreams and aspirations 
through our various services. Those connections deepen relationships, strengthen society and accelerate economic growth of 
the country. During the year under review, we launched a new package named “Baadhon” along with GP branded low-cost 
handset designed to serve the rural population of Bangladesh, and “Ekota” package to meet the business needs of small 
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enterprises. As part of new innovations, GP launched Dynamic Pricing, Sachet (bundle minute) offer for the prepaid customers, 
“Team Tracker” and “Buddy Tracker” for location tracking through mobile device. We also commercially launched “Vehicle 
Tracking” system this year.

As part of GP’s continuous efforts to provide maximum benefit to its subscribers, in 2010, we have announced four price 
packages – Shohoj, Aapon, Bondhu along with djuice. These have been developed for the prepaid subscribers offering 
interchangeability and easy migration. The new price plans bring a simplicity that identifies usage patterns, and promises the 
best solution and the best value to GP’s subscribers.

Customer Service – Magic of Closeness

Serving the customers with increasing passion every day is crucial to our success. GP recognizes that “Customer is King”. Our 
strategic initiative aims not only to delight customers consistently by offering better products and services, but to win their 
loyalty by building a meaningful and memorable total experience. GP introduced the country’s first 24-hour Call Center in 
1999. In 2008, GP implemented world-class IP Based Contact Solution for managing customer interactions more effectively. In 
addition, GP is in touch with the subscribers round the year through various customer touch points such as 18 Grameenphone 
Centers (GPC) and 70 Grameenphone Center Franchises (GPCF) – a flagship sales and service point under one roof - especially 
designed to cater the needs of the subscribers. Moreover, GP has an extensive state-of-the-art distribution network and 
infrastructure with more than 120,000 retailers spread across the country with whom more than 7 million subscribers interact 
for purchasing GP products every day. Our distribution strength is with 180,000 Point of Sales (POS) is organized by around 97 
distributors. 

New Business by using GP Competence  

i) Grameenphone IT Ltd.

GP has always been at the cutting edge of innovation in Bangladesh and we will continue to develop new ideas to improve 
people’s lives. Through the creation of Grameenphone IT Ltd. (GPIT), GP has shown significant commitment to help 
develop Bangladesh.

GPIT is a fully-owned subsidiary of GP, and was incorporated on January 28, 2010. GPIT began its operations on April 01, 
2010 and has been managing GP’s IT infrastructure, services and solutions. GPIT presently has approximately 359 
employees, and will continue to grow in the future. 

We see great opportunities for the subsidiary in local and global markets as an IT company.  Within the Bangladesh market, 
we plan to slowly diversify our capabilities into other industry segments with special focus on the banking and finance 
industry.  We have also ventured out of Bangladesh by forming partnership with global IT companies.  Within Telenor 
Group, we have already signed agreement with Telenor Next, Telenor Broadcast and the Telenor Group.

ii) Wholesale Business - a new dimension added 

The infrastructure sharing scheme, under wholesale business, was another new dimension added during the year for GP 
aiming to make optimum use of the existing resources. BTRC, through directive, made infrastructure sharing compulsory 
for the telecom operators of Bangladesh. In 2010, we have taken the step forward. Our initiative will ensure sustainable 
utilization of national resources. In this regard, we have signed agreements with Augere Wireless Broadband Bangladesh 
Limited; Axiata (Bangladesh) Ltd. (Robi); Orascom Telecom Bangladesh Ltd. (Banglalink); Banglalion Communications Ltd.; 
Airtel Bangladesh Ltd. (formerly known as Warid) and Drik Alokchitra Granthagar Limited.

iii) Financial Services

GP has long set out to improve people's lives through the mobile phone infrastructure. One area of increasing priority is 
basic transactional services and looking at new ways that the mobile can contribute to making bill payment, purchasing 
and other basic transactional services easy and more convenient for the common people. Our tested technology, large 
subscriber base and distribution network allow us to bring mobile transactional services to more people in more areas. In 
2010, we observed significant acceptance from people and growth on our bill payment, train & sports ticketing and 
charitable lottery purchase using mobile phones.  With GP's BillPay service, customers can pay their various utility bills 
through the subscriber’s mobile or through GP authorised outlets. We also introduced our new brand “MobiCash” for 
transactional services this year. In future, GP will be introducing other innovative transactional and mCommerce services to 
ensure ultimate convenience and comfort for the people.
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Continuous Investment 

We know that mobile subscribers are always looking for new and innovative products & services and better quality network that 
fit their needs and offer real value. Keeping this in mind Grameenphone continued to invest in its network to deliver a quality 
network experience and to maintain its leadership position in the industry.  Our cumulative investment reached BDT 157.96 
billion (BDT 15,796 crore) where BDT 8.46 billion (BDT 846 crore) was invested to enhance data capacity and quality of its 
nation-wide network in 2010. With 433 new additions in 2010, accumulated number of BTS stood at 13,097 in 7,237 locations all 
around the country.

Our Employees - Our Pride

The total strength of GP employees stood at 4,637 at the end of the year.  GP recognizes the importance of attracting and 
retaining skilled and motivated employees with a strong commitment to the business in line with the Company’s ethical visions 
and values. We are committed to the principle of equal and fair opportunity in employment and also put in place a number of 
initiatives to build strong corporate culture. Inspired by Government moves, GP has extended female Maternity Leave from 
existing 4 to 6 months and has been running daycare facilities for children of the employees. A performance driven corporate 
culture along with opportunities for career growth has made GP a gender balanced and preferred employer in the Bangladesh 
job market. GP received the “Best Employer Award for 2010” from BDjobs.com - the largest online job site in Bangladesh. 

GPHouse – A new way of work

GPHouse, the new head office building of the Company was inaugurated in 2010. The architecture symbolizes futuristic vision 
of GP and is the first true environment friendly building in Bangladesh. It is one of the expressions of GP’s mission to go green.  
GPHouse aims to be a workplace that nurtures creativity, flexibility, innovation and transparency in its design. The building 
architecture inspires and empowers employees through its open spaces and uniform seating arrangements for all.  It also 
provides a completely new office approach, which is 'paperless' environment with an 'open' office concept. GPHouse and its new 
work environment is an important symbol for GP in its continued efforts to develop new and imaginative products and services. 
GPHouse is a cost efficient building with almost double in seating capacity compared to traditional building. The energy 
solutions bring down the CO2 emissions by 60% compared with the other traditional buildings.

Corporate Social Responsibility – Commitment towards the Society

GP considers itself a socially responsive, respectful and an abiding company. GP's mobile services are in many ways a social 
service itself, creating closeness in families and communities, and enabling business improvements and new business 
development. Corporate Responsibility is a complementary combination of responsible business practices and corporate 
behaviour and externally focused initiatives to create value for societies and communities. Our Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) program covers many aspects of life with special focus on health, education, entrepreneurship and environment through 
its ventures like Village Phone, Community Information Centre (CIC), HealthLine, StudyLine, etc. 

GP is the fanatic sponsor of Bangladesh National Cricket Team.  In 2010, GP has renewed its sponsorship with the Bangladesh 
Cricket Board (BCB) for another two years till 2011. GP also entered into a partnership with Special Olympics Bangladesh with 
the objective to form a “national talent pool” of intellectually-challenged athletes, who will be further nurtured for the next 
Special Olympics in 2011. GP joined hands with Campaign for Popular Education (CAMPE) to promote 1GOAL campaign during 
world-cup football in 2010. This year, we also entered into sponsorship agreement with Bangladesh Football Federation (BFF) 
for “Federation Cup Football League” and “Bangladesh League” – the professional football leagues of the country.

Our Climate Strategy - A way to Green World

Our climate is changing very fast and affecting the earth adversely with its consequences. Although Bangladesh is responsible 
for as low as 0.1% of the world carbon dioxide emission, it will be one of the worst-hit countries by suffering consequences 
caused by climate change. The Intergovernmental Panel for Climate Change (IPCC), in its report, mentioned that high waters 
and salinity are likely to displace millions of Bangladeshi people, and make them climate refugees by the end of 2050. The 
green technology is gaining ground in Bangladesh as several sectors are adopting the innovations. Solar energy has emerged 
strong in the market for green technology to mitigate the effects of electricity shortages at rural levels.

In this respect, GP’s Climate Strategy aims to become a Green Company by shifting towards low carbon operations, practicing 
green standards internally and developing a greater momentum in the community with people. Our ambition is to reduce 30% 
carbon footprint and become a Green Company by 2015. In 2010, we signed contract for implementing solar power system in 
140 base stations and the installation is currently in progress. New investments in 2011 will remove all air conditioners (AC) from 
base stations, reducing the overall network energy consumption by approximately 43%.

Health, Safety, Security and Environment (HSSE)

GP has been a vibrant example in Bangladesh Telecom Industry considering effective management of Health, Safety and 
Security issues of employees & its value chain partners. As a responsible company, GP respects all HSSE provisions of Labour 
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Law as well as standards in this field and gives its best effort to provide for all employees the best working conditions and 
necessary protection. Throughout the year 2010, the Company has also put greater emphasis on Supplier & Business Partners' 
HSSE culture development. GP conducted more than 550 audits/inspections, and several awareness campaigns for its value 
chain partners. More than 1,050 Suppliers/Vendors have signed Agreement on Responsible Business Conduct (ABC) covering 
Supplier Conduct Principle (SCP) on HSSE aspects. Focus on internal HSSE culture has also been depicted through strong 
initiative on implementation of Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Management System. 

Village Phone Program & Community Information Center (CIC)

Village Phone, when started in 1997, was a unique idea that brings modern mobile communication services and new business 
opportunities to communities that may have been overlooked by traditional telecommunication access. This program is a 
powerful symbol of how social closeness enhances life. There were 478,210 VP subscribers providing telecommunication 
services in over 82,000 villages in 64 districts across the country. 

Inspired by the success of Village Phone Program, GP introduced Community Information Center (CIC), where the rural people 
can have access to wide range of state-of-the-art services such as Internet, voice communications and all other information 
services. Around 502 CICs are facilitating internet services across the country.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the governance of the Company, and in that capacity, the Directors confirm, to the best of their 
knowledge that-

(a)  the financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its 
operations, cash flows and change in equity;

(b)  proper books of account of the Company have been maintained;

(c)  appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and that the 
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

(d)  the International Financial Reporting Standards and  Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards, have been followed in 
preparation of the financial statements and any departure therefrom has been adequately disclosed;

(e)  the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored;

(f)  there is no significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The mobile cellular license of GP 
will expire on November 11, 2011 and will have to be renewed upon fulfillment of certain terms and conditions. However, 
the Management does not believe that the license will not be renewed or that the renewal will be on such terms that might 
have an effect on the business continuity or assumptions of going concern of the Company; 

(g)  the significant deviations from the last year in operating results of the Company have been highlighted and reasons 
thereof have been explained;

(h)  the key operating and financial data for the last five years are annexed.

Shareholding Pattern

Shareholding patterns of the Company as on December 31, 2010 are shown in Annexure-III to this report.

Corporate Governance

In the fast-paced world of telecommunications, vibrant and dynamic corporate governance practices are an essential 
ingredients to success. GP believes in the continued improvement of corporate governance. This in turn lead the Company to 
commit considerable resources and implement international corporate standards in its day-to-day operations. In GP, 
Corporate governance is ensured through a structured process that directs, controls and holds the organization accountable. 
Being a public listed company, the Board of Directors and the Management Team of GP are committed to maintaining effective 
corporate governance through a culture of accountability, transparency, well-understood policies and procedures. A detailed 
compliance report on Corporate Governance as recommended by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Bangladesh is 
shown in Annexure-I to this report.
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     2010    2009

Profit available for appropriation   

Profit/ (Loss) after tax 10,579,176,467   14,968,166,256  

Add: Un-distributed profit brought forward from previous year 26,655,044,251  13,266,605,231  

Total amount available for appropriation  37,234,220,718 28,234,771,487   
Appropriation    

Final Dividend Paid for Previous year (8,101,800,132)  (1,579,727,236) 

Interim Dividend Paid for Current year  (4,726,050,077) -    

Closing Retained Earnings at year end (before proposed Final Dividend) 24,406,370,509  26,655,044,251   
Proposed Final Dividend for the year 2010 (85% cash) (11,477,550,187)  (8,101,800,132) 
(in 2009: 60% cash) 

Retained earnings after proposed dividend 12,928,820,322  18,553,244,119

Enhanced Value of Shareholders’ Investment

In the year under review, Revenue was BDT 74.7 billion (BDT 7,473 crore) with 14.4% increase compared to the previous year. 
The growth in revenue was mainly in voice and data revenues due to subscription growth and revenues from sale of GP branded 
handsets and data cards. Impressive growth in data revenues (64%) partially contributed to this revenue growth. Net Profit 
After Tax (NPAT) was BDT 10.71 billion (1,071 crore) with 14.3% margin compared to BDT 14.97 billion (BDT 1,497 crore) with 
22.9% margin of the previous year. The fall was mainly due to the subsidy on SIM tax of BDT 6.8 billion (BDT 680 crore), partly 
offset by revenue growth. This has also pushed the EBITDA margins down to 49.5 % for 2010 compared to 57.0 % of 2009. 
Earnings per share (EPS) for 2010 stood at BDT 7.93 compared to BDT 12.08 for 2009. Notably, the 2009 EPS was higher due 
to a positive adjustment of BDT 4.12 billion (BDT 412 crore) in income tax after successful listing on the stock exchanges.

The Directors take pleasure in reporting the financial results of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2010 and 
recommend the appropriation as mentioned in the “Appropriation of Profit (excluding Grameenphone IT Ltd.)” table below:

Growth in Contributions to the National Exchequer

Along with its steady revenue growth, GP has been the largest contributor to the National Exchequer in the last few consecutive 
years. The collective contribution to the National Exchequer from inception up to December 2010 was BDT 185 billion (BDT 
18,502 crore). During 2010 alone, the Company contributed BDT 37.15 billion (BDT 3,715 crore) to the National Exchequer 
compared to BDT 30.5 billion (BDT 3,050 crore) of 2009, which represent about 50 % of GP’s total revenue of 2010. Notably, 
despite having lower corporate tax rate, GP has paid BDT 9.0 billion (BDT 900 crore) in corporate taxes during 2010, which was 
BDT 2.5 billion (BDT 250 crore) more compared to 2009.  Such contribution is expected to grow further with the expansion and 
growth of the Company in the days ahead.  

Dividend

For the year ended December 31, 2010 the Board of Directors paid an Interim Cash Dividend @ 35% of the paid-up capital 
amounting to BDT 4,726,050,077 which was BDT 3.5 per share of BDT 10.00 each. The Board of Directors are pleased to 
recommend a Final Cash Dividend @ 85% of the paid-up capital amounting to BDT 11,477,550,187, which is BDT 8.5 per share 
of BDT 10.00 each out of the undistributed profits of the Company for the year 2010, inclusive of the Interim Dividend of 35% 
paid already, thus making a total dividend of BDT 12.00 per share amounting to BDT 16,203,600,264 for consideration and 
approval of the Shareholders for distribution.

The above dividend recommendation is as per the Board approved dividend policy which is “Minimum 50% of the Net Profit 
After Tax to be allocated for dividend payment depending on the financial health and capital requirement of the Company with 
an aim to have a relatively steady growth in per share dividend.”

Board of Directors & Board Meeting

The composition of the Board of Directors who held office during the year was as below:

1. Mr. Sigve Brekke, Telenor Mobile Communications AS, Director & Chairman 

2. Ms. Hilde Tonne, Telenor Mobile Communications AS, Director

3. Mr. Per Erik Hylland, Telenor Mobile Communications AS, Director 

4. Mr. Knut Borgen, Telenor Mobile Communications AS, Director

5. Mr. Snorre Corneliussen, Telenor Mobile Communications AS, Director

6. Ms.  Nurjahan Begum, Grameen Telecom, Director 
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7. Mr. M. Shahjahan, Grameen Telecom, Director

8. Mr. Md. Ashraful Hassan, Grameen Telecom, Director

9. Dr. Jamaluddin Ahmed FCA, Independent Director

During 2010, a total of 9 (nine) Board meetings were held, which met the regulatory requirement in this respect. The 
attendance record of the Directors is shown in Annexure-II to this report.

Directors’ appointment & re-appointment

With regard to the appointment, retirement and re-appointment of Directors, the Company is governed by its Articles of 
Association, the Companies Act. 1994 and other related legislations. Accordingly, the following Directors of the Board will retire 
at the Annual General Meeting. They are, however, eligible for re-appointment:

1. Mr. Sigve Brekke

2. Mr. Per Erik Hylland 

3. Mr. M. Shahjahan

Appointment of Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Tore Johnsen as the new Chief Executive Officer (CEO) with effect from March 01, 2011 
in place of Mr. Oddvar Hesjedal, who served the Company for around three years.  On this occasion, the Board would put on 
record its highest esteem and appreciation for the valuable services rendered by Mr. Oddvar Hesjedal as the CEO and also for 
his dedication to the Company. Under his leadership, the Company has strengthened its position as a market leader with close 
to 30 million subscribers. During his tenure, GP did its Initial Public Offering (IPO), and was listed on stock exchanges. The Board 
also congratulates the incoming CEO Mr. Tore Johnsen and wishes him success in further developing GP’s position as the 
leading Bangladeshi mobile operator.

Appointment of Auditors

As per the Articles of Association, the statutory auditors of the Company, Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered Accountants, a 
member firm of KPMG, shall retire in this AGM. The Firm, being eligible, has offered their willingness to be re-appointed. The 
Board recommends their re-appointment for the year 2011 and to continue till the next AGM at a fee of BDT 1.8 million (Taka 
one million and eight hundred thousand only) plus VAT, subject to relevant regulatory clearance. 

Risks and Concern

GP risk management includes considering both internal and external risks that persist and need to be managed. The Company 
is constantly facing regulatory risks from an unstable regulatory regime.  GP has well defined risk management policies and 
periodic monitoring that act as an effective tool in mitigating various risks to which our businesses is exposed to in the course 
of its day-to-day operations as well as in its strategic actions. In 2010, GP has launched a comprehensive Risk Management 
System. This will be used to achieve appropriate infrastructure, application of logical and systematic method of establishing the 
context, identifying, analysing, evaluating, treating, monitoring and communicating strategic risks. The system will enable the 
company to register risk on real time basis and in accordance with risk management framework.

Diverse Awards - Mark of Recognition

The year 2010 was brilliant for GP as it won notable awards during the period. Some of them are mentioned below.

GP has received two prestigious awards in 2010 for its “Published Financial Statements/Annual Report 2009” in the category 
of Communication & IT from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) and the South Asian Federation of 
Accountants (SAFA). The esteemed awards have given us recognition of our demonstrated commitment to Transparency, 
Accountability and Corporate Governance which will certainly strengthen the confidence of our shareholders as well as 
stakeholders. 

GP won the esteemed e-India Award for e-Governance/ m-Governance initiatives of the year 2010 for its Mobile Train Ticketing 
Services. GP and CARE jointly won the 'Chairperson's Appreciation Award (Jury Award)' for the project “Tothyo Tori" (Information 
Boat) in the category of e-Enterprise and Livelihood. Besides, GP had been awarded as one of the "Asia's Best Brand" at CMO 
Asia Awards.
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Sigve Brekke
Chairman

February 06, 2011

GP also won both "Brand" and "People" awards of the Telenor Group. This is for the first time in the history of the Telenor Group 
that an individual Business Unit had received two accolades in the same year.

Outlook 2011

Looking ahead from successes of the last 14 years, we can reasonably expect the year 2011 to be hopeful of further growth 
and progress. The Telecom industry of Bangladesh is approaching to a new era with innovation and new technology. With 
the upcoming introduction of 3G, on going 2G renewal process and the prevailing regulatory environment, we would be in 
new dynamics with a new player in the market. Our industry has never been so competitive and complex before. At GP, holding 
on to the market leadership will be our priority no matter how challenging it is. If we can tap the rural markets with the help of 
our relentless services and ever growing innovations, we believe that 2011 would be prospective for GP. 

However, as said elsewhere in this report, the unpredictable regulatory environment remains as challenge for the Company to 
plug in for future. In this aspect, the proposed guidelines for 2G license renewal from BTRC, will, if implemented, create an 
extremely difficult situation for the mobile operators and for the financial markets.  We expect that the Government will reject 
this high renewal fees. 
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wcÖq †kqvi‡nvìvie„›`,

MÖvgxY‡dvb wjt-Gi 14Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq cwiPvjKgÊjx, e¨e¯’vcb ibwvú¤vK† |BvbvR ZMv^¯ K‡Bvem i`‡vbcvA K‡_† ¶c ivgvA I ¶c©…ZK-v  L‡iwvZ 0102 ,i^¤m‡Ww 13 
 —š¨ZA vigvA i‡c† Z‡iK bcv’¯cD ¨bR iY‡nÖM I b`vg‡ybA ,vbPe‡ew i`‡vbcvA b`e‡ZwÖc i`›‡„eK¶xibw seG b`e‡ZwÖc ixjÊgKjvPiwc nmxYieew K©_wvA Z¶wxibw ii‡Qe ßvgm

Avbw›`Z|

2010 Ñ mvd‡j¨i Av‡iv GKwU eQi 

 i‡ÕK ©kú¯ KjdjBvg iK‡nvÖM bqjwgw 79.92 iQe G |bvd‡YxgvÖM jiK ivc iQe qg¨jdvm UwKG vi‡vA q‡`w ¨ag ib‡©RA KnvÖM bzZb kwe† Iib‡qjwgw 7.6 G-0102
 ivZjdm BG iK‡RvA Blybvg gK eyL b`wm† ,Îvgœc^ ̄jQw ¨jdvm BG bLZ i‡K “iï vÎvh bLh bvd‡YxgvÖM j‡vm 7991 |M‡vf 7.34 viKZk Q‡q‡owvu ̀ivqk† U©K‡vg ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM
 vdvbyg i`‡vgvA o‡yRiQe I¡Ë‡m Äj‡v¨P iZwxb©_A Kówgvm seG Q‡Q‡Šuc† K‡sA By` o‡e† qvA i`‡vgvA xqvhybA em‡nw i×w„eÖc viKZk _‡vm BKG |jQwi‡c† Z‡iK v—šPw v_K

Ae¨vnZ MwZ‡Z †e‡o‡Q| Z‡e, wm‡gi Dci Av‡ivwcZ Ki †gvevBj wk‡íi Dbœq‡bi c‡_ GL‡bv GKwU cÖavb Aš—ivq n‡q Av‡Q Ges Av‡iv †ewk wewb‡qvM‡K wbi“rmvwnZ Kivi 
Q‡i‡K K‡ZwM ib‡qve—¯ve œc^¯ ik‡`‡vjsve jvURwWw ii‡vKim kwvcvkvc  k−_| 

 ¨ag ivmvA q‡bw UwRK‡v¨c ÕbavueÔ nmUm‡Ûv¨n i¨j‡~gí^¯ ¨Yc bzZb G-0102 |Q‡i‡K ZôwZwÖc i`‡vgvA e‡m‡nw xØ›ØZwÖcA i‡vRve vem† I ¨Yc em ebfwA seG vem† ib‡vg P”v©e‡m
 Kqwvmev¨e i`‡vgvA q‡`w ¨ag ivôZwÖc Ótjw UwBvA bvd‡YxgvÖMÒ bwvú¤vK† bzZb qvbvKjwvg ^¯Rbw ©Y~ú¤m I siwvqk† vg‡vVvKeA |p„`ym vi‡vA Q‡q‡n bv’¯eA i`‡vgvA j‡ÂvgvÖM q‡`w

cwiwa‡K Av‡iv m¤cÖmvwiZ Ki‡Z †c‡iwQ|         

 ii‡vìvn‡ivqk† 000,001 qvÖc e‡m‡nw Ê`bvg ivem† I vZQ”^¯ ,¨ZMybvA ZwÖc ib‡BvA |bvd‡YxgvÖM jiK ivc UwiQe vi‡yc iG-0102 e‡m‡nw bwvú¤vK† ³yfvKjwvZ Ä‡P‡·G K÷
Kv‡Q wb‡R‡`i  ¨bR i`‡vgvA bRvq‡vA ivfm Yivavm K©lwve Kdwvggqbw q‡bw i`‡ivìvn‡ivqk† K¨LsmKawv©em ik‡`† m‡vg byR iQe G |bvd‡YxgvÖM Q‡q‡n g¶m Z‡iK YvgÖc

 Î‡¶† ivqI`† q‡Swye ¨cvÖc i`‡ivìvn‡ivqk† BemG ivA |bvd‡YxgvÖM Q‡q‡n ZmwskÖc I¨bR ivqµwÖc bv`Öc ksv¨fj ¨a‡g iq‡gm gZZ“ª` ¨ev¢¤m |jQw vbUN ©Y~c¡Z“i¸ —š¨ZA
†Kv¤úvwbi mvg_©¨ Ges cÖwZkÖ“wZi i¶vi e¨vcv‡i mZ¨wbôZvi mv¶¨ enb K‡i|

 `cvibw ,¨’¯v^¯ ,vZ×eqv` Kqwvme¨e |Q‡mvA L‡i† bv`eA ¨Mvh‡L−j‡D Bievie Y‡v¨jKRvgm I voxµ ,Zw„‹¯sm ,¨nZwH ik‡`‡vjsve q‡`w ¨ag ig‡µ©hvK xLygœbfwew ivZ bvd‡YxgvÖM
 zU m·‡G ,iÝú¯ im‡gM† bvqkwG _Dvm gZ11 |Qwj‡P i‡K bjxkybA ivbcv’¯e¨e ib‡vgP”D vigvA Y‡v¨jK i`‡xivP©gK/v©ZK©gK seG )BmGmGPBG( ke‡iwc I vËcvibw ,v’¯eA

‡vm ii‡vKim g‡¨avg ig‡µ©hvK ¨bv¨bA I gvÖMvÖc† )BvAzUG( bkg‡idbB   |œYz¶A QwL‡i† K‡vZMwvh‡nm _   

Av_©-mvgvwRK †cÖ¶vcU Ñ 2010

 zQKw zQKw ZMvg‡vVvKeA I ZwUvN r¨y`ew UKÖc |©Y~c¡Z“i¸ —š¨ZA jQw I¨bR iZwxb©_A ik‡`‡vjsve vZ‡g iZwxb©_A ¦kew Uwjvm 0102 _‡c ib‡VM k`‡vjsve jvURwWw I  bzZb UwKG
 ×w„eÖc cwWwRw ik‡`† i‡Qe©_A 0102-9002 |KPveZwB jQw KP~m KZwb‰©_A Mvfikwe† iQe G ZxZ¨e Zwxùvª`yg I vZjxkZw’¯wA ii‡vRve Rwuyc K‡`w lk† ii‡Qe I¡Ë‡m v¨mgm

wQj 5.8% hvi Ab¨Zg PvwjKvkw³ wQj †mev I wkí LvZ| A_©bxwZ we‡klÁ I we‡k−lKMY AvMvgx eQi¸‡jv‡Z A_©‰bwZK Dbœq‡bi e¨vcv‡i Avkvev` e¨³ K‡i‡Qb| Avš—R©vwZK 
’¯eA Z’¯wym BG iZwxb©_A k‡`‡vjsve ivKim qvZMwvh‡nm ivj‡¸bvôZwÖc v a‡i ivL‡Z †Póv Pvwj‡q hv‡”Q|  

 em‡nw iG-)ev¨K( k`‡vjsve eA bkq‡mwvm‡v¨A ivg¨yRbK |jQw YivK iM‡Ø‡D ¨bR i`‡lybvg iq‡vA œgbw I Zgwxm vh jxkZw’¯wA jQw ivRve i¨Y‡c qxbRvq‡Öc¨Zbw G-0102
 vL`† q‡n Äj‡v¨P oe gZ¨bA iZwxb©_A Kówgvm vLvi Y‡¿šqbw ivRve xLyg©ŸaD BG |Q‡j‡P o‡e† i‡vn kwe† Iik‡svZk 02 gv` i¨Y‡c¨`vL zQKw bvaÖc bvaÖc i‡Qe ZwÖc xqvhybA

eG Mvq‡bwew Z“ª` I rn„e Z‡vg‡vVvKeA bneiwc ,³wk ,r¨y`ew |Q‡q‡`w |bqœbD ik‡`‡vjsve Q‡iK i©fbw icD ib‡V©Mbyc iv’¯e¨e avk‡iwc iK s  

†Uwj‡hvMv‡hvM wk‡íi wPÎ

 V‡D G-811 K‡_† 031 bv’¯eA ik‡`‡vjsve q‡sKwsv¨i xcv¨e¦kew Î‡¶† ivKv_ Z‘¯Öc  ©KvqIUb† xqvhybA 0102-9002 b`e‡ZwÖc ³wyhÖc ¨_Z KZwv©R—švA ig‡vivd† KZwb‰©_A ¦kew
 |b©Zeiwc Kew−ceˆ Q‡b‡G qvivabexR seG Q‡q‡UwN bqvZg¶ i`‡vZ I Q‡i‡K ³yhsm K‡lybvg ik‡`† vh ,ZvL Mvh‡vMvh‡jwU† ik‡`‡vjsve mrD bvaÖc gZ¨bA iZwœbD BG |Q‡m‡G
 ßwvÖc vem‡¨’¯v^¯ I v¶kw ¨bR iY‡ivavmbR YxgvÖM seG vZqvnm Z‡×w„e vZg¶ b`vcrD Z‡lw…K I íkw ,ZvL vem† vhÑvaewym Ub‡ivU›B Q‡q‡`w Q‡Šuc† Q‡vK il‡ybvg Yivavm íkw BG

mnRZi K‡i‡Q|   

wvu` v¨Lsm Uvg† iK‡nvÖM bvd† jBvevg† k‡`‡vjsve i‡^¤m‡Ww iG-0102 o‡q‡Q 68.64 wgwjq‡b, d‡j †gvevBj wk‡í †Uwj‡WbwmwU cÖvq kZKiv 40 fv‡Mi Dc‡i †cuŠ‡Q‡Q| G eQi 
†`‡k 6wU †gvevBj |Q‡i‡K ³yh KnvÖM bzZb bqjwgw 12.61 bwvú¤vK†

 k‡`‡vjsve e‡Z ,gZ¨bA ivj‡¸k`† vKv_ q‡Qwcw q‡P‡em K‡_† K`w ii‡vne¨e Ub‡ivU›B k`‡vjsve I¡Ë‡m vqIvc ×w„e e‡vfKcv¨e v¨Lsm ixivKivne¨e bvd† jBvevg† i‡Qe 5 ZM
ivU›B k‡`† b‡vg©Ze |i‡vc Z‡h† ë‡vc ÎPw BG j‡n yjvP ³wyhÖc Rwª_w ‡bU e¨enviKvixi msL¨v i‡q‡Q kZKiv mv‡o Qq kZvsk| 

†i¸‡jUwi cwi‡ek
 G-0102 |Q‡i‡K ZewvfÖc e‡vfKcv¨e K‡ke‡iwc Kqwvme¨e gµ©hvK zQKw Zxn„M K„©ZK v’¯sm xivKY¿šqbw iQe G |jûevbUN —š¨ZA jQw ke‡iwc iwUj‡¸i† ik‡`‡vjsve G-0102

 Z‡vL Mvh‡vMvh‡jwU† k‡`‡vjsve xbavk‡sm BG |Q‡q‡n vbvA xbavk‡sm G-)GUwew( 1002 bBvA Mvh‡vMvh‡jwU† k`‡vjsve I¡Ë‡m vZawvi‡ew i`‡ZowR í‡kw Mvh‡vMvh‡jwU† e¨emv 
|Q‡q‡`w q‡owve KwuzS iviK
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 bqveb Zewv—¯Öc |i‡K kc† ev—¯Öc vg‡vVvK bqveb UwKG Q‡vK iq‡jvY¿šg Mvh‡vMvh‡jwU† I KvW Bi‡K vb vbPvj‡vA _‡vm ii‡Ui‡vcA jBvevg† vb‡vK† mwivAUwew K‡`wlk† iG-0102
 ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM ,h† Q‡q‡n vq`† Z½wB vi‡vA |Q”‡n vq`† Z½wB j‡e e‡n viK qv`vA K‡_† QvK ii‡Ui‡vcvA jBvevg† UwivP ivjW b©Kwvg bqjwew 6.1 Uvg† Z…K©hva seG kwe† —š¨ZA dw
 Z^šwgm :bgh† ,Q‡q‡i bv`cD ©Y~c¡Z“i¸  zQKw BvovQ Yieew ßv©hc Z‡vg‡vVvK bqveb |e‡n Z‡iK bv`Öc dw kwe† K‡vZ q‡P† i`‡iUi‡vcA ¨bA BvZ kwe† zZn‡h† ¨jdvm Kqwvme¨e

vA Yvgiwc ivZqðbwA bvg¨`ew vh ,`wv¨ZB )IbGfwgG( iUi‡vcA ©KvqIUb† jvq©zPvf jBvevg† ,)cwgGmG( ivqIvc U©K‡vg U›K‡dwbwMmw ,sÝwm‡Bvj ‡iv evwo‡q w`‡”Q|

 UwKG mwivAUwew K‡`w il‡k† iG-0102 ,i^¤m‡Ww ¨bR iviK ³©yf—šA i`‡Álk‡ew KZwv©R—švA ¨¶‡j iZ‡‘¯Öc vg‡vVvK Ým‡Bvj Rwª_w |Q”‡n Z¶wjiwc ZwM ixa IÎ‡¶† iG-Rwª_w
 ivne¨e i³wyhÖc Rwª_w k‡`‡vjsve h† qvh vSve† Z‡G |e‡n viK bÈe Ým‡Bvj I gvªUKú¯† g‡¨avg ig‡vjbw ,h† jQw Z½wB bgG Z‡vh ;i‡K kvKÖc )BvAIB( ÷i‡vU›B eA bkÖc‡·G

|e‡n Z¤̂wjew vi‡vA

 il‡ybvg ij‡ÂvgvÖM i‡K lk‡ew ,K‡xôvM‡bR ª`iw` j‡d iG |bwqvgK iK Zcwvi‡vA icD iG-gmw ivKim Ij‡vm 0102 vZ‡g ii‡Qe ZM I¡Ë‡m vóP† YvÖcvA i`‡iUi‡vcA jBvevg†
Rb¨ †gvevBj †mev †cuŠ‡Q †`Iqv KóKi n‡q c‡o‡Q| 

 —š¨ZA bqYÖc vjvgZwxb xqv’¯©Nx` I Z’¯wym UwKG ¨bRm† i‡vc Z‡iK Mvq‡bwew kwe† vi‡vA Z‡vh vj‡¸bwvú¤vK† jBvevg† Z‡³wyhÖc I m©fwvm bzZb bzZb seG ¨bR iZwMÖMA ií‡kw BG
|Q‡o‡c q‡n ©Y~c¡Z“i¸

ivRve Rwuyc i‡Rb KG Ñ 0102

2010 mv‡j XvKv ÷K G·‡PÄ (wWGmB)-Gi Uvb©Ifvi wQj 4,009.9 wewjqb UvKv, hv 2009 mv‡ji 1,475.3 wewjqb UvKvi †P‡q 171.80% †ewk| 2009-Gi †gvU evRvi 
 |jQwL‡i† ów„`©KZm icI ii‡vRve Rwuyc o‡yRiQe )mwBmG( bkgwK ÄP‡·G Ûv¨A RUwiwDKwmw |qvKvU bqjwew 805,3 qvovu` Yvgiwc iG G-0102 o‡e† %18.48 K‡_† baj~g
 ¨j~g i‡vRve Rwuyc ik‡`† i^¤m‡Ww 91 iG-0102 |b‡vA bavk‡sm ve_A/I b©Zeiwc b‡ybvK-gqbw RUwiwDKwmw BS‡vg S‡vg ¶c©…ZK Y¿šqbw G-0102 Z‡Lvi ivRe vjL•„k ii‡vRve
 ivqIb† j‡zZ vjvgZwxb ó©`wbwym zQKw K‡¶c„©ZK Y¿šqbw i‡ÕK `veZwÖc iG YMxivKMvq‡bwew viPyL j‡M† o‡c %17.6 ve U›q‡c 155 KP~m ¨j~g iG-BmGWw |U‡N bZc Z“ª` iK‡P~m
 iG-)IcwBvA( ev—¯Öc-YM Kgw_vÖc K‡bwvú¤vK† Uw8 ¶c©…ZK Y¿šqbw |qvovu` b‡qjwgw 3.3 q‡n Y¸Øw qvÖc o‡e† v¨Lsm iG-)Iew( ©mvbI iwvqkwdwbwe† G-0102 |q`† cvP ¨bR

¤vK† Uw52 seG i‡K ³yfvKjwvZ iwmvim K‡bwvú¤vK† Uw2 ,q`† b`vg‡ybA |q`† b`vg‡ybA ivovQ ivqk† UBvi K‡bwvú

 Kcv¨e ¨j‡~g ivqk† ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM Iic ivqIb† j‡zZ bB-Kj |qn vqIb† j‡zZ ÓbB-KjÒ K‡_† icD ii‡vqk† U›g‡m−c† bqjwgw 66 qvÖc ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM iev±‡A 82 iG-0102
 Uú¯ K‡ivqk† ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM xqvhybA vbk©`‡bw iG-mwBmG Z‡©xZeic seG qvc ×w„e ¨j~g ii‡vqk† ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM M‡vfg_Öc iiwvq“ªed† iG-0102 |bwqn Z¶wjiwc b©Zeiwc vb‡vK†
 i^¤m‡Ww 12 iG-0102 Z‡x©Zeic |Q‡q‡i xLygœgbw Z‡ZwM ixa ¨j~givqk† e‡vfKÖMwgvm nm×w„e ¨j~g ¨a‡g S‡vg BK‡_† bLZ |qn xLygœgbw ¨j~g ii‡vqk† j‡iK Ziw—švbv’¯ U‡©K‡vg
 Ä‡P‡·G K÷ gvÖMÆP seG vKvU 0.781 jQw Ä‡P‡·G K÷ vKvX ¨j~g ii‡vqk† ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM Z‡“iï ij‡vm 0102 |qn vbvA qvZIvA ivbK†-vPe† Zgwqbw ivqk† ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM
 Ä‡P‡·G K÷ vKvX G-0102 ,i^¤m‡Ww 13 |vKvU 5.693 Ä‡P‡·G K÷ gvÖMÆP seG 0.593 Ä‡P‡·G K÷ vKvX jQw ¨j~g P”v©e‡m ii‡vqk† iQe G ,vKvU 6.881 jQw

  |ksvZk 5.9 ib‡aj~g ivRve Uvg† iÄ‡P‡·G K÷ vKvX vh ,vKvU bqjwew 9.133 jQw baj~g ivRve ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM

vem† I ¨Yc xbev¢™D

w  Q‡vK il‡ybvg Yivavm jKm —š‡vÖc œbfwew ik‡`† |Q‡mvA i‡K bjvc vKgw~f ©Y~c¡Z“i¸ —š¨ZA bvd† jBvevg† Z‡bvA b©Zeiwc KPveZwB Z‡Zwxb©_A I Rvgm xcv¨e¦ke MÖvgxY‡dvb  
 |Q”‡vh i‡K RvK ZqbwZwÖc ¨bR ivmvA q‡bw vem† I ¨Yc em qxbRvq‡Öc I bzZb¨Zbw bvd‡YxgvÖM Z‡Lvi Q‡vK K‡KnvÖM |Q‡q‡`w Q‡Šuc† v’¯e¨e Mvh‡vMvh‡jwU† Kbwyav©em B¨a‡gvZ‡B
 vZ³yhsm BG |Q‡L‡i† Znv¨eA bjvc Zw“ÖkZwÖc ivZ bwvú¤vK† Z‡Lvi Q‡vK ivbev¢¤m I œc^¯ i`‡vZ seG Z‡Lvi ³yhsm K‡lybvg g‡¨avg ivem† œbfwew i`‡vgvA i‡a iQe 41 ZMew
 ¨bR i`‡lybvg ij‡ÂvgvÖM ik‡`‡vjsve iQe G |bveMe† vi‡vA Q‡iK K‡×w„eÖc KZwb‰©_A ik‡`† seG ×e¨KH Q‡Lvi K‡Rvgm ,ixfM vi‡vA Q‡iK K‡©Kú¤m ivK¨ag il‡ybvg

UwKG g‡vb ÓbavueÒ nmUm‡Ûv¨n bvd‡YxgvÖM i¨j‡~gí^¯ iwZˆ e‡vflk‡ew w RK‡v¨c bzZb ¨bR i`‡qwvmev¨e ª`z¶ g‡vb ÓvZKGÒ seG RK‡v¨c bzZb b‡q G‡mwQ Avgiv| Awfbe †mevi 
 ÓivKvª̈U WwveÒ I ÓivKv¨ªU gUwÒ Kk©`‡bw bv’¯eA g‡¨avg ib‡vd† jBvevg† ,)Ubwgw jÛ‡ve( k‡v¨m ¨bR i`‡KnvÖM WBc‡Öcw ,smwBvÖc KgwvbBvW Q‡m‡G q‡bw bvd‡YxgvÖM e‡m‡nw ksA

vA Qwi‡K yjvP Im©fwvm ÓsKwv¨ªU owvMÒ e‡vfK¨RwYwve iQe G |m©fwvm giv|

 WBc‡Öcw |zÜe I bcvA ,Rnm _‡vm iG-m¨yRWw ÑRK‡v¨c i¨j‡~g xqkvm Uw4 Qwi‡K vYlvN† vigvA G-0102 e‡m‡nw ksA ivóP‡Öc Znv¨eA i`‡vgvA Z‡`w vaewym P”v©e‡m i`‡KnvÖM
 Z‡iK ZýwPw bia ii‡vne¨e g‡¨avg ivh ,¨ave‡Rnm —š¨ZA bv¨−c mBvÖc BG bzZb |vaewym bkÖM‡Bvg Rnm I vaewym b©Zeiwct—švA Q‡q‡i Z‡vj‡¸RK‡v¨c BG iwZˆ ¨bR i`‡KnvÖM

|bvavgm xqªkvm I vim† e‡n ¨bR i`‡KnvÖM ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM seG e‡n vaewym

MÖvnK †mev Ñ Kv‡Q _vKvi Avb›`

 Bq‡`w m©fwvm I ±vWvÖc† vj‡vf Îvgyaï |©Y~c¡Z“i¸ q‡P‡em BKnvÖM Q‡vK ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM |VwvKewvP i¨j‡dvm i`‡vgvA BvóP‡Öc ib‡`wZwÖc Z‡`w Q‡Šuc† vem† vj‡vf vi‡vA ¨bR i`‡KnvÖM
 bvd‡YxgvÖM |qvªcfwA ZMjkŠK† ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM BviK b©RA mv¦kew i`‡vZ g‡¨avg ivjvZ† i‡K ne©_A I iyag vi‡vA K‡vZÁfwA ivKv_ Q‡vK i`‡vgvA sie ,qb viK kwyL K‡KnvÖM
 ib‡vg¦kew j‡vm 8002 bvd‡YxgvÖM ¨¶‡j ivbcv’¯e¨e )bkKv¨ivU›B( Mvh‡vMvh† i`‡KnvÖM e‡vfiK©hvK vi‡vA |i‡K yjvP ivU›m† jK ivÈN 42 g_Öc©em ik‡`† j‡vm 9991
 qµew _‡vm BKG vj‡¸h† ,Q‡q‡i )dGmwcwRw( RwBvÂv¨«d ivU›m† bvd‡YxgvÖM Uw07 seG )mwcwRw( ivU›m† bvd‡YxgvÖM Uw81 vovQG |i‡K bqve—¯ve bkDjwm ±v¨UbK KËwfw-cwBvA
 ©KvqIUb† bkDewª÷wWw Kbwyav¨ZA UwKG Q‡q‡i ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM q‡bw ivjBU‡iw 000,021 xcv¨ek`† ,IvovQG |Q”‡vh i‡K RvK ¨bR ivb‡vUg† v`nwvP i`‡KnvÖM e‡m‡nw ª`›K‡vem† I
 )mGIcw( mjm† eA U›q‡c Uw000,081 _‡vm ii‡UDewª÷wWw Uw79 |i‡K Mvh‡vMvh† ¨bR ivbK† ±vWvÖc† ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM KnvÖM kwe† Iib‡qjwgw 7 b`wZwÖc b‡vLh† vg‡vVvKeA I

|jb‡v¨P bkDewª÷wWw ZVwMsmym i`‡vgvA q‡bw

vme¨e bzZb bxavZIvA ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM

1. MÖvgxY‡dvb AvBwU wjt

 Mv¨`‡D bzZb i`‡vgvA |vaewym em bzZb ¨Zbw QwmvA q‡bw vigvA b‡qœbD ib‡vgbexR il‡ybvg |q‡MwG Bqgmem bvd‡YxgvÖM Î‡¶† ivmvA q‡bw vem† ebfwA k‡`‡vjsve
MÖvgxY‡dvb AvBwU wjt (wRwcAvBwU) evsjv‡`‡ki Dbœq‡bi mn‡hvwMZvq |Yinv`D j¡¾D iZw“ÖkZwÖc i`‡vgvA

 i‡ÕK “iï gK©hvK G-0102 ,jªcwG 1 ZM UwBvA cwRw |qn ZôwZwÖc 0102 ,iwvqybvR 82 ZM vh ,bwvú¤vK† UwKG bxavbvKjwvg ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM ©Y~ú¤m UwBvA cwRw
MÖvgxY‡dv‡bi AvBwU AeKvVv‡gv e¨e¯’vcbv, mvwf©m I mgvavb w`‡q Avm‡Q| eZ©gv‡b GLv‡b i‡q‡Q cÖvq 359 Rb Kg©KZ©v-Kg©Pvix, AvMvgx‡Z hv Av‡iv e„w× Kiv n‡e|

 i‡xa i‡xa Z‡vLíkw ¨bv¨bA q‡`w ¡Z“i¸ icD ivj‡¸bvôZwÖc K©_wvA I sKwsv¨e k‡`‡vjsve |vigvA Q”wvc Z‡L`† vbev¢¤m Kcv¨e k‡`‡ew seG k‡`† e‡m‡nw bwvú¤vK† UwBvA
 iG c“ÖM ibjwU† |i`‡vgvA Q‡q‡i vbíKiwc iviK RvK ¡Z‡iwv`xksA _‡vm ivj‡¸bwvú¤vK† UwBvA Ii‡Bve ik‡`† |i`‡vgvA Q‡q‡i vbíKiwc ivqI`† q‡owQ vZ¶` i`‡vgvA

   |Qwi‡K i¶v^¯ ³wyP _‡vm ic‡“ÖM ibjwU† I ÷vKWªe ibjwU† ,U·b† ibjwU† vigvA B¨a‡gvZ‡B ¨a‡g

vÎvg bzZb KG vj‡n ³yh Ñ vme¨e jm‡jvn† .2
 bzZb KG vi‡vA Q‡i‡K ³yh Z‡vme¨e ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM iQe G UwíKÖc siwvqk† vg‡vVvKeA qvZIvA iq‡vme¨e jm‡jvn† ¨¶‡j ii‡vne¨e gËv©e‡m i`‡ú¤m bvg©Ze ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM

R i`‡iUi‡vcA gKjwU† ik‡`‡vjsve xqvhybvbk©`‡bw iÕmwivAUwew |vÎvg vK iG BK‡_† jvm 0102 |Q‡q‡n viK Kj~gvZ¨ave siwvqk† vg‡vVvKeA ¨b R ïi“ K‡iwQ Avgiv| 
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 tjw )k`‡vjsve( vUvqRwvA ;WU‡gwjw k`‡vjsve Ûv¨eWªe mj‡iv¨qI iR‡A vigvA B¨bRG ivA |e‡iK Zðwbw ivne¨e BmKU† i`‡ú¤m qxZvR ik‡`‡vjsve Mv¨`‡D G i`‡vgvA
 ³wyP _‡vm iG-WU‡gwjw ivMv’šÖM ÎPwKvj‡vA K„` seG )`iwvqI i©e‡~c( tjw k`‡vjsve jU‡ivqG ;tjw ÝkK‡bwDgwK bqvjvjsve ;)Ksjwvjsve( tjw k`‡vjsve gKmviI ;)ewi(

 |Qwi‡K i¶v^¯

n~gmvem† K©_wvA .3
 q‡n ©Y~c¡Z“i¸ Bg‡µ Uwqlew ib‡`‡bj† Yivavm b`›wb`ˆ il‡ybvg |bvd‡YxgvÖM Q‡i‡K YnÖM vbíKiwc x`vqg‡©Nx` b‡qœbD ib‡vgbexR il‡ybvg g‡¨avg ivg‡vVvKeA bvd† jBvevg†
 |Q”‡n e¢¤m viK œbú¤m vj‡¸RvK —švµsm-b`‡bj† Yivavm ¨bv¨bA seG qµew-qµ ,avk‡iwc jew g‡¨avg ib‡vd† jBvevg† e‡m‡nw bvavgm bzZb KG Î‡¶‡G ivA ,Q‡VD
 |vaewym iM‡vf‡cD vem† ib‡`‡bj† g‡¨avg ij‡Bvevg† K‡lybvg kwe† b‡v’¯ kwe† vi‡vA Q‡q‡`w K‡i`‡vgvA ©KvqIUb† bkDewª÷wWw I v¨Lsm KnvÖM rn„e ,³wyhÖc Z¶wxic i`‡vgvA
 |vigvA Qwq‡c† vovm Kcv¨e K‡_† QvK il‡ybvg Î‡¶† in‡ÖMsm UK‡Uw iiwvUj jewnZ Yv¨jK seG qµ UK‡Uw ivjL† I bªU† ,avk‡iwc jew g‡¨avg ib‡vd† jBvevg† G-0102

MÖvgxY‡dv‡bi wej‡c mvwf©‡mi gva¨‡g †gvevBj †dvb A_ev Avgv‡`i AvDU‡j‡Ui mvnvh¨ wewfbœ BDwUwjwU wej cwi‡kva Ki‡Z cvi‡Q MÖvnKMY| G eQi Avgiv wb‡q G‡mwQ 
 I vem† ebfwA vi‡vA ¨bR ib‡`‡bj† Q‡mvA q‡bw bvd‡YxgvªM Z‡xgvMvA Z‡iK Zðwbw vaewym P”v©e‡m il‡ybvg ik‡`† |Ókv¨Kewvg†Ò Ûv¨ªe bzZb UwKG ¨bR ib‡`‡bj†

Gg-Kgvm© mvwf©m| 

Ae¨vnZ wewb‡qvM

 vaewym gËv©e‡m kwvcvkvc iviK Yi~c K‡v`nwvP i`‡vZ vh ,i‡K vkvA ©KvqIUb† vj‡vf vi‡vA seG vem† I ¨Yc em bzZb¨Zbw Bqgm em viKnvÖM ib‡vd† jBvevg† ,h† bwvR vigvA
wbwðZ Ki‡e| Avi G Rb¨B MÖvnK‡`i gvbm¤úbœ †bUIqvK© Kvfv‡iR cÖ`vb KÕ‡i †Uwj‡hvMv‡hvM wk‡í wb‡Ri kxl©¯’vb a‡i ivLvi Rb¨ MÖvgxY‡dvb Zvi †bUIqv‡K© wewb‡qvM Ae¨vnZ 
†i‡L‡Q| Avgv‡`i Ae¨vnZ wewb‡qv‡Mi cwigvY 157.96 wewjqb UvKv (15,796 †KvwU UvKv), †hLv‡b 2010 mv‡jB 8.46 wewjqb (846 †KvwU UvKv)-GiI †ewk UvKv wewb‡qvM 

 v¨Lsm iG mGUwew Uvg† b‡v’¯ Uw732,7 qvqIn Zcwv’¯ mGUwew bzZb Uw 334 xcv¨ek`† iQe G |b‡qœbD bvg ©K‡vqIUb† Z…—¯ew xcv¨ek`† I ×w„e vZg¶Yiva ¨_Z yaï Q‡q‡n viK
`vwo‡q‡Q 13,097wU |      

Avgv‡`i Kg©x Ñ Avgv‡`i Me©

 BvZ ,jebR xevag† bRvq‡Öc Y‡i~c vjvgZwxb I ¨kÏ‡D ,¨¶j ibwvú¤vK† Ñi‡K mv¦kew bvd‡YxgvÖM |G-736,4 Q‡q‡owvu` v¨Lsmx©gK Zi©gK Uvg† ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM l‡k† iQe G †miv 
†gavex‡`i  Y‡nÖM Mv¨`‡D œbfwew b‡VM Zw…‹¯sm Ui‡v©c‡K p„` seG vLvi qvRe Zwxb iM‡vh‡ym KËwfwqv¨b I bvgm Î‡¶† iM‡vq‡bw |jxkœZh bwvú¤vK† Z‡×w„e vZ¶` i`‡vZ I Mvq‡bw

qw−cgG seG Q‡i‡K Yiv©abw mvg 6 q‡owve K‡_† mvg 4 UwzQ bxjvK¡Z…Zvg bvd‡YxgvÖM q‡n ZYwvÖcybA —š‡v×mw ii‡vKim |×eivKx½A vigvA ‡`i  q‡`w vaewym ivqK† W† ¨bR i`‡ïkw 
 ßvÖcivKawvÖMA seG ©Y~cvZgm ivÛR† UwKG i‡vRve-iwKvP ik‡`‡vjsve K‡bvd‡YxgvÖM Mvh‡ym ßv©hc ib‡VM ivqiwv¨K _‡vm Bm† I Zw…‹¯sm Ui‡v©c‡K KËwfw-Ý©g‡divc |Q‡mvA

wb‡qvMKvix cÖwZôv‡bi gh©v`vq DbœxZ K‡i‡Q| BDjobs.com-Gi Ò†e÷ Ggc−qvi A¨vIqvW© di 2010Ó †c‡q‡Q MÖvgxY‡dvb|   

 vZÁfwA bzZb KG ij‡’¯©gK Ñ mDvncwRw

 eÜveke‡iwc ii‡vK¨Zwm g_Öc©em ik‡`‡vjsve seG KxZÖc i¨¶‡j r¨lewf ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM vkKb ib‡ef BG |qn viK bavØ‡D mDvncwRw qjv©hvK bvaÖc bzZb ibwvú¤vK† G-0102
 |Q‡q‡n viK vkKb im‡DvncwRw ¨¶‡j ivia j‡zZ K‡vZQ”^ ̄I ¡ZebfwA seG ×w„e vZqxbgb I vZjxkbR„m ij‡’¯©gK |UwG bqve—¯ve gZ¨bA iœc‡^ ̄ivKv_ R‡yem ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM |bef
 bzZb ©Y~ú¤m IK½wvA im‡dwA BG |e‡iK ZqwvZg¶ seG e‡vove nÖMvA iR‡vK i`‡xivP©gK-v©ZK©gK vkKb ib‡ef BG Zjw^¤m-v’¯e¨e ivme gKiBKG ¨bR ij‡Km I bv’¯ ³y¥bD
 Znv¨eA ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM Î‡¶† ivmvA q‡bw vem† I ¨Yc em jxkbR„m I ebfwA ,j’¯©gK eÜveke‡iwc bzZb iG I mDvncwRw |vYiva im‡dwA Õ³ygÔ I ÕbxnRMvKÔ Q‡q‡i Z‡vh ,ib‡ia
 qvbjzZ ib‡ef bvK‡h† ¨bA |i‡vc Z‡iK RvK m‡e Kvj† K¨Lsm Y¸Øw qvÖc q‡P† ib‡ef bvK‡h† ZMv_Öc b‡vLh† ,bef xqªkvm UwKG mDvn cwRw |KxZÖc ©Y~c©hcrvZ KG ivóP‡Öc

GLv‡b 60% Kg Kve©b WvB-A·vBW wbtmiY n‡e|

mvgvwRK `vqe×Zv Ñ mgv‡Ri cÖwZ KZ©e¨ 

 j‡d ivh ,¨jzZgm ivem† KRwvgvm BK‡_† K`w Kb‡A n~gmvem† jBvevg† i`‡vgvA |bwvú¤vK† UwKG ZMybA ZwÖc ib‡BvA seG jxkv×ªk I jxk¡Zqwv` ZwÖc iR‡vgm bvd‡YxgvÖM
 BiY‡iPvA Kqwvmev¨e jxk¡Zqwv` i`‡vgvA vZ×eqv` Kqwvmev¨e |Q‡UN Mvh‡ym ivmev¨e bzZb I Q‡iK vaewym b‡`vú¤m ©gK-RvK seG Q”‡n ów„m vZôbwN ¨a‡g ixôvM‡bR I iveiwc
 Pw~m©gK ivZ×eqv` Kqwvmev¨e KRwvgvm ve )ivAmGmw( Uwjwewmwbcmi† jv¨kvm† Ui‡v©c‡K i`‡vgvA |¨bR il‡ybvg I Rvgm BvP Z‡h† i‡K RvK vigvA g‡¨avg iG seG ksA UwKG
 v³v¨`‡D ,v¶kw ,¨’¯v^¯ g‡¨avg ivj‡¸Mv¨`‡D vZ‡g iG-bBvjWwv÷ I bBvj&_jn† ,)mwBvAmw( ivU›m† bkg‡idbB UwbwDgwK ,bvd‡x−jc ¨a‡g iG |i‡K ³©yf—šA K`w Kb‡A ib‡exR

|Q”‡n vqI`† ¡Z“i¸ lk‡ew icD ik‡e‡iwc I iwZˆ

 bqveb ¨bR ii‡Qe By` vi‡vA —š©hc jvm 1102 ³wyP ckwiÝú¯ _‡vm iG-)ewmwew( ©Wve† UK‡µw k`‡vjsve G-0102 |iÝú¯ KUwvbv¨d ij‡` UK‡µw qxZvR k`‡vjsve bvd‡YxgvÖM
 UwKG q‡bw i`‡`ewvoxµ xÜeZwÖc-×wye bvd‡YxgvÖM |bvd‡YxgvÖM Q‡i‡K  iG-&mKú¤wjwA jvkú¯† ik‡`‡vjsve ¨bR ib‡VM ÕÕjyc U›j‡v¨U qxZvRÔÔ mv‡_ GK‡hv‡M KvR Ki‡Q; GLv‡b 

 bkK‡yWG id bBú¤‡v¨K bxjvKvjP jeUzd cvK¦kew G-0102 |Q”‡n vqI`† Y¶kwÖc lk‡ew i`‡`ewvoxµ xÜeZwÖc-×wye ¨bR iY‡nÖMksA K‡ú¤wjwA jvkú¯† j‡vm 1102
 jeUzd k`‡vjsve ¨bR ii‡Ýú¯ ÓMxj k`‡vjsveÒ I ÓMxj jeUzd cvK bki‡vWd‡Ò Mxj jeUzd iv`vkc† ik‡`† iQe G |qb† ksA b‡Bú¤‡v¨K jvM† 1 e‡vf_Šh† _‡vm iG-)ú¤‡v¨K(

|bvd‡YxgvÖM i‡K i¶v^¯ ³wzP I_‡vm iG-)dGdGew( bki‡vWd†

_‡c ixe_w„c KG Ryem Ñ vbevf yqvejR i`‡vgvA

 q‡P‡em b‡©Zeiwc yqvejR ‘šKw ,%1.0 Îvg qv` ik‡`‡vjsve b‡g©Mbw WBv·A-BvW b©evK i¦k‡ew I`wh |K‡xe_w„c Q”‡n Z‡Y¸ ¨j~g ivZ ivA Q‡UN b©Zeiwc Z“ª` iyqvejR i`‡vgvA
 I i—¯jR vqIvh o‡e† ,h† Q‡q‡n viK Lj‡D b‡`e‡ZwÖc iG-)mwmwcwBvA( ÄP† Ug‡Bv¬K id jb‡v¨c jvU›g‡©bfMivU›B |ivKkw gZ¨bA e‡n k`‡vjsve ¨a‡g ivj‡¸k`† —¯ÖMZw¶
 Q‡M† q‡n “iï k‡`‡vjsve ¨a‡gvZ‡B ivne¨e i³wyhÖc Ryem |vivZ e‡n ZYiwc Z‡©x_vYik yqvejR ,vovQ U‡fw e‡n lybvg ¶j ¶j ik‡`‡vjsve `vMvb jvm 0502 Y‡ivK ivZ³vYej

iZ‡¨y`ew j‡ÂvgvÖM |Q”‡n Züe¨e Uw³wyhÖc BG ebfwA Z‡vL œbfwew seG  |Q”‡n ivne¨e Kcv¨e i³wkiŠm† e‡m‡nw ³wyhÖc Ryem Y‡i~c ZwUvN 

 i‡—š¨fA mdwA ,e‡n bg©Mbw b©evK gK b‡vLh† ,vjvZ† o‡M i`‡R‡bw e‡m‡nw bvôZwÖc Ryem UwKG ¨¶j ivbíKiwc yqvejR ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM e‡m‡nw bwvú¤vK† bZP‡m-ke‡iwc UwKG
 seG vbvA q‡gwK %03 Yvgiwc ib‡g©Mbw b©evK ¨a‡g ij‡vm 5102 ¨¶j i`‡vgvA |e‡iK vZMwvh‡nm qvjvZ† o‡M xe_w„c i`›ym UwKG ¨bR il‡ybvg vhÑbjxkybA ib‡qvRyem e‡n
 q‡MwG RvK iG seG Qwi‡K i¶v^¯ ³wzP KG vigvA G-0102 ¨bR ii‡vne¨e ³wkiŠm† b‡k÷† RBe† Uw041 i`‡vgvA |viK ZôwZwÖc e‡m‡nw bwvú¤vK† Ryem UwKG K‡bvd‡YxgvÖM

P‡j‡Q| 2011 mv‡j Avgiv †eBR †÷kb †_‡K mKj GqviKwÛkbvi (Gwm) mwi vjv¡R %34 qvÖc e‡vfKÖMwgvm j‡d ivh ,Qwi‡K YnÖM vbíKiwc ivjd† q‡ bx LiP Kg n‡e|     
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)BmGmGPBG( ke‡iwc I vËcvibw ,v¶iym ,¨’¯v^̄

 bvd‡YxgvÖM e‡m‡nw bwvú¤vK† jxk¡Zqwv` UwKG |Yinv`D j¡¾D KG ií‡kw Mvh‡vMvh‡jwU† q‡lew vËcvibw I v¶iym ,¨’¯v^¯ i`‡iv`xksA bBP† I `›„exivP©gK-v©ZK©gK iG bvd‡YxgvÖM
 G-0102 |óP‡m e‡vfZv©e‡m ¨bR iviK Zðwbw j’¯©gK `cvibw ¨bR i`‡xivP©gK-v©ZK©gK jKm iG seG xivKYimybA I jxkv×ªk ZwÖc ivjvgZwxb BmGmGPBG jKm ib‡BvA Kgwªk
 b©k`iwc/UWwA kwe† IiUw055 ¨bR i`‡ivb©Uvc bBP† yjv¨f |Q‡i‡K cvi‡v¡Z“i¸ —š¨ZA bwvú¤vK† Ib‡qœbD iZw…‹¯sm BmGmGPBG i`‡iv`xksA Kqwvmev¨e I ivqv−cvm o‡yRiQe
 xivKnvieim xqvhybA vjvgZwxb BmGmGPBG Z‡vh iÛf†/ivqv−cvm kwe† Iib‡R 050,1 iG-bBP† yjv¨f |bvd‡YxgvÖM Q‡q‡jwvP vYivPÖc œbfwew ¨bR iów„m vZbZP‡m seG ZVwMsm
 )mGPBGI( Uwdm† Ûv¨A _jn† jvbkc‡zKA |Q‡i‡K i¶v^¯ ³wyP )±vWbK mb‡Rew &jeÝwcmi† bA U›g‡ÖMwG( mwewG ¨bRm† bj‡P b‡g† e‡vf_hv_h )cwmwmG( vjvgZwxb YiPvA

w…‹¯sm BmGmGPBG i‡—š¨fA ibwvú¤vK† g‡¨avg ivj‡¸Mv¨`‡D ivbcv’¯e¨e Z PP©vi cÖwZdjb N‡U‡Q|       

 )mwBvAmw( ivU›m† bkg‡idbB UwbwDgwK I Pw~m©gK bvd‡x−jc

 iq‡vme¨e bzZb I vaewym ¨bbA iM‡vh‡vMvh† jBvevg† KbwyavA jQwq‡`w b‡G ¨bR il‡ybvg ij‡ÂvgvÖM UwG ic ivqIn yjvP gµ©hvK bvd† x−jc j‡vm 7991 e‡m‡nw vem† ebfwA UwKG
 kwe† IiG-000,28 qvjR† Uw46 ik‡`† |KxZÖc xjvk³wk UwKG BivZ Pw~m©gK G ,i‡K ×w„e bvgbexR e‡vfKw ¨UKbˆ KRwvgvm |Z¶wc‡D jQw M‡vh‡vMvh‡jwU† ZMv_Öc vh Mvh‡ym

 |Q‡q‡n ³©yf—šA ivem† Mvh‡vMvh‡jwU† KnvÖM cwfw bR 012,874 g‡vÖM  

 Kbwyav©em I Z…—¯ew ¨bv¨bA nmMvh‡vMvh† mq‡f I Ub‡ivU›B b‡vLh† ,bvd‡YxgvÖM Q‡i‡K yjvP )mwBvAmw( ivU›m† bkg‡idbB UwbwDgwK q‡n ZYwvÖcybA ¨j‡dvm iPw~m©gK bvd† x−jc
w Uw205 Zcwv’¯ i`‡vgvA k‡`† vivm |lybvg ij‡ÂvgvÖM Q”‡vc vem‡¨_Z mAvBwm B›Uvi‡bU †mev cÖ`vb K‡i hv‡”Q|

 ¡Zqwv` ixjÊgKjvPiwc i‡vcv¨e ixYieew K©_wvA

cwiPvjKgÊjx Zuv‡`i Rvbvg‡Z wbwðZ Ki‡Qb †hÑ 

iG Z‡xYieew K©_wvA Z…KZ‘¯Öc K©…ZK ¶c©…ZK vbcv’¯e¨e ibwvú¤vK† )K h ©K‡ú¤m b©Zeiwc iUwBzKB seG nveÖc `Mb ,jdvjd ig‡µ©hvK ,ÊvK©gK _v_© wPÎ Dc¯’vwcZ n‡q‡Q;

;Q‡q‡n viK Y¶ism n~gmnwe _hv_h ie‡vmnw ibwvú¤vK† )L

vf©Y~cZw½m Zwxb-evmnw ³yhcD qgm iviK Z‘¯Öc n~gmxYieew K©_wvA )M  Áew I Z½m³wyh Q‡q‡n viK bj°vÖc ie‡vmnw seG Q‡q‡n viK Mvq‡Öc e‡ wePvi‡ev‡ai wfwË‡Z;  

N)  ;Q‡q‡n viK kvKÖc e‡vfßv©hc q¨Z¨e bvK‡h† K‡_† vZ seG Q‡q‡n viK YimybA Ê`bvg ixYieew K©_wvA ik‡`‡jsve I Ê`bvg evmnw KZwv©R—švA qgm iviK Z‘̄Öc n~gmxYieew K©_wvA

c I bqve—¯ve e‡vfiK©hvK vZ seG ôjwe jQw Zw×c Y¿šqbw Yxi—š¨fA )O ÖZ¨‡e¶Y (gwbUwis) Kiv n‡q‡Q;  

P) e‡n lk† G-1102 i¤̂f‡b 11 `vqg† iÝ‡m‡Bvj ivj¨yjm† jBvevg† ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM ;Bb† vaØw vb‡vK† bgZ† i‡vcv¨e i©̈_‡gvm ibwvú¤vK† qvLvi Znv¨eA gµ©hvK e‡m‡nw bvôZwÖc yjvP

 Î‡¶† ib‡qveb ve vb e‡n viK bqveb Ým‡Bvj ,h† vb i‡K mv¦kew ¶c©„ZK vbjvPiwc ibwvú¤vK† ¨keA |e‡n viK bqveb Ým‡Bvj g‡¨avg iY‡i~c ©Zk ó©̀wbwym ¨Rvh‡Öc Î‡¶‡G seG

;e‡iK ów„m iœN‡ew gKivb‡vK† Î‡¶† ivLvi Znv¨eA gµ©hvK ibwvú¤vK† ©Zk bvK† ¨Rvh‡Öc  

† ¨Mvh‡L−j‡D qvbjzZ ii‡Qe ZM Î‡¶† ij‡dvjd ig‡µ©hvK ibwvú¤vK† )Q hme e¨Z¨q i‡q‡Q †m¸‡jv eY©bv Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges Zvi KviY e¨vL¨v Kiv n‡q‡Q;  

K bRvh‡sm ËvcD ©Y~c¡Z“i¸ ii‡Qe Pvuc ZM q‡lew K©_wvA I gµ©hvK )R iv n‡q‡Q| 

†kqvi‡nvwìs-Gi aib

³wyhsm ib‡`e‡ZwÖc BG bia iG-sìwvn‡ivqk† L‡iwvZ 0102 ,i^¤m‡Ww 13 : 3-G †`Lv‡bv nj| 

bmvkym Ui‡v©c‡K Kj~gnw`weveR I Q”^¯

 |xmv¦kew b‡avm bqœbD ZMvgµ iv’¯e¨e bmvkym Ui‡v©c‡K bvd‡YxgvÖM |©Y~c¡Z“i¸ —š¨ZA bjxkybA ib‡mvkym Ui‡v©c‡K jxkZwM ¨bR ib‡©RA vZjdm ¦k‡ew Mvh‡vMvh‡jwU† iZwM Z“ª`
 Ui‡v©c‡K g‡¨avg iY‡imybA vqµwÖc ZVwMym UwKG b‡vd‡YxgvÖM |Q‡i‡K Mvq‡bwew `ú¤m jycew ¨bR iviK yjvP bmvkym Ui‡v©c‡K ib‡vgKZwv©R—švA g‡µ©hvK b`›wb`ˆ ivZ bvd‡YxgvÖM
 e‡m‡nw bwvú¤vK† ³yfvKjwvZ UwKG |Q‡q‡i v’¯e¨e iviK nw`weveR K‡bvôZwÖc seG Y¿šqbw ,vbk©`‡bw qvqµwÖc G |qn viK Zðwbw Uwqlew ivbjvPiwc KbwvôZwvÖc ve bmvkym
 b‡jxkybA iv’¯e¨e bmvkym Ui‡v©c‡K iK©hvK UwKG g‡¨avg iY‡imybA vqµwÖc I vjvgZwxb ¨ave‡Rnm I vZQ”^¯ ,vZnw`weveR `©lc vbcv’¯e¨e I xjÊgKjvPiwc ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM

 Z…Kkiwvcym bkgwK ÄP‡·G Ûv¨A RUwiwDKwmw ik‡`‡vjsve |×eZw“ÖkZwÖc ³wyhsm b`e‡ZwÖc Ýq‡v−cgK Ziwv—¯ew UwKG Z©Kwú¤m Ýv¨©bfM Ui‡v©c‡K  1-G †`Lv‡bv nj|  

 Zwœbvg‡µ i¨j‡~gMvq‡bwew i`‡ivìvn† ivqk†

 _‡vm Bm† seG ×w„e v¨LsmKnvÖM ivUvW I mq‡f ZbvaÖc |kwe† Mvf 4.41 viKZk qvbjzZ ii‡Qe ZM vh ,)vKvU UwvK† 374,7( vKvU bqjwew 7.47 jQw Yvgiwc i^¯‡Rvi iQe G
 |kwe† %46 qvbjzZ ii‡Qe ZM vh ,Q‡Lvi bv`eA IZ‡×w„e ^¯Rvi Znv¨eA ^¯Rvi vUvW |U‡N ×w„eÖc BG ¨bR i^¯‡Rvi Z©RwA Y‡ivK iµwew ©WvK vUvW I Um‡Ûv¨n iÛ‡v¨ªe bvd‡YxgvÖM
 )UwvK† 170,1( bqjwew 17.01 j‡vm 0102 g‡K qvbjzZ iG-%9.22 b©Rwvg vKvU )vKvU UwvK† 794,1( bqjwew 79.41 ij‡vm 9002 )UwGcwbG( vdvbyg Ubw ic ia‡vk‡iwc iK
 Ib©Rwvg GWwUwBvAewB j‡d iG |j‡d† evfÖc IZ‡×w„e ^¯Rvi vh ,qn Y‡ivK iKw©zZf ·v¨U gmw )vKvU UwvK† 086( vKvU bqjwew 8.6 ZbvaÖc bZc BG |Q‡q‡n %3.41 b©Rwvg vKvU
 ,h† ¨Lj‡D b‡vLG |vKvU 8.21 jQw vh G-9002 ,39.7 Q‡q‡owvu` )mGcwB( qvA-ZwÖc-ivqk† G-0102 |qn %5.94 G-0102 q‡Mw g‡K qvbjzZ iG %0.75 iG-9002
 KawA )mGcwB( qvA-ZwÖc-ivqk† iG-9002 j‡d ivh ,jQwq‡c† Zwnv¨eA K‡_† iKqvA vKvU UwvK† 214 ic ivqIn ³yfvKjwvZ e‡vfjdm i‡vRveivqk† bvd‡YxgvÖM G-9002

wQj| 

 tjw UwBvA bvd‡YxgvÖM( ÕÕbÈe vdvbygÔÔ iP‡bw vivuZ seG Z`›wbvA i‡c† Z‡iK kvKÖc jdvjd K©_wvA ibwvú¤vK† ¨bR ii‡Qe ßvgm L‡iwvZ 0102 ,i¤̂m‡Ww 13 xjÊgKjvPiwc
:bQ‡iK kiwvcym ib‡Èe Z…KL−j‡D Z‡xYivm )ZxZ¨e  

 2010 2009
vdvbyg ¨Mvh‡bU›e    

  )Zw¶(/vdvbyg x©Zeic iK 10,579,176,467  14,968,166,256  

 vdvbyg ZÈweA ii‡Qe ©xZe©e~c :Mvh† 26,655,044,251  13,266,605,231  

eÈ‡bi Rb¨ cÖvß †gvU cwigvY  37,234,220,718  28,234,771,487   

eÈb    

  ksv¨fj —švo~P ii‡Qe ZM (8,101,800,132)  (1,579,727,236)

Aš—ieZ©xKvjxb jf¨vsk  (4,726,050,077) -    

)©e‡~c ik‡sv¨fj —švo~P Zewv—¯Öc( qvA Z¶wism l‡k† iQe  24,406,370,509  26,655,044,251   
 )`Mb %58( 0102 ksv¨fj —švo~P Zewv—¯Öc (11,477,550,187) (8,101,800,132)

(2009t 60% bM`)    

cÖ¯—vweZ jf¨vs‡ki ci msiw¶Z Avq  12,928,820,322   18,553,244,119  
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 bv`eA ¨Mvh‡L−j‡D i‡vMvlvK† qxªóvi

weM  Yvgiwc ib‡v`eA Uvg† ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM i‡vMvlvK† qxªóvi —š©hc 0102 ,i^¤m‡Ww K‡_† ic ivôZwÖc |Q‡mvA L‡i† bv`eA kwe† q‡P‡em i‡vMvlvK† qxªóvi bvd‡YxgvÖM i‡a iQeKq‡K Z
 bqjwew 5.03 jQw vh j‡vm 9002 ,)vKvU UwvK† 517,3( vKvU bqjwew 51.73 q`† vgR i‡vMvlvK† qxªóvi bwvú¤vK† G-0102 Îvgyaï |)UwvK† 205,81( vKvU bqjwew 081 Q”‡n
 )UwvK† 009( vKvU bqjwew 9 bvd‡YxgvÖM G-0102 I¡Ë‡m gK ivn i·‡v¨U Ui‡v©c‡K ,¨L−j‡D |%05 qvÖc i^¯‡Rvi Uvg† ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM G-0102 vh seG ,)UwvK† 050,3( vKvU

K‡c©v‡iU U¨v· cÖ`vb K‡i, 2009-G hvi cwigvY wQj 2.5 wewjqb (250 †KvwU) UvKv| AvMvgx eQi¸‡jv‡Z †Kv¤úvwbi DbœwZi mv‡_ mv‡_ GB Ae`v‡bi cwigvYI e„w× cv‡e e‡j 
Avkv Kiv hvq| 

jf¨vsk 

 rv©_A ,bQ‡i‡K bv`Öc ksv¨fj bxjvK©xZe—šA `Mb i‡vn %53 Z‡xicew ib‡aj~g Zawvk‡iwc vKvU 770,050,627,4 ¨bR ij‡vm 0102 ,i¤̂m‡Ww 13 xjÊgKjvPiwc cÖwZwU 10 
 Z‡xicew i¨j‡~g Zawvk‡iwc vKvU  781,055,774,11 ¨bR ij‡vm 0102 _‡vm i`›‡bvA `›„eKjvPiwc |Q‡q‡n via ksv¨fj `Mb vKvU 5.3 Z‡xicew ii‡vqk† i¨j‡~g ZnwfwA vKvU
 Uvg† nmksv¨fj bxjvK©xZe—šA %53 Zawvk‡iwc ¨a‡gvZ‡B ,¨L−j‡D |vKvU 5.8 Z‡xicew ii‡vqk† i¨j‡~g vKvU 01 ZwÖc vh ,bQ‡iK ev—¯Öc ksv¨fj `Mb —švo~P  i‡vn %58

16,203,600,264 UvKv, A_©vr †kqvicÖwZ me©‡gvU 12 UvKv jf¨vsk †kq   |vj‡n viK bcvÌD ev—¯Öc ¨bR ib‡`vg‡ybA i`‡ivìvn‡iv

 ibwvú¤vK† ¨¶‡j i×w„eÖc jxkZw’¯w Znv¨eA ik‡sv¨fj ZwÖcivqk† ,h† Q‡q‡n vje b‡vLh† ©Y~cZw½m ½‡m iZwxb ksv¨fj Z`wvg‡ybA xjÊgKjvPiwc ivn ib‡v`Öc ksv¨fj ³vi‡cD
Zk ¨b~bA ivdvbyg x©Zeic iK ¶‡c‡vm v`nwvP ib‡aj~g I v’¯eA K©_wvA Kiv 50 fvM jf¨vsk AvKv‡i cÖ`vb Ki‡Z n‡e|

 n~gmvfm i`‡©lc I `©lc vbjvPiwc

Av‡jvP¨ eQ‡i cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i MVb wQj wbgœiƒct 

 I KjvPiwc ,mGG ÝkK‡bwDgwK jBvevg† ibjwU† ,K‡Kªe† f‡Mmw evbR |1 †Pqvig¨vb

2| Rbve wnj‡W †Uvb, †Uwjbi †gvevBj KwgDwb‡KkÝ GGm, cwiPvjK

3| Rbve cvi GwiK nvBj¨vÛ, †Uwjbi †gvevBj KwgDwb‡KkÝ GGm, cwiPvjK

4| Rbve bvU †evi‡Mb, †Uwjbi †gvevBj KwgDwb‡KkÝ GGm, cwiPvjK

5| Rbve †mœv‡i Ki‡bwjD‡mb, †Uwjbi †gvevBj KwgDwb‡KkÝ GGm, cwiPvjK 

 KjvPiwc ,gKjwU† YxgvÖM ,gMe† bvnvRiyb mm‡gw |6

7| Rbve Gg. kvnRvnvb, MÖvgxY †UwjKg, cwiPvjK

 KjvPiwc ,gKjwU† YxgvÖM ,bvmvn jzdvikvA tvg† evbR |8

KjvPiwc ¿šZ^¯ ,GmwdG `g‡&nvA bÏwDjvgvR .W |9

 G-2 :³wyhsm ib‡`e‡ZwÖc BG ¨_Z iZw’¯wcD i`‡KjvPiwc n‡~gmvfm |Q‡i‡K Yi~c vZKave¨ave ZMawew Î‡¶‡G vh qn ZôwybA vfm )qb( Uw9 Uvg† i`‡©lc vbjvPiwc j‡vm 0102
†`Iqv n‡q‡Q| 

Mvq‡bwtbyc I Mvq‡bw ixjÊgKjvPiwc

 Bm† |i‡K YimybA bBvA ¨bv¨bA —švµsm G seG 4991 bBvA bwvú¤vK† ,bkq‡mwvm‡v¨A eA &mjK©UwvA ivZ bwvú¤vK† Î‡¶† iM‡vq‡bwtbyc I imeA ,Mvq‡bw ixjÊgKjvPiwc
Piwc Z©Yweœgbw i`‡©lc vbjvPiwc qvfm Yivavm K©lwve œbmvA i‡vmybA tbe‡n ¨Mvh† iM‡vq‡bwtbyc seG be‡iK YnÖM imeA `›„eKjv

K‡Kªe† f‡Mmw evbR |1

2| Rbve cvi GwiK nvBj¨vÛ  

3| Rbve Gg. kvnRvnvb 

cÖavb wbe©vnx Kg©KZ©vi wb‡qvM

 bZw ZMew bwZw |be‡iK YnÖM ivf¡Zqwv` BG bwZw e‡vfKbwvôybvA Z‡n 1102 ©Pvg 1 ,bQ‡q‡c† Mvq‡bw K©…ZK `©lc vbjvPiwc e‡m‡nw v©ZK©gK xnv©ebw bvaÖc bzZb bm‡bR i‡vU† .gw
 ZwÖc ib‡vôZwÖc bxjvKvKv_ `‡c iv©ZK©gK xnv©ebw bvaÖc `©lc vbjvPiwc ¨¶‡jcD BG |be‡n ³lwfwvj’¯ ij‡vWR‡mn† ivfWI .gw Zibjvc ¡Zqwv` iv©ZK©gK xnv©ebw bvaÖc i‡a iQe
 q‡gm ivZ |Q‡i‡K p„`ym vi‡vA K‡bv’¯©lxk ibwvú¤vK† BG iK‡nvÖM bqjwgw 03 ¡Z…Zb† ¶`ym ivZ |Q”‡vbvR vZÁZ…K K‡jvWR‡mn† ivfWI .gw  ¨bR ivôbw I vZÖMvKG ivZ
 e‡m‡nw bvôZwÖc vZv`vem† jBvevg† qxbv’¯©lxk ik‡`† seG Q”‡vbvR vQ”f‡ï IK‡bmbR i‡vU† .gw xnv©ebw bvaÖc bzZb `©lc vbjvPiwc |qn ³yfvKjwvZ Ä‡P‡·G K÷ bvd‡YxgvÖM

‡iK vbgvK ¨jdvm ivZ Î‡¶† iviK p„`ym vi‡vA K‡bv’¯eA ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM Q|   

wbix¶K wb‡qvM

 |e‡iK Mv¨Z`c qvfm Yivavm K©lwve ii‡veG mU›U‡bDvKv¨A ©Wv©UvP ,Kn bvgni bvgni bvôZwÖc ¨m`m iG-RwgGcwK† iUWwA ibwvú¤vK† xqvhybA bkq‡mwvm‡v¨A eA mjK‡©UwvA
 K‡UwbvôZwÖc G ¶‡c‡vm bv`Öc Uv¨f ¨Rvh‡Öc I vKvU bqjwgw 8.1 ¶‡c‡vm b`vg‡ybA i¶‡c©…ZK _hv_h `©lc vbjvPiwc |Q‡i‡K kvKÖc nÖMvA Z‡c† Mvq‡bwtbyc UwbvôZwÖc BG ¨Mvh‡ym

|Q‡iK kiwvcym iM‡vq‡bwtbyc ¨bR ij‡vm 1102
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K‡Kªe† f‡Mmw
†Pqvig¨vb

1102 ,iwvq“ªed† 60

 MØ‡D I KwyuS

 bxLy§¤m iKwyuS Y¿šqbw ZMvgµ bwvú¤vK† Y‡ivK  ivjvgZwxb Y¿šqbw jxkZw’¯wA |³y©f—šA ivbcv’¯e¨e KwyuS ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM KwyuS jKm K¨nwve I Yxi—š¨fA qvi—šA iZwMÖMA ibwvú¤vK†
 q‡Mw Z‡iK vbjvPiwc gµ©hvK ZMjkŠK† _‡vm Bm† I ©gK-RvK b`›wb`ˆ vh v’¯e¨e )siwUbwg( Y¶e‡¨ZÖc Zgwqbw seG Zwxb vbcv’¯e¨e KwyuS ó©`wbwym Q‡q‡i ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM |Q”‡n
 |i‡K bqYÖc Zw×c vbcv’¯e¨e KwyuS Z^šwgm UwKG cwRw G-0102 |i‡K RvK e‡m‡nw ivqZwvn iK©hvK UwKG ivVI q‡UwvK vZ qn bxLy§¤m iKwyuS emh† gµ©hvK Kqwvme¨e i`‡vgvA
 Zw×c vbcv’¯e¨e KwyuS Z^šwgm BG Z‡iK ZnweA I Y¶e‡¨ZÖc ,vbPvj‡v©hc ,bqv¨j~g ,Ylk‡ew ,q©Ybw KwyuS ZMjkŠK† ,vqµwÖc bVM ËvcD jL•„kym I K³wŠh† ,ów„m vg‡vVvKeA _hv_h

mv_h g‡¨avg ivg‡vVvK vbcv’¯e¨e KwyuS bwvú¤vK† j‡d iG |e‡n Züe¨e  |e‡n g¶m Z‡iK q©Ybw KwyuS q‡g

 iv‹¯iyc KawvKG Ñ Kiv§¯ iZw…Kx^̄

MÖvgxY‡dv‡bi Rb¨ 2010 wQj GKwU Abb¨ eQi| GB mg‡q †Kv¤úvwb †ek w  tcƒiœgbw vj‡¸iv‹¯iyc emG ¨Mvh‡L−j‡D |i‡K b©RA iv‹¯iyc zQK

 iQe G M‡vfew ³wyhÖc¨_Z I Mvh‡vMvh† K©…ZK )GdGGmG( mU›U‡bDvKv¨A eA bki‡vWd† bvqkwG _Dvm seG )ewGmwBvA( k`‡vjsve eA mU›U‡bDvKv¨A ©Wv©UvP eA UDUw÷wbB
 ii‡vKx½A i`‡vgvA ZwÖc ivbjvPiwc vme¨e I vZnw`weveR ,vZQ”^¯ |qn Zlw~f i‡v‹¯iyc KbRbv§¤m UwÕy` ¨bR iG-Ó9002 b`e‡ZwÖc K©lwve/b`e‡ZwÖc K©_wvA ZkwvKÖcÒ ivZ cwRw

vA UwÕy` iv‹¯iyc |qn viK bv`Öc n~gmiv‹¯iyc ZLw−j‡D cƒi^¯Zw„Kx^¯ gv‡`i †kqvi‡nvìvi I GKB mv‡_ †÷K‡nvìvi‡`i g‡a¨ Av¯’v Av‡iv e„w× Ki‡Z mnvqZv Ki‡e|

 e‡vf_Šh† ivqK† I cwRw ¨bR i±‡R‡Öc ÓxiZ¨_ZÒ |qn Zlw~f i‡v‹¯iyc vqÛwB-B iG-0102 M‡vfew Mv¨`‡D Ý©b‡fMgG/Ý©b‡fMB bvd‡YxgvÖM ¨bR ivem† sUwK‡Uw bªU† jBvevg†
  RvqkwGÒ ©W‡vqIv¨A vqkwG IgGmw bvd‡YxgvÖM kwvcvkvc iG |i‡K b©RA )iv‹¯iyc KPvj‡vgm( Ó©WvqIv¨A Ýkq‡mwÖc‡v¨A mÕb©mvcivqP†Ò M‡vfew WûjwfBvj Ûv¨A RBvÖcivU›G-B

|Q‡q‡n ZPwv©ebw e‡m‡nw gZ¨bA ¨a‡g ivj‡¸-ÓÛv¨ªe ÷e†

R Biv‹¯iyc qfD ÓjccwÒ I ÓÛv¨ªeÒ ic‡“ÖM ibjwU† bvd‡YxgvÖM IvovQG w~f i‡v‹¯iyc UwÕy` ib‡vôZwÖc BKG m‡vnZwB ic‡“ÖM ibjwU† |Q‡i‡K q lZ nIqvi GwUB cÖ_g D`vniY| 

2011 mv‡ji Rb¨  

 ¡ZebfwA íkw Mvh‡vMvh‡jwU† ik‡`‡vjsve |iwvc BZ‡L`† e‡m‡nw iQe iviK jxkZwM vi‡vA K‡ZwMÖMA I ZwœbD i`‡vgvA K‡jvm 1102 RvA vigvA q‡iwc† iQe Uw41 ZÊwg¨jdvm
 bzZb KG i‡vRve vigvA g‡¨avg ik‡e‡iwc Y¿šqbw bvgRview seG vqµwÖc bqveb i³wyhÖc RwzU I bqbvA i³wyhÖc Rwª_w |Q”‡vh Z‡iK ke‡Öc M‡yh bzZb KG i‡a Zvn i³wyhÖc bzZb I
 i‡a bv’¯©lxk Z‡Zw’¯wiwc bgG bK† vb Kvn† BKj~gvZMwvh‡ZwÖc Zh ivRve |vb jQw jUwR I ©Y~cvZMwvh‡ZwÖc vUZG Bvb‡LK íkw bkK‡bwDgwKjwU† i`‡vgvA |ve‡vQŠuc† b‡v’¯eA
 i`‡vgvA Ijvm 1102 iwvc Z‡iK p„`ym vi‡vA K‡bv’¯eA i`‡vgvA j‡ÂA —š¨ZÖc vigvA `wh g‡¨avg ivLvi qvRe ¡ZebfwA gviewA I vem† œbQ”weibw |¨¶j bvaÖc i`‡vgvA BvLvi

Rb¨ mvdj¨ e‡q Avb‡e|

 RwzU Zewv—¯Öc K©…ZK mwivAUwew Z‡Zw’¯wiwc BG |Äj‡v¨P oe gZ¨bA ibwvú¤vK† vZqðbwA ik‡e‡iwc Y¿šqbw ¨bR iZwMÖMA r¨lewf ,h† Qwi‡K L−j‡D vigvA IM‡vA b‡`e‡ZwÖc BG
jvB‡mÝ bevqb c×wZ cÖYqb n‡j †gvevBj †mev`vZv cÖwZôvb¸‡jvi cvkvcvwk mvgwMÖK A_©bxwZ‡Z weiƒc cwiw¯’wZi m„wó Ki‡e| Avgiv Avkv KiwQ miKvi D”P bevqb wd cÖZ¨vnvi 
K‡i †b‡e|   

ÁZ…K vigvA Q‡vK i`‡vh

MÖvgxY‡dvb wek¦vm K‡i †h, mswk−ó mK‡ji wgwjZ cÖ‡PóvB GKwU K‡c©v‡iU cÖwZôv‡bi mvdj¨ I AMÖMwZ e‡q Avb‡Z cv‡i| GUv Qvov GKwU †Kv¤úvwb nq‡Zv mvgwqKfv‡e 
 ¨bR ivqIvh q‡bw q‡MwG K‡`w ib‡gvm q‡`w vbk©`‡bw I b©_gm Znv¨eA K‡bwvú¤vK† Bq‡bw K‡ye mv¦kew BG ivA |qb Bqðbw ¨bR ib‡`w©Nx` ‘šKw ,i‡vc Z‡jP g‡Kivb‡vK†
 vZ‡n e¢¤m b©RA vZjdm BG ibwvú¤vK† o‡yRiQe ,h† Q‡i‡K äwjcD vi‡vA `©lc vbjvPiwc |Q”‡vbvR `ve¨ba i`‡ivìvn‡K÷† jKm I ivìvn‡ivqk† iG Bg‡_Öc xjÊgKjvPiwc
 k`‡vjsve ,)UwcwIgG( qjvY¿šg Mvh‡vMvh‡jwU† I KvW ,ivKim k`‡vjsve tbgh† ,Zh† vb vqIvc vZMwvh‡nm qµwm I b©_gm KPveZwB K‡_† QvK ib‡vôZwÖc ZLwjwœgbw `wh vb
 U›q‡R eA ivª÷Rwi† ,)BvAIew( ©Wve† Mvq‡bwew ,)ewew( Ksv¨e k`‡vjsve ,)ivAewbG( ©Wve† ^¯Rvi qxZvR ,)ivAew( q‡Iji† k`‡vjsve ,)mwivAUwew( bkgwK Y¿šqbw Mvh‡vMvh‡jwU†
 ÄP‡·G K÷ gvÖMÆP ,)BmGWw( ÄP‡·G K÷ vKvX ,)mwBmG( bkgwK ÄP‡·G Ûv¨A RUwiwDKwmw ,K¿šqbw bwv`gvA I bwvßi ¨Lyg ,)mwmGR‡ivA( m©gvd Ûv¨A Rbwvú¤vK† K÷

 seG YMiÛf† ,n~gmbvôZwÖc K©_wvA I ivKsv¨e ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM ,)BmGmw( e¨vemvi Ab¨vb¨ Askx`viMY|     

 iK‡RvA ib‡vd‡YxgvÖM |Q‡iK ivKx^¯ _‡vm i`‡ve¨ba v_K ib‡v`eA i`‡KnvÖM Zbwv§¤m `©lc vbjvPiwc ¨bR ivqIb† Q‡e† e‡m‡nw bvôZwÖc xivKbv`Öc vem† i`›‡Qc K‡bvd‡YxgvÖM
 Q”‡vbvR K‡K¨Z‡Öc i`‡vZ `©lc vbjvPiwc BvZ ,bZ‡iK vb RvK q‡`w vZKiw—švA  I vZôbwKG i`‡vZ vixivP©gK I v©ZK©gK ibwvú¤vK† `wh vb vZ‡n e¢¤m BZ‡gvb‡vK† ¨jdvm BG

ab¨ev` I Awfb›`b| wbiew”Qbœ †mevi 14wU eQi †cwi‡q Avgiv K_v w`w ZwÖc I RvA ve‡Kv_ ³yh qvÎvhÖMA ik‡`‡vjsve K‡_† Q‡vK il‡ybvg ,Q” wU w`b|

 |Q”wvbvR v×ªk I `ve¨ba Kiw—švA K‡Bvem i`‡vbcvA
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Annexure-I
Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Securities and Exchange Commission’s  Notification No 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/02-08 dated February 20, 2006 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange 
Ordinance, 1969 is presented below.

Explanation for
non-compliance

with the condition

Compliance
Status

Condition
No. Title

1.1 Board’s Size
 (number of Directors – minimum 5 and Maximum 20) Complied 

1.2 (i) Independent Directors ( at least one tenth of Directors
 should be Independent Directors) Complied 

1.2 (ii) Independent Directors Appointment  (should be appointed
 by the elected Directors) Complied 

1.3 Chairman & Chief Executive Officer be different persons Complied 

1.4 (a) Directors Report on Financial Statements (fairness of financial statements) Complied 

1.4 (b) Books of Accounts
 (maintenance of proper books of accounts) Complied 

1.4 (c) Adaptation of appropriate accounting policies & estimates Complied 

1.4 (d) International Accounting Standards  Applicable in Bangladesh
 (application & adequate disclosure for any departure) Complied 

1.4 (e) System of Internal Control
 (soundness and efficiency of Internal Control System) Complied 

1.4 (f) Going Concern (ability to continue as a going  concern) Complied 

1.4 (g) Deviations in Operating Results (highlighting significant deviations
 from last year in operating result) Complied 

1.4 (h) Presentation  of key Operating and Financial Data (summarized financial
 data of at least preceding three years) Complied 

1.4 (i) Declaration of Dividend Complied 

1.4 (j) Number of Board Meetings held during the year and attendance 
 by each Director Complied 

1.4 (k) Pattern of Shareholding  (disclosing aggregate number of shares) Complied 

2.1 Appointment of CFO, Head of Internal Audit and Company Secretary Complied
 and defining their respective roles, responsibilities & duties

2.2 Attendance of CFO and the Company Secretary at Board of Directors Meeting Complied 

3.0 Audit Committee
 (should have an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of 
 the Board of Directors) 

Complied 

3.1 (i) Composition of Audit Committee
 (should be composed of at least three members) Complied 

3.1 (ii) Audit Committee Members Appointment 
 (members should be appointed by the Board with at least one Independent Director) Complied 
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Mr. Sigve Brekke 9 8 

Ms. Hilde Tonne 9 9 

Mr. Per Erik Hylland 9 9 

Mr. Snorre Corneliussen 9 9 

Mr. Knut Borgen 9 7 

Ms. Nurjahan Begum 9 9 

Mr. M. Shahjahan 9 8 

Mr. Md. Ashraful Hassan 9 9 

Dr. Jamaluddin Ahmed FCA 7 7 Appointed on March 19, 2010

Name of Directors Remarks
Meetings 
attended

Number of meetings held 
whilst a Board member

Annexure II
Board Meeting and attendance during the year ended December 31, 2010.

Explanation for
non-compliance

with the condition

Compliance
Status

Condition
No. Title

3.1 (iii) Term of Service of Audit Committee
 (Board to ensure continuity of minimum prescribed number of members) Complied 

3.2 (i) Chairman of Audit Committee
 (Board to select Chairman from Audit Committee) Complied 

3.2 (ii) Professional qualification and experience of the Chairman of 
 the Audit Committee 

Complied 

3.3.1 (i) Reporting on the activities of the Audit Committee  to the Board of Directors Complied 

3.3.1 (ii)(a) Reporting  of Conflict of Interest to the Board of Directors None 

3.3.1 (ii)(b)  Reporting of any fraud or irregularity or material defect in the
 Internal Control System to the Board of Directors None 

3.3.1 (ii)(c) Reporting of non-compliance of Laws to the Board of Directors None 

3.3.1 (ii)(d) Reporting of any other matter to the Board of Directors None 

3.3.2 Reporting to SEC (if any material impact on the financial condition
 & results of operation, unreasonably ignored by the Management) 

None 

3.4 Reporting of activities to the Shareholders Complied

4.00 External / Statutory Auditors

4.0 (i) Non- engagement in appraisal or valuation services Complied 

4.0 (ii) Non-engagement in designing of Financial Information System Complied 

4.0 (iii) Non-engagement in Book Keeping or other services related to 
 the accounting records or financial statements Complied 

4.0 (iv) Non- engagement in Broker-Dealer services Complied 

4.0 (v) Non- engagement in Actuarial services Complied 

4.0 (vi) Non- engagement in Internal Audit services Complied 

4.0 (vii) Non- engagement in any other services Complied
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Annexure III
The Pattern of Shareholding as on December 31, 2010.

Name of Shareholders Status Shares Held Percentage

i) Parent/Subsidiary/Associate Companies   

Telenor Mobile Communications AS - 753,407,724 55.80%

Nye Telenor Mobile Communications II AS - 215 0.00%

Nye Telenor Mobile Communications III AS - 215 0.00%

Telenor Asia Pte. Ltd. - 215 0.00%

Grameen Telecom - 461,766,409 34.20%

Grameen Kalyan - 22 0.00%

Grameen Shakti  - 22 0.00%

ii) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and their 
spouses and minor children

Mr. Sigve Brekke Chairman - -

Ms. Hilde Tonne Board Member - -

Mr. Per Erik Hylland Board Member - -

Mr. Knut Borgen Board Member - -

Mr. Snorre Corneliussen Board Member - -

Ms. Nurjahan Begum Board Member 4,813 0.00%

Mr. M. Shahjahan Board Member - -

Mr. Md. Ashraful Hassan Board Member 6,000 0.00%

Dr. Jamaluddin Ahmed FCA Board Member - -

Mr. Tore Johnsen Chief Executive Officer - -

Mr. Raihan Shamsi Chief Financial Officer 94,381 0.01%  

Mr. Hossain Sadat Company Secretary 31,776 0.00%

Mr. Emadul Hannan Head of Internal Audit - -

Mr. Abrar Jaman Son of Ms. Nurjahan Begum 2,803 0.00%

Ms. Salina Hassan Spouse of Md. Ashraful Hassan 23,759 0.00%

iii) Executives 

Mr. Arnfinn Groven Chief People Officer - -

Mr. Arild Kaale Chief Marketing Officer - -

Mr. Arne Viggo Aronsen Head of Sourcing - -

Mr. Odd Egil Aasen Head of Internet & Broadband - -

Mr. Petter Russ Head of Property & Facilities Services - -

iv)     Shareholders Holding Ten Percent or More Voting Interest

Telenor Mobile Communications AS - 753,407,724 55.80%

Grameen Telecom - 461,766,409 34.20%



Report of
Audit Committee
Grameenphone Board Audit Committee, a sub-committee of the Board, supports the Board in fulfilling its oversight 
responsibilities. The jurisdiction of Grameenphone Board Audit Committee extends over Grameenphone Ltd. and its subsidiaries.

Composition and Meetings
Mr. M. Shahjahan, Chairman 

Mr. Per Erik Hylland, Member

Dr. Jamaluddin Ahmed FCA, Member [Effective from March 19, 2010]

A total of 5 (five) meetings were held during 2010.  Mr. Ashraful Hassan (Managing Director, Grameen Telecom) attended the 
meetings as a special invitee.  Permanent invitees to the meetings were the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, 
Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit.  Relevant heads of divisions and other members of management also attended 
the meetings as required.  Head of Internal Audit acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

Major Responsibilities of the Audit Committee
The purpose, authority, composition, duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are delineated in its Charter.  Some of 
the major responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as follows:

  Review the annual, half-yearly and quarterly financial statements and other financial results, and upon its satisfaction of 
the review, recommend the same to the Board.

  Review the adequacy and effectiveness of financial reporting process, internal control system, risk management, auditing 
matters, and the Company’s processes for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the Code of Conduct.

  Recommend appointment, termination and determination of audit fees for statutory auditors.  Consider the scope of 
work, and oversee and evaluate the work performed by statutory auditors.  Review permitted non-audit services 
performed by statutory auditors.

  Exercise its oversight of the work of Grameenphone Internal Audit.  Review the effectiveness of internal audit function 
including performance, structure, adequacy of resources, and compliance with professional standards. Examine audit 
findings and material weaknesses and monitor implementation of audit action plans.

Major Activities of the Audit Committee
  Reviewed and recommended to the Board the quarterly and annual financial statements for the year ended December 

31, 2010.

  Considered and made recommendation to the Board on the reappointment and remuneration of external auditors, 
Rahman Rahman Haq, Chartered Accountants, a member firm of KPMG, for the year 2011. 

  Reviewed the Management Letter from external auditors for the year 2009 together with Management’s responses to 
the findings.

  Approved the Internal Audit Plan for 2010, monitored progress and effected revisions when necessary.

  Discussed Internal Audit reports and findings in detail with auditors and members of management and monitored the 
status of implementation of audit action plans and provided guidance to ensure timely completion of action plans. 

  Reviewed the Governance, Control, Risk Management, Revenue Assurance and Fraud Management processes in 
Grameenphone.

  Reviewed the activities of the Compliance function, incidence reporting and actions, and the status of enforcement of 
the Grameenphone Codes of Conduct. 

  Also reviewed the Board Audit Committee Charter and Internal Audit Charter.

  The committee was not aware of any issues in the following areas, which needs to be reported to the Board:

  Report on conflicts of interest
  Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect in the internal control system
  Suspected infringement of laws, including securities related laws, rules and regulations

M. Shahjahan
Chairman
Audit Committee 
February 03, 2011
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Auditors’ Report
to the shareholders of
Grameenphone Ltd.

Introduction
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Grameenphone Ltd, which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2010, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes and all 
related consolidated financial statements of Grameenphone Ltd and its subsidiary (together referred to as "the group").

Management's responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 
1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations. This responsibility includes: 
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate 
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors' responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA) and Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards 
require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal 
control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements including consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), give a true and fair view of the 
state of the company's/group's affairs as at 31 December 2010 and of the results of its operations and cash flows for the year 
then ended and comply with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and 
regulations. 

We also report that:

a)  we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

 
b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company and its subsidiary so far as it 

appeared from our examination of these books;
 
c) the statement of financial position (balance sheet) and statement of comprehensive income (profit and loss account) 

dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns; and

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the company's/group's business.

Auditors
Rahman Rahman Huq
Dhaka, February 06, 2011

Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered Accountants
9 Mohakhali C/A (11th & 12th Floors)
Dhaka 1212, Bangladesh.

Telephone  +880 (2) 988 6450-2
Fax             +880 (2) 988 6449
Email           kpmg-rrh@citech-bd.com
Internet     www.rahman-rahman-huq.com
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2010
Taka

Consolidated

2010
Taka

Separate

2009
Taka

Individual

Grameenphone Ltd.
Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2010

Assets
Non current assets:

Property, plant and equipment, net 4 71,696,092,118 71,519,269,716 79,287,993,919
Intangible assets 5 6,991,416,098 6,887,927,919 7,681,126,893
Investment in subsidiary 6 - 74,999,900 -
Long term deposits 7 12,594,949 12,594,949 11,635,675

78,700,103,165 78,494,792,484 86,980,756,487
Current assets:

Inventories 8 834,355,326 834,355,326 430,870,209
Deferred cost of connection revenue 9 484,842,481 484,842,481 483,550,116
Accounts receivable, net 10 5,247,945,772 5,237,659,409 4,697,066,162
Other receivables 11 928,020,269 1,230,518,097 762,323,315
Advances, deposits and prepayments 12 1,621,637,839 1,718,961,429 1,206,613,917
Short term investment 13 2,753,729,110 2,753,729,110 500,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents 14 18,931,502,552 18,674,929,826 14,101,313,087

30,802,033,349 30,934,995,678 22,181,736,806
Total assets 109,502,136,514 109,429,788,162 109,162,493,293

Equity and Liabilities

Shareholders' equity:
Share capital 15 13,503,000,220 13,503,000,220 13,503,000,220
Share premium 16 7,840,225,942 7,840,225,942 7,840,225,942
Capital reserve 17 14,446,452 14,446,452 14,446,452
Deposit from shareholders 18 1,880,178 1,880,178 1,880,178
General reserve 19 2,139,729,365 2,139,729,365 2,139,729,365
Retained earnings 24,532,545,482 24,406,370,509 26,655,044,251

48,031,827,639 47,905,652,666 50,154,326,408

Non controlling interest 20 268 - -
Non-current liabilities:

Loans and borrowings, net of current portion 21 - - 917,924,127
Deposit from agents and subscribers 22 444,639,879 444,639,879 440,948,191
Finance lease obligation 23 5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838
Deferred tax liabilities 24 11,201,083,512 11,201,083,512 13,505,914,117
Long term provisions 25 162,876,392 162,876,392 171,487,489

16,828,405,621 16,828,405,621 20,056,079,762
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 26 10,183,877,792 10,147,977,191 9,814,726,186
Payable to government and autonomous bodies 27 4,814,490,250 4,814,490,250 4,182,752,546
Unearned revenue 28 2,248,977,889 2,248,977,889 1,679,152,352
Loans and borrowings - current portion 21 - - 1,036,943,071
VAT payable 29 2,451,869,531 2,451,869,531 2,234,779,133
Income tax provision 30 15,738,404,448 15,737,871,964 12,228,778,445
Accrued interest 31 155,699,144 155,699,144 66,356,035
Other liabilities 32 38,263,621 38,263,621 88,517,671
Deferred connection revenue 33 581,904,397 581,904,397 541,731,926
Provision for expenses 34 8,428,415,914 8,518,675,888 7,078,349,758

44,641,902,986 44,695,729,875 38,952,087,123
Total equity and liabilities 109,502,136,514 109,429,788,162 109,162,493,293

Notes

The annexed notes 1 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Director Director Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

Dhaka, February 06, 2011 Auditors
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2010
Taka

Consolidated

2010
Taka

Separate

2009
Taka

Individual

Grameenphone Ltd.
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended  31 December 2010

Notes

Revenue 35 74,733,076,434 74,724,497,824 65,299,567,088

Cost of network operations:
Direct cost of network revenue 36 (15,065,442,394) (15,065,442,394) (13,256,145,333)
Network operation and maintenance expenses 37 (5,605,681,662) (5,924,040,604) (4,773,426,129)
Depreciation and amortisation 38 (15,331,945,675) (15,331,928,871) (15,048,323,189)

(36,003,069,731) (36,321,411,869) (33,077,894,651)
Gross profit 38,730,006,703 38,403,085,955 32,221,672,437

Other income, net 39 60,416,193 75,314,120 43,258,418

Operating expenses:
General and administrative expenses 40 (8,634,334,234) (8,454,044,918) (6,593,087,934)
Selling and distribution expenses 41 (8,487,233,821) (8,480,676,834) (3,474,969,079)
Depreciation and amortisation 38 (1,461,626,378) (1,461,626,378) (1,678,664,555)

(18,583,194,433) (18,396,348,130) (11,746,721,568)
Operating profit 20,207,228,463 20,082,051,945 20,518,209,287

Finance income/(expense), net 42 593,473,110 591,748,373 (1,687,193,849)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 43 99,963,540 99,963,540 (233,243,638)
Gain on sale of investment in X-Net Ltd. - - 7,960,532
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 44 12,091,065 12,091,065 (9,768,387)

705,527,715 703,802,978 (1,922,245,342)

Profit before income tax 20,912,756,178 20,785,854,923 18,595,963,945
Income tax expenses 45 (10,207,404,570) (10,206,678,456) (3,627,797,689)
Profit for the year 10,705,351,608 10,579,176,467 14,968,166,256

Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,705,351,608 10,579,176,467 14,968,166,256

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company 10,705,351,440 10,579,176,467 14,968,166,256
Non controlling interest 168 - -

10,705,351,608 10,579,176,467 14,968,166,256
Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share (par value Tk 10 each) 46 7.93 7.83 12.08

The annexed notes 1 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of same date.

AuditorsDhaka, February 06, 2011

Director Director Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary
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Grameenphone Ltd.
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended  31 December 2010

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash receipts from performance of services/sales 47 74,646,490,419 74,646,490,419 64,925,924,469

Payroll and other payments to employees (6,087,982,677) (5,827,353,840) (4,079,088,982)
Payment to suppliers, contractors and others 48 (28,986,804,748) (29,366,578,247) (21,832,429,882)
Net finance income received 1,337,225,663 1,335,500,926 335,144,569
Finance expense paid for short term loans - - (450,749,036)
Finance expense paid for long term loans (630,004,573) (630,004,573) (1,691,869,816)
Income tax paid (9,002,609,172) (9,002,415,542) (6,505,897,213)

(43,370,175,507) (43,490,851,276) (34,224,890,360)
Net cash flow from operating activities 31,276,314,912 31,155,639,143 30,701,034,109

Cash flows from investing activities:

Payment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment (8,774,249,937) (8,835,146,894) (11,867,221,673)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 59,884,296 59,884,296 40,312,438
Payment for acquisition of intangible assets (648,524,052) (648,524,052) (4,184,634,864)
Investment in subsidiary - (74,999,900) -
Investment in long term deposits (959,274) (959,274) -
Short term investments (2,253,729,110) (2,253,729,110) (500,000,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (11,617,578,077) (11,753,474,934) (16,511,544,099)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayment of local interest bearing short term borrowings - - (4,992,322,916)
Repayment of bond - - (4,250,000,000)
Payment of  long term borrowings (1,950,443,211) (1,950,443,211) (1,422,706,278)
Payment of finance lease obligation - - (562,546,039)
Payment of dividend (12,791,086,003) (12,791,086,003) (1,579,727,236)
Net proceeds from PPO and IPO - - 5,698,452,575
Proceeds from issue of shares to existing shareholders - - 1,682
Proceeds from issue of shares to non controlling interest 100 - -
Amount refunded to IPO share applicants (87,018,256) (87,018,256) -
Net cash flow used in financing activities (14,828,547,370) (14,828,547,470) (7,108,848,212)

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents 4,830,189,465 4,573,616,739 7,080,641,798

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 14,101,313,087 14,101,313,087 7,020,671,289
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 18,931,502,552 18,674,929,826 14,101,313,087



Grameenphone Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
as at and for the year ended  31 December 2010

1. Reporting entity 

1.1 Company profile     

 Grameenphone Ltd (hereinafter referred to as "GP"/"Grameenphone"/"the company"/"the parent company")  is a public 
limited company incorporated in Bangladesh in 1996 under the Companies Act 1994 with its registered address at 
Celebration Point, Road 113/A, Gulshan, Dhaka, Bangladesh. In July 2010, the registered office of the company was shifted 
to GPHouse, Bashundhara, Baridhara, Dhaka 1229. GP was initially registered as a private limited company  and 
subsequently converted  into a public limited company on 25 June 2007. During November 2009, GP listed its shares with 
both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges. In 2010, Grameenphone formed a wholly owned subsidiary namely 
Grameenphone IT Ltd (hereinafter referred to as "GPIT"/ "the subsidiary company"), to provide IT services to itself and also 
to external customers. GPIT launched its commercial operation from 1 April 2010.    

 These financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2010 include consolidated and separate financial 
statements. The consolidated financial statements comprise the company and its subsidiary, Grameenphone IT Ltd. 
(together referred to as "the group"). The separate financial statements present the standalone financial statements of 
Grameenphone Ltd.    

 The group is primarily involved in providing mobile telecommunication services (voice, data and other related services) 
and IT related services in Bangladesh. Grameenphone obtained its radio system operating license from the Ministry of 
Posts and Telecommunications (MoPT), Government of Bangladesh,  commencing from 11 November 1996 and launched 
commercial operation on 26 March 1997. Telecommunication network of the company covers all divisional towns and 
districts of the country. The company also provides international roaming services through international roaming 
agreements with various operators of different countries across the world. 

  The Mobile Cellular License of GP will expire on 11 November 2011 and will have to be renewed upon fulfilment of certain 
terms and conditions. The renewal fees are yet to be fixed by BTRC or MoPT. The management is currently in the process 
of consultation with them on the amount of renewal fees and relevant terms and conditions, and expects to arrive at 
mutually beneficial and agreeable terms within the end of current license tenure i.e. 11 Nov 2011. Despite the uncertainty 
as mentioned above, the management does not believe that the license will not be renewed or that the renewal will be on 
such terms that might have an effect on the business continuity or assumptions of going concern of the company. 
Accordingly these financial statements have been prepared on the basis of going concern assumption. 

2. Basis of preparation    

2.1 Statement of compliance
 These financial statements (including consolidated and separate financial statements) have been prepared in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), 
the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange  Rules 1987 and other applicable laws in Bangladesh.

 The Articles of Association of Grameenphone require that the financial statements be prepared in accordance with 
International Accounting Standards (IAS)/IFRS.   

 The requirements of IFRS and BFRS, to the extent relevant to preparation of these financial statements, do not vary 
significantly from each other. However, the effective dates for certain BFRS differ from those for corresponding IFRS. The 
following BFRS were adopted early while preparing these financial statements to ensure compliance with both sets of 
standards.

 Title of relevant Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS)/BFRS Effective date Application date

 BAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements (revised 2008) 1 January 2010 1 January 2009
 BAS 23: Borrowing Costs (revised 2008) 1 January 2010 1 January 2009
 BAS 32: Financial Instruments: Presentation 1 January 2010 1 January 2009
 BAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 1 January 2010 1 January 2009
 BFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1 January 2010 1 January 2009

 Authorisation for issue 

 These financial statements have been authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the company on 6 February 2011.
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2.2 Basis of measurement    
 These financial statements have been prepared on a  historical cost convention except for the following items in the 

statement of financial position:   

(a) Employee benefit plan was measured based on actuarial valuation.  

(b) Finance lease obligation and assets under finance lease were measured at present value of minimum lease payments. 

(c) Asset retirement obligations (ARO) were measured at present value of expected future expenditure.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
 These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk/BDT) which is both functional currency and 

presentation currency of the group/company. The amounts in these financial statements have been rounded off to the 
nearest Taka.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements   

 The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates.   

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised 
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.   

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting 
policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements  are described in the 
following notes:    

Note 4.5: Capitalisation of borrowing costs   

Note 23: Finance lease obligation (classification and measurement)   

Note 24: Deferred tax liabilities (manner of recovery of temporary differences for determination of deferred tax liabilities)

Note 25: Long term provisions   

Note 34: Provision for expenses (estimation of future cash outflow and determination of appropriate discount rate)

Note 35: Revenue (allocation of revenue among multiple elements, determination of percentage of completion for 
services rendered)

Note 45: Income tax expenses

 In addition to the above, determination of the group's liability for gratuity involves the use of estimates regarding 
demographic variables (such as employee turnover and mortality) and financial variables (such as future increases in 
salaries and medical costs) that will influence the cost of the benefit.     

3. Significant accounting policies
 Except for those related to consolidation procedure, accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to 

all periods presented in these financial statements. Accounting policies related to consolidation process became 
applicable for the group after the formation of GPIT in 2010.  

 Comparative information for 2009  provided in these financial statements reflect GP's individual financial statements only 
as at and for year ended 31 December 2009 (as consolidation procedures were not applicable at that time). Certain 
comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year’s presentation (please refer to Note 55.2).

3.1 Basis of consolidation    

(a) Subsidiaries    

 Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently 
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are de-consolidated from the date on which 
control ceases.     

(b) Consolidation procedure
 Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions 

are eliminated in preparing  consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity 
accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the group's interest in the investee. 
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of 
impairment.    
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3.2 Property, plant and equipment  

(a) Recognition and measurement  
 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any.   

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-refundable 
taxes, after deducting trade discount and rebates, and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the intended manner. Cost also includes initial estimate of the 
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located and capitalised borrowing costs. 
The costs of obligations for dismantling, removing the item and restoring the site (generally called 'asset retirement 
obligation') are recognised and measured in accordance with IAS/BAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part 
of that equipment.   

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate 
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.   

(b) Subsequent costs    
 The cost of replacing or upgrading part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount 

of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the group and its cost 
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day to day servicing 
of the property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred. 

(c) Depreciation    
 No depreciation is charged on land and capital work in progress.  
  Depreciation on other items of  property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated 

useful lives of each item of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease 
term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. 
For addition to property, plant and equipment, depreciation is charged from the date of capitalisation up to the month 
immediately preceding the month of disposal. Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at 
each reporting date. The estimated useful lives of the items of property, plant and equipment for the current and 
comparative years are as follows:

   
   2010 2009
   Year Year

 Own assets    

  Building 10 -50 20

  Base station - equipments 3-10 3-10

  Base station - tower, fiber optic network  and related assets 7- 20 7- 20

  Transmission equipment 5-10 5-10

  Computers and other IT equipment 4 4

  Furniture and fixtures (including office equipment) 3-5 3-5

  Vehicles 4 4

 Leased asset    

  Fibre Optic Network 22.5   22.5

 Change in useful lives of building in 2010 is attributable to inclusion of new assets, having different useful lives, as a result 
of capitalisation of GPHouse. The change does not result from revision of useful lives of existing assets.

 Other than those  mentioned in note 4.8, estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment remained unchanged in 2010.

(d) Gains or losses on disposal   
 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the disposal proceeds with the carrying amounts and are 

recognised net.     

(e) Capital work in progress    
 Capital work in progress consists of acquisition costs of  network plant and machinery, capital components and related 

installation cost until the date placed in service. In case of import of components, capital work in progress is recognised 
when risks and rewards associated with such assets are transferred to the group, i.e. at the time shipment is confirmed by 
the supplier.    
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(f) Capitalisation of borrowing costs    
 As per the requirements of IAS/BAS 23: Borrowing Costs, directly attributable borrowing costs are capitalised during 

construction period for all qualifying assets. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of 
time to get ready for its intended use or sale. The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset are those borrowing costs that would have been avoided if the 
expenditure on the qualifying asset had not been made.   

3.3 Intangible assets    

(a) Recognition and measurement    
 Intangible assets that are acquired by the group and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated 

amortisation and  accumulated impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets are recognised when all the conditions for 
recognition as per IAS/BAS 38: Intangible assets are met. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, 
import duties and non-refundable taxes and any directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended use. 

(b) Subsequent costs    
 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits  embodied in the specific asset 

to which it relates. All other expenditures are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.    

(c) Amortisation    
 Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, from 

the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows:  
   

   2010 2009
   Year Year

 Pulse Code Modulation (PCM) 5 5

 Software and others    

  Billing software 5 5

  Other operational software 3 3

  Network management software 10 10

 Telecom license - spectrum 18 18

 Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if appropriate.

3.4 Leased assets    
 Leases in terms of which the group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 

leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the 
present value of minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance 
with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.    

 Leases other than finance lease are treated as operating leases and are not recognised in both consolidated and separate 
statement of financial position.    

3.5 Financial instruments 
 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity.    

3.5.1 Financial assets   
 The group initially recognises receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated.  All other financial assets are 

recognised initially on the date at which the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the transaction.

 The group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.

 Financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and long term receivables and deposits.    

(a) Accounts receivable
 Accounts receivable represent the amounts due from mobile telephony subscribers for telecom services, other operators 

for interconnection services and infrastructure sharing, customers for FON connectivity and other services and includes 
both billed and unbilled portion of such services at the date of statement of financial position. Accounts receivables are 
stated net of bad debts provision.
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(b) Cash and cash equivalents    
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with original maturities of three months or less. Bank 

overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the group’s cash management are included as a 
component of cash and cash equivalents.   

3.5.2 Financial liabilities    
 The group initially recognises debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that they are originated. All 

other financial liabilities are recognised initially on the transaction date at which the group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the liability.   

 The group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired.    

 Financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, finance lease obligation, accounts payable and other  payables.    

(a) Finance lease obligation    
 Leases in terms of which the entity assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 

leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the 
present value of minimum lease payments. The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease 
payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease, if this is practicable to determine; if not, the lessee’s incremental 
borrowing rate is used.     

(b) Loans and borrowings    
 Principal amounts of the loans and borrowings are stated at their amortised amount. Borrowings repayable after twelve 

months from the date of statement of financial position are classified as non-current liabilities whereas the portion of 
borrowings repayable within twelve months from the date of statement of financial position, unpaid interest and other 
charges are classified as current liabilities.   

(c) Payables     
 The group recognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations arising from past events are certain and the 

settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the company of resources embodying economic benefits.

3.6 Impairment    

(a) Financial assets    
 The group considers evidence of impairment for financial assets (loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investment 

securities) at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant receivables and held-to-maturity 
investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant loans and receivables and 
held-to-maturity investment securities found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any 
impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investment 
securities that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and 
receivables and held-to-maturity investment securities with similar risk characteristics. 

 Accounts receivable is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of 
the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be 
estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include default or 
delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy etc. Accordingly, 100% provision is made 
over the amount outstanding (after considering security deposits) from the churned subscribers. As per the existing credit 
policy of the company, a post paid subscriber is barred if his usage exceeds approved credit limit or any non-payment of 
invoice. A subscriber is considered churned after three months of barring. For receivables from other operators and FON 
sublease customers, bad debt provision is made after analysing the recoverability of the amount from the concerned 
parties. The provision for doubtful debts is written off as bad debts after one year from the date of recognition.

(b) Non-financial assets    
 The carrying amounts of the group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at 

each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the 
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related 
cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.  

 The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose 
of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU.
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 Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated to    
reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

 Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has 
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised.

3.7 Inventories    
 Inventories consisting of mobile handsets, data cards and other communication devices, scratch cards and SIM cards are 

valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories include expenditure incurred in acquiring the 
inventories,  production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and 
condition. Cost of inventories is determined by using the weighted average cost formula. Net realisable value is based on 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business  less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale.   

3.8 Employee benefits   

 The group maintains both defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent employees. The 
eligibility is determined according to the terms and conditions set forth in the respective deeds. Both of the plans are 
supported by separate registered funds.   

(a) Defined contribution plan (provident fund)
 The group contributes to a   registered provident fund scheme (defined contribution plan) for employees of the group 

eligible to be members of the fund in accordance with the rules of the provident fund constituted under an irrevocable 
trust. All permanent employees contribute 10% of their basic salary to the provident fund and the group also makes equal 
contribution.    

 The group recognises contribution to defined contribution plan as an expense when an employee has rendered services 
in exchange for such contribution. The legal and constructive obligation is limited to the amount it agrees to contribute to 
the fund.    

(b) Defined benefit plan (gratuity)   
 Defined benefit plan is a retirement benefit plan under which amounts to be paid as retirement benefits are determined 

by reference to employees' earnings and years of service. The employees gratuity fund is considered as defined benefit 
plan as it meets the recognition criteria. The group's obligation is to provide the agreed benefits to current and former 
employees as per condition of the fund.   

 Present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets were determined by professional actuary. 
Projected Unit Credit method is used to measure the present value of defined benefit obligations and related current and 
past service cost and mutually compatible actuarial assumptions about demographic and financial variables were used. 
The difference between fair value of the plan assets and present value of obligation is recognised as a liability or an asset 
in the statement of financial position.   

 The rate used to discount post employment benefit obligations is determined by reference to market yields at the date of 
statement of financial position on treasury bills. The expected return on plan assets is based on market expectation and is 
one of the components of expenses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.  Total expenses recognised in 
the statement of comprehensive income comprise of current service cost, interest cost and expected return on plan assets.

(c) Short term employee benefits   
 Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service 

is provided. Provision is created for the amount of annual leave encashment based on the latest basic salary. 

3.9 Income tax    
 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of 

comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is 
recognised in equity.    

(a) Current tax    
 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively 

enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. In 2009, Grameenphone 
became listed as a publicly traded company with both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges by issuing 10% of its paid 
up capital (out of which more than 5% was issued through IPO). Accordingly, the applicable tax rate for the company has
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  been reduced to 35%. The tax rate used for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:

  Year ended Tax rate

  Year ended 31 December 2010 35%

  Year ended 31 December 2009 35%

 Being a private limited company, applicable tax rate for GPIT is 37.5%. However IT enabled services provided by GPIT are 
exempted from income taxes until 30 June 2011 as per Finance Act 2010.  

(b) Deferred tax
 Deferred tax is recognised in compliance with IAS/BAS 12: Income Taxes, providing for temporary differences between the 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes. 
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, 
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the date of statement of financial position. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, 
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which 
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each date of statement of 
financial position and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

3.10 Provisions
 A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the company has a legal or constructive obligation as 

a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily measured at the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the date of statement of financial position. Where the effect of 
time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to 
be required to settle the obligation.   

 Asset retirement obligations (ARO) 
 Asset retirement obligation (ARO) is recognised when there is a legal or constructive obligation for dismantling and 

removing an item of property, plant and equipment and restoring the site on which the item is located. The company 
recognises ARO in respect of roof-top base station and office space based on the present value of expected expenditures 
required to settle the obligation. The periodic unwinding of the discount is recognised in profit or loss as a finance cost as 
it occurs.    

3.11 Revenue recognition
 Revenues are measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discount and sales related taxes 

and VAT. Revenues are reported gross with separate recording of expenses to vendors of products or services.  However, 
when the group acts only as an agent or broker on behalf of suppliers of products or services, revenues are reported on a 
net basis. Revenues of the group comprise:   

(i) Rendering of services: 
 Revenue from rendering of services includes traffic fees, subscription and connection fees, interconnection fees, various 

customer support revenues, value added service revenues, infrastructure sharing and IT related services.

(ii) Sale of goods:
 The group sells handset, data card and other device, and software to its customers. 

(a) Traffic revenue -Post paid
 Post paid revenue is recognised on accrual basis and recorded as income (exclusive of VAT) as services are rendered.

(b) Traffic revenue -Prepaid    
 Prepaid revenue is recognised (exclusive of VAT) as per the usage recorded in the network from the prepaid cards and 

electronic recharge system (ERS). The unused portion of the prepaid cards and ERS remains as unearned revenue 
(exclusive of VAT) and is reported as liability.   

(c) Subscription revenue    
 Subscription revenue represents fixed line rent charged to post paid customers for voice, content and other 

communication services. It is billed in advance and recognised evenly over the subscription period.



76/77

N
ot

es
 to

 th
e 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
ta

te
m

en
ts

(d) Connection revenue    
 Connection revenue represents the revenue arising from sale of connection to the subscribers through new SIM which is 

recognised over the estimated period of customer relationship. The estimated period of customer relationship is based on 
past history of churn and expected development. Expected development  reflects the recent development in customer 
churn in the industry as well as in other group entities.   

(e) Roaming revenue
 International roaming revenue is recognised on accrual basis as services are rendered. 

(f) Interconnection revenue
 Interconnection revenue from other  operators are recognised when GP subscribers receive calls from other operators' 

subscribers. From August 2008 onwards, interconnection revenue is recognised based on calls through interconnection 
exchange (ICX) and international gateways (IGW).   

(g) Other operating revenue    
 Other operating revenue comprises customers support revenue, VAS, SMS, MMS and other revenue from content 

providers and is recognised in the same manner as corresponding prepaid traffic revenue and post-paid traffic revenue 
recognition policy.    

(h) Other non mobile revenue   
 Other non mobile revenue represents revenue earned from sale of handset, data card and various services like bill 

payment services, channel fees etc. Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered or services are rendered.

(i) Infrastructure sharing     
 Revenue from infrastructure sharing comprises lease of telecom infrastructure, including base station shelter, generators, 

and charges for fuel and power support. Leases are recognised as  per IAS/BAS 17: Leases. revenues are recognised on 
accrual basis based on actual usage/consumption by the customers.  

(j) Sub lease of optical fibre network   
 Rental income from sub-lease of optical fibre network is recognised on accrual basis in accordance with the provisions of 

relevant agreements.    

(k) Rendering IT service    
 Revenue from IT service is recognised on a percentage of completion basis. Percentage of completion of service is 

determined upon periodic review and usually evidenced by work completion certificate. Revenue is recognised only when 
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity.

(l) Sale of software    
 Revenue from the sale of software is recognised when significant risks and rewards associated with the software is 

transferred and the entity retains neither significant managerial involvement nor effective control over the software. The 
other criteria for revenue recognition, i.e. availability of reliable measure for revenue and associated costs and probable 
flow of economic benefits to the entity must also be met. Accordingly, delivery of a software is not considered complete 
and revenue is not recognised when the software is shipped subject to installation and the installation is a significant part 
of the contract which has not yet been completed by the entity.   

3.12 Deferred connection revenue   
 Deferred connection revenue represents the portion of connection revenue which is deferred over the remaining period 

of estimated customer relationship.   

3.13 Deferred cost of connection revenue   
 Deferred cost of connection revenue represents the costs directly related to the acquisition of subscribers. Connection 

costs in excess of connection revenue is charged as expenses when incurred. Connection costs up to connection revenue 
are deferred and amortised over the period of estimated customer relationship. 

3.14 Leases    

(a) Finance lease    
 Leases in terms of which the entity assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 

leases. Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the 
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
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(b) Operating lease    
 All leases other than those which meet the definition of finance lease are treated as operating lease and are not 

recognised in the statement of financial position.   

3.15  Foreign currency transactions   
 Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the books at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the 

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at the date of statement of financial position are 
translated into Bangladesh taka at the rate of exchange prevailing at that date. All exchange differences were recognised 
in the statement of comprehensive income as per IAS/BAS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

3.16 Earnings per share    
 The group/company presents basic and diluted (when dilution is applicable) earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary 

shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the group/company by 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for the effect of change in 
number of shares for bonus issue, share split and reverse split. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of 
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. However, dilution of EPS is not applicable for these financial statements as there was 
no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the relevant periods.  

3.17 Events after the reporting period
 Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the group's/company's position at the date of 

statement of financial position or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are reflected in the 
financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when 
material.
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Taka

Separate

2009
Taka

Individual

4.1 Land
 Land represents freehold land acquired for office premises and base stations.  

4.2 Base station and transmission equipment
 Base station and transmission equipment which form the major part of the telecommunication network include Radio 

Base Station (RBS) and related accessories, Base Station Controllers (BSC), Trans-Receiver Unit (TRU), GSM antenna, 
tower, site infrastructure, civil works, microwave links, Mobile Switching Centres (MSC), Home Location Register (HLR) and 
other equipment and accessories.      

 In 2009, a portion of GP's core network equipment (included in base station and transmission equipment) supplied by 
Ericsson having carrying amount of Tk 2,795,643,569 was exchanged against network equipment supplied by Huawei 
Technologies Co. Limited (Huawei). Although the  transaction had commercial substance in terms of its impact on 
configuration of future cash flows, reliable information regarding fair market value of the assets acquired or the assets 
given up was not available. Accordingly, costs of the assets acquired were measured at the carrying amount of the assets 
given up in compliance with applicable accounting standards.     

 Further, in September 2010, a similar agreement was signed between Grameenphone and Huawei for supply of network 
equipment and related maintenance services. Under the agreement, existing base stations and transmission equipment 
of Grameenphone will be replaced by new equipment supplied by Huawei. Exchange of assets under the contract is 
expected to occur during 2011- 2013.      

4.3 Capital work in progress (CWIP)
 This represents primarily the cost of network equipment under construction and capital inventories. The components of 

network equipment were procured mostly from Ericsson and Huawei.     

4.3.1  Capital work in progress  transferred
  The amount of CWIP completed and transferred during the year to the corresponding items of property, plant and 

equipment was as follows:

  Name of assets
 
  Building (a) 4,018,620,231 4,018,620,231  -
  Base station 2,814,553,658 2,814,553,658  5,686,463,561
  Transmission equipment 2,257,885,889 2,257,885,889 4,309,646,132
  Computers and other IT equipment 315,331,460 307,124,216 294,103,846
  Furniture and fixtures (a) 461,969,932 461,969,932  65,923,615
  Vehicles 196,675,019  196,675,019  93,431,947
  CWIP transferred 10,065,036,189  10,056,828,945  10,449,569,101
  Adjustment (write-off) 23,088 23,088  16,501,624
  Total transfer/adjustment of CWIP 10,065,059,277 10,056,852,033  10,466,070,725

(a)  Construction of Corporate Head Office
  Construction of Corporate Head Office of Grameenphone, GPHOUSE, which started during 2005, was completed in 

August 2010 and was capitalised on 1 September 2010. Accumulated cost for the assets up to completion was Tk 
4,440,612,053 (including capitalised borrowing costs of Tk 382,346,681).    

  The components of GPHouse are expected to have different useful lives ranging from 5 to 50 years. Accordingly, these 
components were capitalised as separate items under different sub-categories mentioned below on the basis of their 
respective nature and expected useful lives.

   Expected useful life  Cost
   Years  Taka

  Building
  Sub structure and super structure  50  1,187,399,199

  Indoor facilities and fittings 10 - 20  1,893,985,086

  Fencing, fenestration, raised floor and ceiling 15 - 25  937,235,946

    4,018,620,231

  Furniture and fixtures 5 421,991,822

    4,440,612,053
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4.3.2 Capital work in progress - components
  Capital work in progress of the company as at 31 December 2010 consists of capital inventory of Tk 1,478,397,052 (2009: 

Tk 1,086,510,194), and base station, transmission and other telecom equipment, and civil works of Tk 2,492,217,414 
(2009: Tk 1,842,355,368). 

  In addition to the above, CWIP in the consolidated financial statements includes Tk. 168,631,962 representing cost of 
computers and other IT equipment of GPIT which were in process of installation at the reporting date.

4.4 Fibre Optic Network under finance lease
  This represents the fibre optic network acquired under finance lease from Bangladesh Railway (BR). The lease agreement 

with BR is valid until June 2027. 

4.5 Capitalisation of borrowing costs 

  During the year ended 31 December 2010, Grameenphone capitalised Tk. 91,599,570 (2009: Tk. 189,744,831)  as a part 
of cost of GPHouse as per the requirements of IAS/BAS 23: Borrowing Costs.

4.6 Allocation of depreciation charged during the year

  

  

  Cost of network operation (Note 38) 14,736,928,488  14,736,911,684  14,481,369,413 

  Operating expenses (Note 38) 836,507,111  836,507,111  1,099,739,855 

   15,573,435,599  15,573,418,795  15,581,109,268 

4.7 Security 

  Property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of Tk 7,208,750,000 was subject to mortgage registered with the 
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms (RJSC) against the loans and borrowings obtained from senior lenders. 
These loans were fully repaid by December 2010 and accordingly the mortgage is in the process of cancellation.

4.8 Change in estimates 

  Estimated useful life of air conditioners at office locations was reduced to 3 years from 5 years during 2010 as a result of 
regular review of useful lives of assets. The effects of such change in useful life on the financial statements are 
summarised below:

  Decrease/(increase) in depreciation (62,032,164) (62,032,164)

  Decrease/(increase) in income tax expense 21,711,257  21,711,257 

  Increase/(decrease) in profit (40,320,907) (40,320,907)

  Increase/(decrease) in property, plant and equipment  (62,032,164) (62,032,164)

  Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax liability 21,711,257  21,711,257 

  Increase/(decrease) in equity  (40,320,907) (40,320,907)

2010
Taka

Consolidated

2010
Taka

Separate

2010
Taka

2011
Taka

2009
Taka

Individual
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Year 2010 (Consolidated)

Disposal/ Disposal/
As at Addition Adjustment

As at As at Charged 
Adjustment As at As at

1 January during during
31 December 1 January during the

during 31 December 31 December
Name of assets

2010 the year the year
2010 2010 the year

the year 2010 2010

Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka

Pulse Code Modulation (PCM) 64,550,000 9,148,000 - 73,698,000 50,517,442 10,455,865 - 60,973,307 12,724,693

Software and others (Note 5.1) 4,438,938,377 501,605,190 (2,729,720) 4,937,813,847 2,635,817,541 880,791,701 (2,729,720) 3,513,879,522 1,423,934,325

Telecom licence - spectrum (Note 5.2) 5,920,000,000 - - 5,920,000,000 384,602,307 328,888,888 - 713,491,195 5,206,508,805

10,423,488,377 510,753,190 (2,729,720) 10,931,511,847 3,070,937,290 1,220,136,454 (2,729,720) 4,288,344,024 6,643,167,823

Capital work in progress (Note 5.3) 328,575,806 530,425,659 (510,753,190) 348,248,275 - - - - 348,248,275

10,752,064,183 1,041,178,849 (513,482,910) 11,279,760,122 3,070,937,290 1,220,136,454 (2,729,720) 4,288,344,024 6,991,416,098

Cost Amortisation Carrying amount

Disposal/ Disposal/As at Addition Adjustment
As at As at Charged Adjustment As at As at

1 January during during
31 December 1 January during the during 31 December 31 December

Name of assets

2010 the year the year
2010 2010 the year the year 2010 2010

Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka

Pulse Code Modulation (PCM) 64,550,000 9,148,000 - 73,698,000 50,517,442 10,455,865 - 60,973,307 12,724,693

Software and others (Note 5.1) 4,438,938,377 501,605,190 (2,729,720) 4,937,813,847 2,635,817,541 880,791,701 (2,729,720) 3,513,879,522 1,423,934,325

Telecom licence - spectrum (Note 5.2) 5,920,000,000 - - 5,920,000,000 384,602,307 328,888,888 - 713,491,195 5,206,508,805

10,423,488,377 510,753,190 (2,729,720) 10,931,511,847 3,070,937,290 1,220,136,454 (2,729,720) 4,288,344,024 6,643,167,823

Capital work in progress (Note 5.3) 328,575,806 426,937,480 (510,753,190) 244,760,096 - - - - 244,760,096

10,752,064,183 937,690,670 (513,482,910) 11,176,271,943 3,070,937,290 1,220,136,454 (2,729,720) 4,288,344,024 6,887,927,919

Carrying amountCost Amortisation

Year 2010 (separate)

Year 2009 (Individual)

Disposal/ Disposal/
As at Addition Adjustment As at As at Charged Adjustment As at As at

1 January during during 31 December 1 January during the during 31 December 31 December
Name of assets

2009 the year the year 2009 2009 year the year 2009 2009

Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka

Pulse Code Modulation (PCM) 64,530,000 20,000 - 64,550,000 43,524,341 6,993,101 - 50,517,442 14,032,558

Software and others (Note 5.1) 3,956,465,902 801,362,308 (318,889,833) 4,438,938,377 2,003,467,446 809,996,486 (177,646,391) 2,635,817,541 1,803,120,836

Telecom licence - spectrum (Note 5.2) 5,920,000,000 - - 5,920,000,000 55,713,418 328,888,889 - 384,602,307 5,535,397,693

9,940,995,902 801,382,308 (318,889,833) 10,423,488,377 2,102,705,205 1,145,878,476 (177,646,391) 3,070,937,290 7,352,551,087

Capital work in progress (Note 5.3) 355,354,846 785,480,006 (812,259,046) 328,575,806 - - - - 328,575,806

10,296,350,748 1,586,862,314 (1,131,148,879) 10,752,064,183 2,102,705,205 1,145,878,476 (177,646,391) 3,070,937,290 7,681,126,893

Cost Amortisation Carrying amount

5.1 Software and others
 Software includes business software and network management software. Business software includes mainly billing 

software, Oracle financial software  and other business software. Network management software represents  PPS, Paso 
link, minilink etc.

5.2 Telecom licence - spectrum
 This represents the cost of spectrum licence obtained from BTRC. In September 2008, GP acquired licence for use of 

additional 7.4 MHz spectrum for subsequent 18 years in consideration for BDT 800 million per MHz.

5.3 Capital work in progress (CWIP)
 CWIP includes cost of software in process of installation/ implementation and also software under testing phase awaiting 

users' acceptance.

 CWIP in the consolidated financial statements includes Tk. 103,488,179 representing cost of Network Engineering 
Resource Management (NERM) software and capitalised personnel and other direct costs for NERM. The software is in the 
process of installation for GP by GPIT.

5   Intangible assets
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Handset, data card
and other device

Taka

SIM card 

Taka

Scratch card

Taka

2010
Taka

Consolidated

2010
Taka

Separate

2009
Taka

Individual

2010
Units

Consolidated

2010
Units

Separate

2009
Units

Individual

5.4 Allocation of amortisation expense
 during the year

  Cost of network operation (Note 38) 595,017,187 595,017,187 566,953,776
  Operating expenses (Note 38) 625,119,267  625,119,267  578,924,700
   1,220,136,454  1,220,136,454  1,145,878,476

6 Investment in subsidiary
 This represents GP's investment in GPIT, a wholly owned subsidiary of GP. GPIT was incorporated on 28 January 2010 with 

the objective of providing IT related services to GP and other external parties. The newly formed subsidiary was registered 
as a private limited company with an authorised share capital of Tk 7,500,000,000 divided into 75,000,000 shares of Tk 
100 each. As at 31 December 2010, paid up capital of GPIT was Tk. 75,000,000 representing 75,000 shares, out of which 
749,999 shares (99.99% of total share capital) were subscribed by GP at face value.

7 Long term deposits
 These represent the deposit maintained with Southeast Bank Limited as lien against bank guarantees issued in favour of  

 rof yawliaR hsedalgnaB dna ecnecil mocelet rof hsedalgnaB fo tnemnrevoG ,snoitacinummoceleT dna stsoP fo yrtsiniM 
lease of optical fibre network. This amount is refundable upon cancellation of guarantee.

8 Inventories
  Handset, data card and other device 133,374,666 133,374,666 55,362,359
  SIM card (Note 8.2) 633,598,995 633,598,995 363,659,067
  Scratch card 67,381,665 67,381,665 11,848,783
   834,355,326  834,355,326  430,870,209

8.1 Movement of inventories

  Balance as at 1 January 2009 13,469,924  353,171,527 40,543,246
  Purchase during the year 2009 509,792,328 470,029,187 25,457,560
  Issued during the year 2009 (445,361,051) (455,182,713) (41,030,324)
   77,901,201   368,018,001   24,970,482 
  Adjustment/write-off for obsolescence (22,538,842) (4,358,934) (13,121,699)
  Balance as at 31 December 2009 55,362,359  363,659,067  11,848,783 
 
  Purchase during the year 2010 1,187,172,203  805,866,013 72,949,983 
  Issued during the year 2010 (1,058,734,515)  (532,711,300) (17,376,328)
   183,800,047  636,813,780  67,422,438 
  Adjustment/write-off for obsolescence 
  and net realizable value (50,425,381) (3,214,785) (40,773)
  Balance as at 31 December 2010 133,374,666 633,598,995  67,381,665
 
  During 2010 handset inventories were written down by Tk 42,713,999 (2009: Tk 1,329,258) to reflect net realisable value 

of such inventories.

8.2 Number of inventories

  Handset, data card and other device 136,081 136,081 8,252
  SIM card (Note 8.3) 6,221,301 6,221,301 4,489,268
  Scratch card 44,681,581 44,681,581 26,384,723

8.3 SIM card   
  As at 31 December 2010, GP had 6,221,301 SIM cards (2009: 4,489,268 SIM cards) out of which 1,505,220 SIM cards 

(2009: 639,226 SIM cards) were intended to be issued with new connection to subscribers. Each new connection attracts 
Tk. 800 as VAT and Supplementary Duty to be paid to Govt. exchequer.
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9 Deferred cost of connection revenue

  Balance as at 1 January 483,550,116 483,550,116 360,712,137
  Addition during the year 210,567,585 210,567,585 322,972,861
    694,117,701 694,117,701 683,684,998
  Amortisation during the year (209,275,220) (209,275,220) (200,134,882)
  Balance as at 31 December 484,842,481 484,842,481 483,550,116

10 Accounts receivable, net  
  Receivables for mobile service-interconnection (Note 10.1) 4,877,394,453 4,877,394,453  4,505,904,450
  Receivables for mobile service-post paid and others (Note 10.2) 180,435,548 180,435,548 162,048,506
  Receivables for infrastructure sharing (Note 10.3) 153,522,463 153,522,463 -
  Receivables for sub lease of fibre optic network (Note 10.4) 22,995,771 22,995,771 24,685,230
  Other receivables for non-mobile service (Note 10.5) 13,597,537 3,311,174 4,427,976
   5,247,945,772  5,237,659,409 4,697,066,162

10.1 Receivables for mobile service-interconnection  
  Accounts receivable 5,095,844,311 5,095,844,311  4,534,263,197
  Provision for doubtful debts (218,449,858) (218,449,858) (28,358,747)
   4,877,394,453 4,877,394,453 4,505,904,450

10.2 Receivables for mobile service-post paid and others  
  Accounts receivable  234,980,149 234,980,149 271,826,022
  Provision for doubtful debts (54,544,601) (54,544,601) (109,777,516)
   180,435,548 180,435,548 162,048,506

  Receivables for mobile service-post paid and others include receivables from post paid subscribers, content providers, 
and channel partners.

10.3 Receivables for infrastructure sharing  
  Accounts receivable 153,522,463 153,522,463 -
  Provision for doubtful debts - -  -
   153,522,463 153,522,463  -

10.4 Receivables for sub lease of fibre optic network  
  Accounts receivable- sublease  30,351,110  30,351,110  31,909,788 
  Provision for doubtful debt (7,355,339) (7,355,339)  (7,224,558)
   22,995,771   22,995,771  24,685,230

10.5 Other receivables for non-mobile service  
  Other receivables for non-mobile service include receivables against broadband internet service, bill pay service of GP 

and receivables against IT services provided by GPIT to external customers.  

10.6 Provision for doubtful debts   
  Balance as at 1 January 145,360,821  145,360,821  260,530,745 
  Provision made during the year 251,991,051  251,991,051  91,628,074 
   397,351,872  397,351,872  352,158,819 
  Written off during the year (117,002,074) (117,002,074) (206,797,998)
  Balance as at 31 December 280,349,798  280,349,798  145,360,821

10.7 Security against accounts receivable  
  Good and secured 402,024,879  402,024,879  3,495,124,415 
  Good and having no security other than personal security 4,845,920,893  4,835,634,530  1,201,941,747 
  Doubtful and bad 280,349,798  280,349,798  145,360,821 
  Gross accounts receivable 5,528,295,570  5,518,009,207  4,842,426,983 
  Provision for bad and doubtful debts (280,349,798) (280,349,798)  (145,360,821)
  Net accounts receivable 5,247,945,772  5,237,659,409  4,697,066,162
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10.8 Debts due by directors, officers and other related parties
  As at 31 December, accounts receivable does not include any receivable from:

  (a) the directors and other officers of the company/group;

  (b) firms or private limited companies respectively in which  any director of Grameenphone Ltd. is a partner, director or 
member, other than those disclosed in note 51.1; and  

  (c) companies under the same management.

  

11 Other receivables   
  Accrued interest 156,269,520  156,269,520  44,665,557 
  Receivable from Ericsson 428,123,981  428,123,981  428,123,981 
  Receivable from other Telenor entities ( Note 11.1) 182,467,922  182,467,922  120,838,513 
  Receivable from GPIT (Note 11.2) -    304,773,298  -   
  Receivable from other external parties 161,158,846  158,883,376  168,695,264 
    928,020,269  1,230,518,097  762,323,315

11.1 Receivable from other Telenor entities   
  Receivable from other Telenor entities includes reimbursable expenses incurred on behalf of Telenor and its subsidiaries 

as well as other inter company receivables.  

11.2 Receivable from GPIT   
  Receivable from GPIT includes receivable for reimbursable office running expenses (Tk 31,911,047), IT related maintenance 

charges paid on behalf of GPIT (Tk. 47,931,921), preliminary expenses of GPIT (Tk 13,870,968), rent for GPHOUSE                  
(Tk. 17,132,616), and reimbursable cost for computers and other IT equipment (Tk 168,631,953) and relevant VAT.   

12 Advances, deposits and prepayments 

  Advances   
  Advance to employees (Note 12.1) 78,945,026  70,281,406  51,378,857 
  Advance to Bangladesh Railway 5,545,166  5,545,166  3,181,426 
  Advance for capital expenditure (Note 12.2) 343,053,611  321,809,991  444,382,534 
  Advance to GPIT for NERM project -    161,032,225  -   
  Advance VAT (Note 12.3) 30,016,625  -    -   
  Other advances 1,006,311  853,156  719,651 
   458,566,739  559,521,944  499,662,468

  Deposits    
  Deposit for bank guarantee (Note 12.4) 127,957,944  127,957,944  127,957,944 
  Security deposit for utilities and services 60,483,786  60,483,786  54,897,307 
   188,441,730  188,441,730  182,855,251

  Prepayments    
  Prepayment against rent (Note 12.5) 295,451,291  295,451,291  288,961,363 
  Prepayment against expenses (Note 12.6) 679,178,079  675,546,464  235,134,835 
   974,629,370  970,997,755  524,096,198 
   1,621,637,839  1,718,961,429  1,206,613,917

12.1 Advance to employees   
  This includes advances made to employees in relation to official travel, training,  office utility bills, other office running 

expenses etc.   

12.2 Advance for capital expenditure   
  This includes advance to vendors for civil works and towers at different sites and other advances for acquisition/ 

construction of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

12.3 Advance VAT   
  This represents advance VAT of GPIT and includes debit balance of VAT current account, and VAT deducted at source 

(which can be reclaimed as rebate) by customers from GPIT's bills against which VAT deduction certificates and/or copy 
of treasury challans are yet to be received.    
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12.4 Deposit for bank guarantee 
  This represents the bank guarantee margin deposited at different banks against guarantee provided in favour of Customs 

authority and other parties.   

12.5 Prepayment against rent   
  This represents payment of rent in advance for base stations and office locations.  

12.6 Prepayment against expenses  
  This includes prepaid insurance premium, payment to suppliers for operating inventories, spare parts, software support 

maintenance and others.   

12.7 Security against advances 

  Good and secured 343,053,611  321,809,991  444,382,534 
  Good and having no security other than personal security 115,513,128  237,711,953  55,279,934 
  Doubtful and bad -    -    -   
   458,566,739  559,521,944  499,662,468 
  Provision for bad and doubtful amount -    -    -   
  Total advances 458,566,739  559,521,944  499,662,468

12.8 Loans and advances to subsidiaries, directors, officers and other related parties 
  Other than those  mentioned in note above, there was no loans or advances to-  

  (a) Directors of the company/group;   

  (b) Firms or private limited companies respectively in which  any director of Grameenphone Ltd. is a partner, director or 
member; and   

  (c) Subsidiaries or companies under the same management. 

13 Short term investment   
  This represents the amount of fixed deposits having maturity period of more than three months at the following banks-

  State Bank of India 356,550,000  356,550,000  -   
  Southeast Bank Limited 1,161,620  1,161,620  -   
  Standard Chartered Bank 100,000,000  100,000,000  -   
  Pubali Bank Ltd. 700,000,000  700,000,000  -   
  NCC Bank Ltd. 454,122,500  454,122,500  -   
  Jamuna Bank Limited 541,894,990  541,894,990  500,000,000 
  Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 400,000,000  400,000,000  -   
  Bank Asia Limited 200,000,000  200,000,000  -   
    2,753,729,110  2,753,729,110  500,000,000

  Interest rates on the above FDRs range from 8.25% to 11% (2009: 9%).
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14 Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash in hand 3,737,483  3,697,741  7,422,192

  Cash at bank :    
   Southeast Bank Limited 1,341,255,729  1,341,255,729  618,226,240 
   Standard Chartered Bank 481,974,849  235,593,382  329,492,761 
   Sonali Bank Limited 10,372,742  10,372,742  9,112,126 
   IFIC Bank Limited 734,094,183  734,094,183  310,245,153 
   Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 114,235,913  114,235,913  370,478,423 
   Export Import Bank of Bangladesh Limited 1,220,496,073  1,220,496,073  509,456,920 
   Citibank, N.A. (Note 14.1) 1,790,754,085  1,790,754,085  987,567,559 
   Dhaka Bank Limited 345,695,375  345,695,375  512,650,251 
   AB Bank Limited 1,310,677,500  1,310,677,500    -   
   Islami Bank Bangladesh Limited 1,811,608  1,811,608  9,585,159 
   One Bank Limited 677,230,821  677,230,821  1,355,622,153 
   The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited 323,126,235  314,931,502  829,155,699 
   Prime Bank Limited 1,165,222,607  1,165,222,607  629,764,197 
   Premier Bank Limited 666,824,444  666,824,444  500,288,702 
   Dutch-Bangla Bank Limited 17,118,741  15,161,957  372,855,996 
   Eastern Bank Limited 177,397,337  177,397,337  710,658,504 
   National Bank Limited 1,320,631,806  1,320,631,806  513,583,396 
   BRAC Bank Limited 993,928,719  993,928,719  1,151,503,585 
   The City Bank Limited 260,262,726  260,262,726  428,247,825 
   Trust Bank Limited 13,030,577  13,030,577  504,697,678 
   Bank Asia Limited 1,039,663,592   1,039,663,592  503,381,293 
   Mercantile Bank Limited 1,261,929,492  1,261,929,492  402,205,090 
   United Commercial Bank Ltd. 630,927,317  630,927,317  302,998,526 
   NCC Bank Ltd. 102,137,500  102,137,500  -   
   Jamuna Bank Limited (Note 14.2) 255,869,855  255,869,855  12,037,622 
   Agrani Bank Limited 1,286,457  1,286,457  5,725,486 
   Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited 1,141,777,137  1,141,777,137  1,403,465,596 
   Woori Bank 700,751  700,751  4,878,157 
   Pubali Bank Ltd. -    -    300,000,000 
   Bank Alfalah Ltd. 344,753,073  344,753,073  300,167,744 
   Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. 407,485,675  407,485,675  -   
   Standard Bank Limited 304,377,500  304,377,500  -   
   Social Investment Bank Limited 50,000,000  50,000,000  -   
   Utility bill pay service collection A/C (Note 14.3) 418,184,172  418,184,172  203,505,631 
   Collection account with other banks (Note 14.4) 2,530,478  2,530,478  2,333,423 
    18,927,765,069  18,671,232,085  14,093,890,895 
    18,931,502,552  18,674,929,826  14,101,313,087

14.1  This includes Tk. 1,499,415 (2009: Tk. 88,517,671) representing amounts received against share application which were 
in the process of being refunded as at 31 December 2010.

14.2  Fixed deposit of Tk. 500,000,000 at Jamuna Bank Limited was rearranged and presented under short term investment in 
2010. This amount was included in cash at bank in 2009 considering the significance of the amount and remaining 
maturity period.  

14.3 Utility bill pay service collection A/C   
  This represents the amount deposited at Citibank, N.A. (2010: Tk 268,220,631; 2009: Tk 123,335,836) and BRAC Bank 

Limited (2010: Tk 15,502,791; 2009: Tk 80,169,795) and other banks (2010: Tk. 134,460,750; 2009: Nil) on account of 
utility bill pay services as at 31 December. Use of this amount is restricted to settlement of payable for bills pay receipt as 
mentioned in note 27. 
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Face value of
Tk. 1 per share

Taka

Face value of
Tk. 10 per share

Taka

14.4 Collection account with other banks
  This represents the amount which was in transit as at 31 December.   

15 Share capital

  Authorised:   

  4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 40,000,000,000 40,000,000,000 40,000,000,000
   40,000,000,000 40,000,000,000 40,000,000,000
  Issued, subscribed, called up and paid up:  
  1,350,300,022 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 13,503,000,220 13,503,000,220 13,503,000,220
   13,503,000,220 13,503,000,220 13,503,000,220

  Movement of share capital

  Balance as at 1 January 2009    
  (12,151,747,970 shares of Tk. 1 each) 12,151,747,970  -

  Issue of additional shares to the existing shareholders   
  250 shares of Tk. 1 per share 250  -   
  Effect of reverse split during 2009 (12,151,748,220)  12,151,748,220 
   (Issue of shares of Tk. 10 against 10 shares of Taka 1)  -
  Issue of shares to the public, institutional investors and others (Note 15.1)   
   69,439,400 shares of Tk 10 each through Initial Public Offering (IPO)  -  694,394,000
   65,685,800 shares of Tk 10 each through Private Placement Offering (PPO)  - 656,858,000
  Balance as at 31 December 2009 -  13,503,000,220

  The company was initially registered with ordinary shares of Tk 43.00 each. These shares were subsequently converted 
into Tk 10 shares through a 43:1 split at the 16th EGM (held on 15 July 2008) and 1:10 reverse split at the 19th EGM (held 
on 2 July 2009).   

  There has been no change in share capital during 2010.

15.1 Issue of shares to the public, institutional investors and others
  In 2009, Grameenphone issued 65,685,800 shares at the rate of Tk. 74 per share including a premium of Tk. 64 per share 

to institutional investors, GP employees and Grameen bank borrowers through Private Placement Offering (PPO); and 
69,439,400 shares at the rate of Tk. 70 per share including a premium of Tk. 60 were  issued to the public through Initial 
Public Offering (IPO) processes.

15.2 Shareholding position   

a) Percentage of shareholdings

 Name of shareholders % of holding Value of shares (Taka)

  2010 2009 2010 2009
 Telenor Mobile Communications AS, 
 Norway 55.8% 55.8% 7,534,077,240  7,534,077,240 

 Nye Telenor Mobile Communications 
 II AS, Norway 0.0% 0.0% 2,150  2,150

 Nye Telenor Mobile Communications  
 III AS, Norway 0.0% 0.0% 2,150  2,150

 Telenor Asia Pte Ltd, Singapore 0.0% 0.0% 2,150  2,150

 Grameen Telecom, Bangladesh 34.2% 34.2% 4,617,664,090  4,617,664,090

 Grameen Kalyan, Bangladesh 0.0% 0.0% 220  220

 Grameen Shakti, Bangladesh 0.0% 0.0% 220  220 

 General public, GP employees and  
 institutions 10.0% 10.0% 1,351,252,000  1,351,252,000 
  100% 100% 13,503,000,220  13,503,000,220
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  Balance as at 1 January 7,840,225,942  7,840,225,942   13,743,987 

  Addition during the year (Note 16.1) -    -    8,370,259,450 

  Adjustment of share issue costs (Note 16.2) -    -    (543,777,495)

  Balance as at 31 December 7,840,225,942  7,840,225,942   7,840,225,942

16.1  In 2009, total amount of Tk 8,370,259,450 was received as share premium in respect of shares issued to the existing 
shareholders, GP employees, Grameen bank borrowers, institutional investors and to general public.

16.2  Net issue cost of Tk 543,777,495  was set off against share premium as per IAS 32: Financial Instruments: Presentation.

17 Capital reserve   

  In 1999, Grameenphone issued 5,086,779 preference shares of Tk 45.84 each, which were converted into ordinary shares 
of Tk 43.00 each in 2004. The balance Tk 2.84 per share was transferred to capital reserve account. The conversion was 
in accordance with clauses 41 to 44 of Memorandum and Articles of Association of GP. This amount is not distributable  as 
dividend as per the Companies Act 1994.  

18 Deposit from shareholders
  Balance as at 1 January 1,880,178  1,880,178  1,882,996 

  Utilised against issue of right shares -     -    (2,818)

  Balance as at 31 December 1,880,178  1,880,178  1,880,178

  Deposit from shareholders as at 31 December represents balance of the share money received from Telenor Mobile 
Communications AS, Norway, which has not been used against issuance of shares.

19 General reserve   

  Grameenphone availed tax holiday benefits from 1 June 2001 to 31 May 2006 as per the provisions of Income Tax 
Ordinance 1984. A tax holiday reserve was created during the Tax Holiday period to ensure investment in compliance with 
the said ordinance. The reserve was subsequently transferred to general reserve upon fulfilment of necessary conditions.

20 Non controlling interest
  Non controlling interest is the equity in GPIT not attributable, directly or indirectly, to GP. This includes the amount of paid 

up capital and proportionate share of accumulated profit of GPIT attributable to shareholders of GPIT other than GP.

2010
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Consolidated
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Individual

 Shareholding range No. of shareholders No. of shares

  2010 2009 2010 2009

1-500 81,024  179,001  17,945,880  36,663,152 
501-5,000 17,159  9,793  24,439,298  14,611,180 
5,001-10,000 1,089  828  7,853,255  5,993,944 
10,001-20,000 527  418   7,481,613  5,824,433 
20,001-30,000 121   104  2,917,988  2,544,649 
30,001-40,000 73  57  2,565,305   1,991,885 
40,001-50,000 46   33  2,091,771  1,497,906 
50,001-100,000 85  85  6,156,150  6,125,896 
100,001-1,000,000 90  66  23,516,430  20,304,723 
1,000,001-1,000,000,000 12  14  1,255,332,332  1,254,742,254 
  100,226  190,399  1,350,300,022  1,350,300,022 

b) Classification of shareholders by range of number of shares held
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21 Loans and borrowings, net of current portion

  IFC (Note 21.1) -    -    206,389,257 
  ADB (Note 21.1) -    -    152,690,367 
  NORFUND (Note 21.1) -    -    71,782,052 
  Eksportfinans ASA (Note 21.2) -    -    49,037,159 
  NORAD (Note 21.3) -    -    98,074,370 
  Local syndicated loan (Note 21.4)  -    -    1,376,893,993 
   -    -    1,954,867,198 
  Current portion of loans and borrowings (Note 21.5) -    -    (1,036,943,071)
   -    -    917,924,127

  The above lenders are referred to as senior lenders in other parts of this financial statements. 

21.1 Loan from IFC, ADB and NORFUND  
  In 2004, Grameenphone  Ltd. entered into loan agreements with IFC, ADB and NORFUND for a total amount of USD 60 million, 

which was financed in proportion of 3:2:1 respectively. GP drew USD 25 million (USD 12.5 million from IFC, USD 8.33 million from 
ADB and USD 4.17 million from NORFUND) as the first instalment on 26 August 2004. The second and third instalments 
amounting to USD 15 million and USD 20 million respectively were drawn on 29 March 2005 and 26 April 2005 respectively.

  The loans were repayable in 10 semi annual instalments starting from 15 December 2005 with the following interest rates:
  If net debt : EBITDA >1; LIBOR + 3.5% per annum.   
  If net debt : EBITDA <1 and > 0.5 ; LIBOR + 3.25% per annum.   
  If net debt : EBITDA <0.5; LIBOR + 3.0% per annum.  

21.2 Loan from Eksportfinans ASA
  Grameenphone Ltd. borrowed NOK 25 million in December 2000 from Eksportfinans ASA, Norway with interest to be paid 

at the rate of 6 months NIBOR (the rate appearing on page NIBOR on the Reuters money rate service) plus 30 basis points 
per annum. The loan is repayable in 14 equal semi-annual instalments starting from 29 June 2004. 

21.3  Loan from The Norwegian Agency For Development And Cooperation (NORAD)
  Grameenphone Ltd. entered into an agreement with NORAD to obtain  loan of  NOK 50 million and to obtain guarantee in its 

favour to borrow another NOK 25 million from Eksportfinans. According to the terms of the contract, interest at 3.4% per annum 
on drawdown amount was payable semi-annually starting after 6 months from the first drawdown date. The principal amount 
was repayable in 14 instalments with the  first instalment falling due 42 months after the last drawdown date. GP received the 
loan in two instalments; one on 30 December 1997 (NOK 35 million) and another on 3 January 2001 (NOK 15 million).

21.4 Local syndicated loan
  On 17 September 2007, Grameenphone Ltd. signed a Tk 2 billion syndicated loan agreement with 16 local financial 

institutions, namely Agrani Bank, Bank Asia, Citibank, N.A., IDCOL, IFIC Bank, Jamuna Bank, National Bank, Pubali Bank, 
SABINCO, Sonali Bank, Standard Bank, Standard Chartered Bank, Trust Bank, The City Bank, United Commercial Bank and 
Uttara Bank. Standard Chartered Bank was the lead arranger for the syndicated loan.  Applicable interest rate for the loan 
was 13.50% per annum to be compounded daily. The loan was repayable through 17 quarterly instalments each 
representing 5.8824% of the  principal. The repayment started on 15 November 2008.

21.5 Loans and borrowings - current portion
  IFC - -    206,389,257 
  ADB -    -    152,690,367 
  NORFUND -    -    71,782,052 
  Eksportfinans ASA -    -    49,037,159 
  NORAD -    -    98,074,370 
  Local syndicated loan -    -    458,969,866 
   -    -    1,036,943,071

21.6 Repayment of loans and borrowings 
  During 2010, the loans from IFC, ADB, NORFUND, Eksportfinans ASA and NORAD were repaid in full at maturity while local 

syndicated loan was repaid prior to maturity on 30 June 2010. The local loan had a contractual maturity on 15 October 2012.
  The early settlement of local syndicated loan did not involve any additional cost as breakage charge or early settlement 

charge.
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21.7 Security against loans and borrowings
  All the above loans were secured by a first priority floating charge on the company's undertakings, property and assets, 

present and future, including goodwill and money held to the credit of the company's bank accounts to the extent of Tk 
7,208,750,000. Following full repayment of all the loans, the above charge is in the process of being cancelled.

21.8 Tenure of repayment of loans and borrowings

  The tenure of repayment as per the agreements 
  are as follows:   

  Payable not later than 1 year N/A N/A 53%
  Payable later than 1 year but not later than 5 years N/A N/A 47%

21.9 Credit facilities available as at 31 December   
  The group enjoys both funded and non funded short term working capital facilities with 16 banks. The non funded facilities 

include Letters of Credit (LC), Letters of Guarantee and foreign exchange forward contracts (FX Forward). The funded 
facilities include overdraft facility, short term loan and import loan. The aggregate amount of available short term working 
capital facilities is Tk. 27,564.65 million (2009 : Tk. 19,603.45 million) of which non funded limit is Tk. 22,039 million 
(2009 : Tk. 18,427.80 million) and funded limit is Tk. 13,235.65 million (2009 : Tk. 10,185.65 million). 

  A detail of the total facilities is enumerated below:

(a) Standard Chartered Bank   
  i) L/C facility - Tk. 1,500 million (2009 : Tk. 2,500 million) for GP and Tk. 1,650 million for the group.   
  ii) Overdraft / short term loan facility - Tk. 1,500 million (2009 : Tk. 1380 million).   

(b) Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC   
  i) LC facility - Tk 500 million (2009 : Tk 670 million).   
  ii) Overdraft facility - Tk. 250 million (2009 : Tk. 100 million).   
  iii) Short term loan facility - Tk. 100 million (2009 : Tk. 100 million)  
  iv) Foreign exchange forward arrangement - Tk. 500 million (2009 : Tk. 670 million). 

(c) Citibank, N.A. 
  i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk. 2,800 million (2009 : Tk. 2,800 million).   
  ii) Overdraft/ short term loan facility -Tk. 2,100 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 2,800 million (2009 : Tk. 2,100 million).
  The short term loan and the overdraft limits are interchangeable. Total funded exposure under the short-term loan and 

the overdraft facility, however, may not exceed Tk. 2,100 million (2009 : Tk. 2,100 million) at any point of time. 

(d) The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited   
  i) Sight/usance LC facility -Tk.1,600 million (2009 : Tk 1,600 million).   
  ii) Short term loan facility - Tk. 700 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 1,600 million (2009 : Tk. 700 million).
  iii) Overdraft facility - Tk. 150 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 1,600 million (2009 : Tk.150 million).   
  iv) Foreign exchange line - Tk. 10 million (2009 : Tk.10 million).  
  However, combined funded exposure is limited to Tk. 700 million (2009 : Tk. 700 million) at any point of time. 

(e) Eastern Bank Limited   
  i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk. 2,000 million (2009 : Tk. 1,400 million).   
  ii) Short term loan/LTR  facility - Tk. 1,000 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 2,000 million (2009 : Tk. 600 million).
  iii) Overdraft facility - Tk. 100 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 2,000 million (2009 : Tk. 100 million).   
  iv) Bank guarantee - Tk. 800 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 2,000 million (2009 : Tk.150 million).
  However, combined funded exposure is limited to Tk. 1,000 million at any point of time.

(f) One Bank Limited   
  i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk. 660 million (2009 : Tk. 660 million).   
  ii) LTR/time loan  facility - Tk. 280 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 660 million (2009 : Tk. 280 million).
  iii) Bank guarantee - Tk. 660 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 660 million (2009 : Tk. 660 million).

(g) BRAC Bank Limited   
  i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk. 1,300 million (2009 : Tk.1,300 million).   
  ii) Overdraft/short term loan facility - Tk. 900 million with inner limit of L/C Tk. 1,300 million (2009 : Tk. 900 million).   
  iii) Bank guarantee - Tk. 1,300 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 1,300 million (2009 : Tk. 1,300 million).   
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(h) Dutch-Bangla Bank Limited   
  i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk. 1,600 million (2009 : Tk. 1600 million).   
  ii) Short term loan/LTR/overdraft facility - Tk. 685 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 1,600 million (2009 : Tk. 685 million).

(i)   Woori Bank 
  i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk. 414 million.(2009 : Tk. 412.80 million)   
  ii) Overdraft facility for Tk. 205.65 million. (2009 : Tk. 205.65 million)  

(j)   The City Bank Limited
  i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk. 660 million.(2009 : Tk. 660 million)  
  ii) Overdraft/ short term loan facility - Tk. 420 million. ( 2009 : Tk. 420 million)  
  iii) Bank guarantee facility - Tk. 660 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 660 million (2009 : Tk. 660 million).

(k) Premier Bank Limited 
  i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk. 910 million.(2009 : Tk. 910 million) 
  ii) Overdraft facility - Tk. 390 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 910 million.(2009 : Tk. 390 million)
  iii) Bank guarantee facility - Tk. 910 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 910 million.(2009 : Tk. 910 million)

(l)   Pubali Bank Ltd.
  i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk. 1,000 million (2009: Tk 1,000 million). 
  ii) Overdraft facility - Tk. 1,000 million (2009: Tk 1,000 million).

(m) Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.
  i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk. 890 million (2009 : nil).  
  ii) Overdraft facility - Tk. 650 million (2009 : nil).
  iii) Bank guarantee facility - Tk. 890 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 890 million (2009 : nil) 

(n) Southeast Bank Limited
  i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk. 1,400 million (2009 : nil).   
  ii) Overdraft facility - Tk. 1,400 million (2009 : nil). 
  iii) Bank guarantee facility - Tk. 1,400 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 1,400 million (2009 : nil). 

(o) United Commercial Bank Ltd.  
  i) Sight/usance LC facility -Tk. 2,100 million (2009 : nil). 
  ii) Overdraft/LTR facility - Tk. 900 million with inner limit of LC 2,100 million (2009 : nil).
  iii) Bank guarantee facility - Tk. 2,100 million with inner limit of LC 2,100 million (2009 : nil). 

(p) Bank Alfalah Ltd. 
  i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk. 525 million.(2009 : Tk. 525 million) 
  ii) Cash finance facility - Tk. 225 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 525 million (2009 : Tk. 225 million). 
  iii) Bank guarantee facility - Tk. 300 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 525 million (2009 : Tk. 300 million).

(q) Jamuna Bank Limited 
  i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk. 680 million (2009 : nil). 
  ii) Overdraft facility - Tk. 280 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 680 million (2009 : nil).
  iii) Bank guarantee facility - Tk. 680 million with inner limit of LC Tk. 680 million and Customs guarantee maximum 50 

million (2009 : nil).  
  As per the approval of Board of Directors of GP, the total amount of short term credit facilities from the above banks is 

limited to a maximum outstanding limit of US$ 210 million equivalent. However, financial covenants under the long term 
loans and borrowings required debt equity ratio to be maintained below 2:1 during 2009. Following full repayment of the 
loans and borrowings, the condition does not apply in 2010.  

  Security against short term credit facilities 
  The short term credit facilities are unsecured and backed by standard charge documents as per terms and conditions set 

by respective banks and financial institutions.
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22 Deposit from agents and subscribers

  Security deposit from subscribers (Note 22.1) 402,024,879  402,024,879  405,633,191 
  Security deposit from dealers and agents (Note 22.2) 42,615,000  42,615,000  35,315,000 
   444,639,879  444,639,879  440,948,191

22.1 Security deposit from subscribers
  This represents security money obtained from post paid subscribers against their dues and can be used in full or in part to 

adjust any unpaid portion of such dues. Any unadjusted amount of security deposits is refundable to subscribers on 
termination of customer relationship or on demand.  

22.2 Security deposit from dealers and agents 
  Security deposit from dealers and agents represent security money obtained from channel partners (i.e. dealer, 

distributor, outlet agent). These deposits can be used in full or in part to adjust any amount due  and are refundable at the 
termination of contract.  

23 Finance lease obligation 
  Grameenphone entered into a lease agreement with Bangladesh Railway (BR) in 1997 for the right to use the optical fibre 

network along with its ancillary facilities. The lease was treated as operating lease until the end of 2004. Following an 
amendment to the lease agreement in 2004, it has been reclassified as finance lease and has been treated as such since 
1 January 2005. The lease agreement was further amended on 13 June 2007 with Guaranteed Annual Rental (GAR) being 
revised and lease term being extended up to June 2027.  

  Obligation under finance lease was initially measured at an amount equal to the present value of minimum lease 
payments. The effect of change in lease agreement in 2007 was accounted for as an adjustment of the leased asset and 
obligation by the amount equal to the difference between the present value of revised minimum lease payments and the 
carrying amount of lease obligation at that date. GP's incremental borrowing rate, which was 15% at the inception of the 
lease,  was used to calculate the present value of minimum lease payments, as it was impracticable to determine the 
implicit interest rate at that time.

  Finance lease obligation 5,019,805,838  5,019,805,838  5,019,805,838 
  Less: Current portion (Note 23.1) -    -    -   
   5,019,805,838  5,019,805,838  5,019,805,838

  Finance lease obligation as at 31 December 2010 is payable as follows:

  (i)   Not later than one year 708,162,324  708,162,324  -   
  (ii)  Later than one year but not later than five years 3,133,994,968  3,133,994,968  -   
  (iii) Later than five years 11,692,211,996  6,672,406,158  5,019,805,838 
   15,534,369,288  10,514,563,450  5,019,805,838

  Finance lease obligation as at 31 December 2009 was payable as follows:

  (i)   Not later than one year 680,999,391  680,999,391  -   
  (ii)  Later than one year but not later than five years 3,026,663,961  3,026,663,961  -   
  (iii) Later than five years 12,575,788,757  7,555,982,919  5,019,805,838 
   16,283,452,109  11,263,646,271  5,019,805,838

23.1 Current portion of finance lease obligation   
  Current portion of finance lease obligation represents the principal amount of lease obligation included in the minimum 

lease payments falling due in next 12 month period from the end of the reporting period. Minimum lease payments for 
fibre optic network were revised in June 2007 with an annual escalation clause resulting in higher lease payments in later 
parts of the lease tenure. Such increasing cash flow pattern has led to higher amount of interest expense being 
recognised in the earlier periods and minimum lease payments falling short of the interest amount (until June 2014). 
Accordingly, current portion of finance lease obligation was nil for 2010 and 2009.
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24 Deferred tax liabilities 
  Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been recognised and measured in accordance with the provisions of IAS/BAS 12: 

Income Taxes. Related deferred tax expense/(income) have been disclosed in note 45. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are attributable to the following:

  

  As at 31 December 2010 (Separate)
  Property, plant and equipment (excluding land and  61,251,718,806  29,220,855,793 32,030,863,013

  CWIP and leased assets) (Note 4)   

  Property, plant and equipment under finance 
  lease (Note 4) 5,490,540,520   -  5,490,540,520

  Difference for vehicle (Note 24.1) (117,530,099) -  (117,530,099)

   66,624,729,227  29,220,855,793 37,403,873,434

  Accounts receivable (Note 10) 5,237,659,409  5,426,305,053 (188,645,644)  
Finance lease obligation (Note 23) (5,019,805,838)  - (5,019,805,838)

  Accrued interest on finance lease obligation (Note 32) (144,706,628) - (144,706,628)

  Asset retirement obligations (47,619,576) - (47,619,576)

  Net taxable temporary difference   32,003,095,748

  Applicable tax rate (Note 3.9)   35%

  Deferred tax liabilities   11,201,083,512

  As at 31 December 2010 (Consolidated)
  Deferred tax liability for Grameenphone Ltd.   11,201,083,512

  Deferred tax liability for Grameenphone IT Ltd.   -

      11,201,083,512

  As per the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance 1984 (ITO), any income derived from the business of software development 
and Information Technology Enabled Services (ITES) are subject to tax exemption until 30 June 2011.

  As at 31 December 2009 (Individual)  

  Property, plant and equipment (excluding land and  66,464,688,130  28,340,515,231  38,124,172,899 

  CWIP and leased assets) (Note 4)  

  Property, plant and equipment under finance 
  lease (Note 4) 5,825,063,878  -    5,825,063,878 

  Difference for vehicle (Note 24.1) (143,928,932) -    (143,928,932)

   72,145,823,076  28,340,515,231  43,805,307,845

  Accounts receivable (Note 10) 4,697,066,162  4,784,507,038  (87,440,876)

  Finance lease obligation (Note 23) (5,019,805,838) -    (5,019,805,838)

  Accrued interest on finance lease obligation (Note 32) (55,974,858) -    (55,974,858)

  Asset retirement obligations (53,760,224) -    (53,760,224)

  Net taxable temporary difference   38,588,326,049

  Applicable tax rate (Note 3.9)   35%

  Deferred tax liabilities   13,505,914,117

24.1 Difference for vehicle
  This represents the permanent difference related to sedan cars, not plying for hire, owned by the group. As per the provisions 

of Income Tax Ordinance 1984, depreciation on such cars is allowed only up to certain limit of cost (currently Tk. 2 million per 
car) of such cars for tax purpose. Difference for vehicle represents the amount of cost exceeding such limits.
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  Asset retirement obligations (Note 25.1) 162,876,392  162,876,392  160,033,350 

  Employee benefits - provision for gratuity (Note 25.2) -    -    11,454,139 

   162,876,392  162,876,392  171,487,489

25.1 Asset retirement obligations (ARO)
  Balance as at 1 January 160,033,350  160,033,350  148,358,966 

  Provision made during the year 18,105,501  18,105,501  19,484,384 

   178,138,851  178,138,851  167,843,350 

  Adjustment/payment made during the year (15,262,459) (15,262,459) (7,810,000)

  Balance as at 31 December 162,876,392  162,876,392  160,033,350

  Grameenphone Ltd. recognises asset retirement obligations (ARO) in respect of roof-top base stations and office space 
for any constructive and/or legal obligations for dismantlement, removal or restoration incurred by the company as a 
consequence of installing or constructing the sites. ARO is measured at the present value of expected cash out flows 
required to settle such obligations. Unwinding of the discount is charged as financial expense in the profit or loss.

25.2 Employee benefits - provision for gratuity
  Balance as at 1 January 11,454,139  11,454,139  22,122,040 

  Provisions made during the year 361,074,926  342,551,685  173,465,265 

   372,529,065  354,005,824  195,587,305 

  Transfer to fund during the year (372,529,065) (354,005,824) (184,133,166)

  Balance as at 31 December -    -    11,454,139

26 Accounts payable     

  Liability for capital expenditure 2,246,290,076  2,246,290,076  2,253,928,756

  Payable for expenses:   

   Interconnection charges (Note 26.1) 4,938,280,452  4,938,280,452  5,009,442,013 

   Revenue sharing with content providers 113,692,440  113,692,440  51,675,839 

   International roaming services 63,481,362  63,481,362  39,852,930 

   Training and travel expenses 28,597,152  27,387,721  30,739,546 

   Sales and promotional expenses 96,973,807  96,973,807  41,964,797 

   Consultancy and professional fees  1,172,240,814  1,172,162,721  765,471,809 

   Cost of  SIM card, scratch card, handsets etc. 217,699,901  217,699,901  147,055,638 

   Office and general expenses 617,037,743  597,421,920  897,998,520 

   PCM related expenses 48,764,725  48,764,725  60,643,877 

   Network operations and maintenance 325,732,166  314,169,878  345,587,495 

    7,622,500,562  7,590,034,927  7,390,432,464 

  Payable for others:   

   Tax deducted at source from suppliers 190,429,664  190,429,664  123,690,977 

   VAT deducted at source from suppliers 99,200,250  95,765,284  21,132,551 

   Retention money from suppliers 25,457,240  25,457,240  25,541,438 

    315,087,154  311,652,188  170,364,966 

    10,183,877,792  10,147,977,191  9,814,726,186

26.1 Interconnection charges
  These represent accrued interconnection charges with respect to off-net local calls and international calls. According to 

prevailing BTRC policies, each operator is liable to pay interconnection charges to other operators for outgoing off-net 
calls.     
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27 Payable to government and autonomous bodies
 

 Bangladesh Telecommunication Regulatory Commission (BTRC)
 Frequency and spectrum charges (Note 27.1) 226,000,964 226,000,964 225,255,158
 Revenue sharing (Note 27.2) 1,388,092,365  1,388,092,365  1,118,791,311
  1,614,093,329  1,614,093,329  1,344,046,469

 Supplementary duty on SIM payable to NBR 2,869,736,536 2,869,736,536 2,628,076,000
 Share of sub-lease rent payable to Bangladesh Railway 10,908,544 10,908,544  12,946,399
 Payable for Bills Pay receipt 319,751,841 319,751,841  197,683,678
  4,814,490,250 4,814,490,250 4,182,752,546

27.1 Frequency and spectrum charges
 This relates to charges payable to BTRC for use of frequency and spectrum allocated to the company and roaming line rent.

27.2 Revenue sharing
 As per amendment of the operating licence agreement dated 16 April 2006, Grameenphone has to share 5.5 % of the 

collected rent and call charges with BTRC with effect from 1 July 2005. The scope of collected rent and call charges is 
defined by BTRC through guidelines issued from time to time.

28 Unearned revenue
 This includes mainly the unused portion of scratch cards, flexi load and advance post paid bills received for which services 

have not yet been provided.

29 VAT payable
 This represents VAT amount payable to NBR arising from provision of services by the company that are subject to VAT.

30 Income tax provision
 Balance as at 1 January 12,228,778,445 12,228,778,445 10,077,565,649
 Provision made during the year 12,512,235,175  12,511,509,061 8,657,110,009
  24,741,013,620 24,740,287,506 18,734,675,658
 Paid during the year (including tax deducted at source) (9,002,609,172) (9,002,415,542) (6,505,897,213)
 Balance as at 31 December 15,738,404,448 15,737,871,964 12,228,778,445

31 Accrued interest
 Accrued interest includes Tk. 144,706,628 (2009 : Tk. 55,974,858) representing interest on finance lease obligation.

32 Other liabilities
 Unclaimed dividend (Note 32.1) 36,764,206 36,764,206 -
 Liabilities for share money refund (Note 32.2) 1,499,415 1,499,415 88,517,671
  38,263,621 38,263,621 88,517,671
32.1 Unclaimed dividend
 As at 31 December 2010, the following amount of dividends remained unclaimed by the shareholders. These amounts are 

deposited in dedicated bank account and are payable on demand.

 Interim dividend for 2010 22,577,719 22,577,719 -
 Final dividend for 2009 14,186,487 14,186,487 -
  36,764,206 36,764,206 -
32.2 Liabilities for share money refund
 This represents the amount received against share applications which was in the process of being refunded at the 

reporting date. The amount is deposited into dedicated bank account with Citibank, N.A.

33 Deferred connection revenue
 Balance as at 1 January 541,731,926  541,731,926 474,142,173
 Addition during the year 290,789,714 290,789,714 309,549,358
  832,521,640  832,521,640  783,691,531
 Recognised as revenue during the year (250,617,243) (250,617,243) (241,959,605)
 Balance as at 31 December 581,904,397 581,904,397 541,731,926
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34 Provision for expenses
 

 International roaming services 8,705,560 8,705,560 17,588,572 
Commission and other operational expenses 81,454,862 81,454,862 44,669,906 
Cost of  SIM card, scratch card, handsets etc. 1,302,937,127 1,302,937,127 538,881,153 
Personnel expenses (Note 34.1) 2,046,458,804  1,979,970,377 918,628,342 
Obligation in respect of employee provident fund 26,643,930 26,643,930 24,996,388 
Training and travelling expenses 62,799,455 48,389,507 48,027,244 
Sales and promotional expenses 776,568,213 776,568,213 683,381,530 
Consultancy and professional fees 703,940,472 703,307,972 461,445,444 
Network operations and maintenance 711,382,083 895,141,717 513,171,766 
Capital expenditure 1,953,597,498 1,945,390,245 3,090,889,804 
Office and general expenses (Note 34.2) 749,139,910 745,378,378   728,912,585 
Lease rent to Power Grid Company Of Bangladesh Ltd.  4,788,000  4,788,000 7,757,024

  8,428,415,914 8,518,675,888  7,078,349,758

 Provision for expenses includes balances with other Telenor group entities.

34.1 Personnel expenses
 This includes provision for bonus, earned leave and any unpaid salary at the reporting date.

34.2 Office and general expenses
 Provision for office and general expenses includes provision for vehicle running expenses, stationery, utility, 

communication expenses, share issue costs etc.

35 Revenue
 Traffic revenue

 -Post paid  2,601,806,772 2,601,806,772 2,518,790,257

 -Prepaid  58,804,470,026 58,804,470,026 52,139,114,255

  61,406,276,798 61,406,276,798 54,657,904,512

 Subscription revenue

 -Post paid  632,968,125 632,968,125 550,777,898

 

 Connection revenue

 -Post paid  11,215,442 11,215,442 25,784,885

 -Prepaid  235,311,520  235,311,520 256,873,714

  246,526,962 246,526,962 282,658,599

 Roaming revenue

 -Inbound  211,251,659 211,251,659  174,323,904

 -Outbound  253,026,794  253,026,794 205,247,996

  464,278,453 464,278,453 379,571,900

 Interconnection revenue 

 -Post paid   130,314,299 130,314,299   148,531,536

 -Prepaid  7,292,825,149 7,292,825,149 6,369,308,888

   7,423,139,448 7,423,139,448 6,517,840,424  

 Other operating revenue

 -Customer support revenue  9,939,263 9,939,263 11,204,066

 -SMS and MMS revenue  940,054,489 940,054,489 1,523,743,904

 -Internet and data revenue  1,199,732,065 1,199,732,065 669,949,709

 -VAS and other revenue  (Note 35.1)  876,590,604 876,590,604 73,586,027

  3,026,316,421 3,026,316,421 2,278,483,706
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 Other non- mobile revenue     
-Sale of handset  720,457,284  720,457,284 393,464,596

 -Sale of data card 417,901,222 417,901,222 205,321,468
 -Sale of vehicle tracking systems 4,488,791 4,488,791 -
 -Infrastructure sharing revenue 366,748,338 366,748,338  -
 -Channel fees  4,323,941 4,323,941 27,967,331
 -Broadband internet revenue 291,005 291,005 -
 -Bills pay service 10,781,036 10,781,036 5,576,654
 -IT service maintenance fee (Note 35.2) 8,578,610 - -
  1,533,570,227 1,524,991,617 632,330,049
   74,733,076,434 74,724,497,824 65,299,567,088 
35.1 VAS and other revenue
 Value Added Service (VAS) revenue includes revenue from content sale (e.g. medical services and music download 

services, news service, and other contents), call block service, mobile back-up service etc.

35.2 IT service maintenance fee
 This represents revenue earned by Grameenphone IT Ltd. on account of IT services provided to external customers, both 

foreign and local.

36 Direct cost of network revenue
 Cost of interconnection (Note 36.1)  3,220,716,202 3,220,716,202 4,126,962,061
 Cost of  SIM card, scratch card, handset etc. (Note 36.2) 2,313,553,976 2,313,553,976 1,238,279,122
 International roaming cost (Note 36.3)  218,580,685 218,580,685 192,142,950
 Licence fees and spectrum charges (Note 36.4) 713,715,145 713,715,145 702,148,351
 Revenue sharing with BTRC (Note 36.5)  3,811,231,491 3,811,231,491 3,386,016,902
 Dealers' and agents' commission 4,768,977,779 4,768,977,779 3,600,242,658
 Revenue sharing with content providers and others 18,667,116 18,667,116 10,353,289
  15,065,442,394 15,065,442,394 13,256,145,333
36.1 Cost of interconnection
 This represents the amount payable to the other operators (including interconnection exchange and international 

gateway operators) for outgoing off-net calls (including international calls) made by GP subscribers.
 Rates for interconnection charges are guided by BTRC directives. Cost of interconnection is measured on the basis of 

actual outgoing off-net traffic information.

36.2 Cost of  SIM card, scratch card, handset etc.
 SIM card 1,197,437,835 1,197,437,835 689,306,636
 Scratch card 49,596,375 49,596,375 59,063,460
 Handset, data card and other device 1,066,519,766 1,066,519,766 489,909,026
  2,313,553,976 2,313,553,976 1,238,279,122

36.3 International roaming cost
 This represents the roaming charges payable to the roaming partners for use of roaming partners' network by GP 

subscribers.

36.4 Licence fees and spectrum charges
 This represents operating licence fee and spectrum  charges payable to BTRC as per licence agreement.

36.5 Revenue sharing with BTRC
 As per the operating licence agreement as amended on 16 April 2006, GP has to share 5.5 % of its collected rent and call 

charges with BTRC. The revised revenue sharing percentage is applicable from 1 July 2005.
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37 Network operation and maintenance expenses
 
 

 Rent (Note 37.1) 645,947,505 645,947,505 524,502,150
 Electricity charges (Note 37.2) 1,384,933,652 1,384,933,652 1,236,053,711
 Operation and maintenance - base station 736,012,502 736,012,502 767,990,010
 Operation and maintenance - switch 766,172,089 766,172,089 848,248,070
 Operation and maintenance - optical fibre network 43,678,791 43,678,791 55,095,455
 Network quality maintenance expenses (Note 37.3) 1,813,743,149 2,132,102,091 1,185,365,580
 PCM operation and maintenance (Note 37.4) 10,306,363 10,306,363 27,210,190
 Lease rent for submarine cable 204,887,611 204,887,611 128,960,963
  5,605,681,662 5,924,040,604 4,773,426,129
37.1  Rent 
 Rent includes location rent for base stations, mobile switching centers (switch) and  other locations.
 Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating leases for such locations are payable as follows:

 (i)   Not later than one year 452,829,940  452,829,940 412,655,841
 (ii)  Later than one year but not later than five years 1,970,092,627 1,970,092,627 1,681,406,594
 (iii) Later than five years 3,421,268,732 3,421,268,732 4,014,486,480
  5,844,191,299 5,844,191,299 6,108,548,915

37.2 Electricity charges
 These represent electricity charges for base stations, mobile switching centres (switch), other transmission equipment etc. 

This also includes such expenses incurred in connection with maintenance of fibre optic network at selected offices of 
Bangladesh Railway.

37.3 Network quality maintenance expenses
 Network quality maintenance expenses include consultancy charges and other operation and maintenance fees incurred 

for telecom network.

37.4 PCM operation and maintenance
 PCM operation and maintenance expenses include rental and maintenance charges for PCM and microwave link.

38 Depreciation and amortisation
 Cost of network operation:
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14,736,928,488 14,736,911,684 14,481,369,413
 Amortisation of Pulse Code Modulation (PCM) 10,455,865 10,455,865 6,993,101
 Amortisation of software and others 255,672,434 255,672,434 231,071,787
 Amortisation of telecom licence - spectrum 328,888,888 328,888,888 328,888,888
  595,017,187 595,017,187 566,953,776
  15,331,945,675 15,331,928,871 15,048,323,189

 Operating expenses:
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 836,507,111 836,507,111 1,099,739,855
 Amortisation of software and others 625,119,267 625,119,267 578,924,700
  1,461,626,378 1,461,626,378 1,678,664,555
  16,793,572,053 16,793,555,249 16,726,987,744

39 Other income, net
 Rental income from sublease of optical fibre network 51,555,822 51,555,822 44,703,178
 Sublease cost  (4,170,800) (4,170,800) (6,587,085)
  47,385,022 47,385,022 38,116,093
 Rental income from GPIT - 14,897,927 -
 Franchisee fees and others 13,031,171 13,031,171 5,142,325
  60,416,193 75,314,120 43,258,418
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40 General and administrative expenses

 Personnel expenses  6,357,733,483 6,271,935,440 4,490,186,510
 Employee training and ancillary expenses 45,956,956 45,956,956 94,112,772
 Rent (Note 40.1) 396,214,903 382,578,015 359,508,815
 Office maintenance and running expenses 718,505,421  712,498,019 662,754,374
 Travelling expenses 158,099,188 137,276,620 123,279,655
 Vehicle running expenses 423,339,553 412,930,925 360,568,165
 Telephone and communication  71,612,442 68,214,866 105,010,719
 Printing, postage and stationery 100,990,936 92,612,077 175,655,177
 Legal and professional fees (Note 40.2) 60,818,647 29,512,505 91,795,510
 Statutory audit fee 2,325,000 1,800,000 1,500,000
 Meeting expenses (Note 40.3) 45,978,161 45,969,951 33,538,907
 Entertainment expenses 15,716,391 15,716,391 22,121,711
 Revenue collection charges 18,836,311 18,836,311 22,400,616
 Bad debt expense (Note 40.4) 218,206,842 218,206,842 50,655,003
  8,634,334,234 8,454,044,918 6,593,087,934

40.1 Rent
 Rent includes rent for office, warehouse, Grameenphone Center (GPC), Grameephone Service Desk (GPSD), 

Grameenphone Distribution Center (GPDC), info-center and guest houses.

 Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating leases for such locations are payable as follows:

 (i)   Not later than one year 251,781,202 248,035,702  351,585,254
 (ii)  Later than one year but not later than five years 656,510,119 656,510,119 576,246,007
 (iii) Later than five years 428,937,973 428,937,973 402,080,704
  1,337,229,294 1,333,483,794 1,329,911,965

40.2 Legal and professional fees

 Legal and professional fees include fees for legal advice and other professional services received time to time from 
lawyers, auditors and other professionals.

 During 2010, Tk 2,344,784 (2009: Tk 2,552,848 ) was paid to auditors for professional services in connection with 
issuance of certificate for repatriation of fees and dividends, review of interim financial statements etc.

40.3 Meeting expenses
 These include expense for board meetings amounting to Tk. 3,299,672 (2009 : Tk. 2,708,011), and other meetings 

including AGM Tk 42,669,029 (2009 : Tk 30,829,606)

40.4 Bad debt expense
 Provision made during the year 251,991,051 251,991,051 91,628,074 

Recovery of bad debt during the year (33,784,209) (33,784,209) 40,973,071) 
Bad debt expense 218,206,842 218,206,842 50,655,003  
  

 Provision for doubtful debts has been made as per policy of the group mentioned in Note 3.6.

41 Selling and distribution expenses
 Sales, marketing and representation costs (Note 41.1) 7,318,184,187 7,318,184,187 2,551,190,055
 Advertisements 734,460,277 727,903,290 626,666,038
 Business development and promotional expenses 434,589,357 434,589,357 297,112,986
  8,487,233,821 8,480,676,834 3,474,969,079

41.1 Sales, marketing and representation costs
 This primarily represents subsidies provided by GP in connection with acquiring new subscribers.
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42 Finance income / (expense), net
 

 Interest on long term loans (4,463,240) (4,463,240) (91,537,425) 
Interest on bonds - - (623,097,222) 
Interest and service charge on short term loans (2,581,366) (2,581,366)  (208,126,084) 
Finance charge - lease (768,429,911)  (768,429,911)  (841,496,904) 
Interest on ARO (16,181,507)  (16,181,507)  (15,901,954) 
Other finance charges (63,912,059)  (63,700,492)  (119,841,732)

  (855,568,083)  (855,356,516)  (1,900,001,321)
 Finance income 1,449,041,193  1,447,104,889  212,807,472
  593,473,110 591,748,373  (1,687,193,849)

43 Foreign exchange gain/(loss)
 Realised gain/ (loss) 91,384,591  91,384,591 70,202,213
 Unrealised gain/ (loss) 8,578,949   8,578,949 (303,445,851)
  99,963,540  99,963,540  (233,243,638)

44 Gain/ (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

 Disposal proceeds 59,884,296  59,884,296  28,612,438
 Carrying amount of the assets disposed off (47,793,231)  (47,793,231)  (38,380,825)
  12,091,065  12,091,065 (9,768,387)

45 Income tax expenses
 Current tax expense (Note 3.9) 12,512,235,175  12,511,509,061  8,657,110,009
 Deferred tax income (Note 45.1) (2,304,830,605)  (2,304,830,605)  (5,029,312,320)
  10,207,404,570  10,206,678,456  3,627,797,689

45.1 Deferred tax income
 Deferred tax has been recognised to account for the tax consequence of transactions and other events recognised in the 

financial statements. Deferred tax expenses arise mainly due to difference in the carrying amount of the assets that will 
result in taxable amount in determining taxable profit or loss of future periods when the carrying amount of the asset 
would be recovered or settled. 

 Applicable tax rate for GP was reduced to 35% from 45% as a result of being listed with the stock exchanges, as per the 
provisions of Finance Act 2009. Such change in tax rate resulted in a significant reduction in deferred tax provisions made 
in earlier years. This adjustment together with deferred tax impact of regular transactions in 2009 resulted in a deferred 
tax income of Tk 5,029,312,320 for that year.

46 Earnings per share (EPS)
 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 10,705,351,442  10,579,176,469  14,968,166,256
 Weighted average  number of ordinary shares
 outstanding during the year (Note 46.1)  1,350,300,022 1,350,300,022 1,239,238,201
 Basic earnings per share (Note 3.16) 7.93  7.83  12.08

46.1 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
 The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year is the number of ordinary shares 

outstanding at the beginning of the year, adjusted by the number of ordinary shares issued during the year multiplied by 
a time-weighting factor.  The time-weighting factor is the number of days that the shares are outstanding as a proportion 
of the total number of days in the year.

 
 Outstanding shares as at 1 January* 1,350,300,022  1,350,300,022 1,215,174,797

 Effect of issue of additional shares during the year  - - 24,063,404

  1,350,300,022  1,350,300,022   1,239,238,201 

 esrever 01:1 gniredisnoc ,rebmun tnelaviuqe erahs 01 kT ot detrevnoc neeb sah 9002 yraunaJ 1 no serahs gnidnatstuO*  
split (conversion of shares of Tk. 1 each into shares of Tk. 10 each) in 2009. 
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46.2 Dilution of earnings per share
 No diluted earnings per share is required to be calculated for the years presented as there was no scope for dilution during 

these years.
47 Cash receipts from performance of services/sales
 

 Proceeds from mobile service revenue 65,689,380,364  65,689,380,364  58,140,345,116 
 Proceeds from interconnection revenue  7,051,649,445  7,051,649,445  5,719,392,909 
 Proceeds from roaming  revenue  455,455,866  455,455,866  395,087,196 
 Proceeds from sale of handset, data card etc. 1,142,847,297  1,142,847,297  598,786,064 
 Proceeds from other sales 307,157,447  307,157,447  72,313,184 
  74,646,490,419  74,646,490,419  64,925,924,469
48 Payment to suppliers, contractors and others
 Payments for interconnection cost 3,282,201,408  3,282,201,408  3,283,691,636 

Payments for roaming cost 203,835,265 203,835,265  225,982,709 
Payments for fibre optic network 244,919,831  244,919,831  212,874,431 
Payments for material cost 2,363,700,312 2,363,700,312  781,655,058 
Payment of VAT and other public duties 6,370,816,460  6,340,799,835  2,038,093,690 
Payments for other operating expenses 16,521,331,472  16,931,121,596  15,290,132,358   
 28,986,804,748 29,366,578,247  21,832,429,882

49 Financial risk management
 The management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the group's risk management 

framework.  The group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the group, to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies, 
procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the group's activities. This 
note presents information about the group's exposure to each of the above risks, the group's objectives, policies and 
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the group's management of capital. The company has exposure to the 
following risks from its use of financial instruments.     
 Credit risk     
 Liquidity risk     
 Market risk   

49.1 Credit risk
 Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 

contractual obligations, and arises principally from the group's receivables from subscribers, interconnect operators, 
roaming partners, dealers and IT service customers.

 Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

 In monitoring credit risk, debtors are grouped according to their risk profile, i.e. their legal status, financial condition, 
ageing profile etc. Accounts receivable are mainly related to the group's subscribers/customers, interconnect operators 
and roaming partners for provision of services, while other receivables represent receivable for accrued interest and 
receivables arising from external parties other than for services. The group's exposure to credit risk on accounts 
receivables is mainly influenced by the individual payment characteristics of post paid subscribers and interconnect 
operators. Interconnection receivables are normally realised within 3 months from when they are invoiced. The group 
employs financial clearing house to minimise credit risk involving collection of roaming receivables.

 The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of 
financial position.

a)   Exposure to credit risk
 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at 

the reporting date was:     
Accounts receivable, net     
Receivables for mobile service-interconnection 4,877,394,453  4,877,394,453  4,505,904,450 
Receivables for mobile service-post paid and others* 180,435,548  180,435,548  162,048,506 
Receivables for infrastructure sharing 153,522,463  153,522,463  -  
Receivables for sub lease of fibre optic network 22,995,771  22,995,771  24,685,230 
Others receivable for non-mobile service** 13,597,537  3,311,174  4,427,976  
 5,247,945,772  5,237,659,409  4,697,066,162  
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Exposure to credit risk (Contd..) 

 Other receivables     
Other receivables- other than Telenor entities 745,552,347  1,048,050,175  641,484,802   
Receivable from other Telenor entities 182,467,922  182,467,922  120,838,513   
 928,020,269  1,230,518,097  762,323,315   
Long-term deposits 12,594,949  12,594,949  11,635,675 

 Deposit for bank guarantee 127,957,944  127,957,944  127,957,944   
Security deposits for utilities and services 60,483,786  60,483,786   54,897,307   
Short term investment 2,753,729,110  2,753,729,110  500,000,000   
Cash at bank 18,927,765,069  18,671,232,085  14,093,890,895   
 28,058,496,899   28,094,175,380  20,247,771,298

 * includes Tk 6,143,380 ( 2009: Tk 8,334,058) representing receivable from Telenor entities    
** includes Tk. 2,297,658 representing receivables from Telenor entities for the group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for accounts receivable as at 31 December by geographic regions was:

 Domestic 5,156,379,116 5,148,390,405  4,600,666,221 
 Asia 46,331,342 46,331,342 52,863,858 
 Europe 37,142,575 34,844,923 40,183,831 
 Australia 1,271,770 1,271,770 1,451,549 
 Americas 5,695,687 5,695,687 1,235,340 
 Africa 1,125,282 1,125,282 665,363 
  5,247,945,772 5,237,659,409  4,697,066,162 
 b) Ageing of receivables
i) The ageing of gross interconnection receivables as at 31 December was:
 Invoiced 0-30 days 1,434,087,416 1,434,087,416 1,154,155,997
 Invoiced 31-60 days 558,026,984 558,026,984 480,585,352
 Invoiced 61-90 days 260,484,947 260,484,947 371,626,754
 Invoiced 91-180 days 495,165,272 495,165,272 761,317,694
 Invoiced 181-365 days 598,856,982 598,856,982 1,112,196,985
 Invoiced over 365 days 1,749,222,710 1,749,222,710 654,380,415
  5,095,844,311 5,095,844,311 4,534,263,197

ii) The ageing of gross receivable for post paid and others as at 31 December was:
 Invoiced 0-30 days 121,714,993 121,714,993 176,370,711
 Invoiced 31-60 days 34,177,510 34,177,510 7,015,024
 Invoiced 61-90 days 17,635,416 17,635,416 8,758,673
 Invoiced 91-180 days 31,063,246  31,063,246 50,122,986
 Invoiced over 180 days 30,388,984 30,388,984 29,558,628
  234,980,149 234,980,149 271,826,022

iii) The ageing of gross receivables for infrastructure sharing as at 31 December was:
 Invoiced 0-60 days 153,522,463 153,522,463 -
 Invoiced over 60 days - -  -
  153,522,463 153,522,463 -

iv) The ageing of gross receivables for sub lease of fibre optic network as at 31 December was:
 Invoiced 0-60 days 13,507,647 13,507,647 2,961,221
 Invoiced 61-90 days 3,234,482 3,234,482 2,429,595
 Invoiced 91-180 days 4,816,507 4,816,507 1,715,340
 Invoiced 181-365 days 4,507,074 4,507,074 11,218,664
 Invoiced over 365 days 4,285,400 4,285,400 13,584,968
  30,351,110 30,351,110 31,909,788
c) Impairment losses
 Impairment losses on the above receivables were recognised as per the group policy mentioned in note 3.6. Quantitative 

disclosure for such impairment losses are disclosed in Note 10.1 to Note 10.6 of these financial statements. 
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2010
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Consolidated
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Taka

Separate

2009
Taka

Individual

ii) Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis for foreign currency expenditures
 A change of 10 basis points in foreign currencies would have increased/ (decreased) equity and profit or loss of the group 

by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates remain constant.

Profit or loss     Equity   

 10 bp increase 10 bp decrease 10 bp increase  10 bp decrease

 2010 (Consolidated) Taka Taka Taka  Taka

Expenditures denominated in USD (14,556,090)  14,556,090   (14,556,090) 14,556,090

Expenditures denominated in NOK (824,712,297)  824,712,297  (824,712,297) 824,712,297

Expenditures denominated in GBP (5,936,499)  5,936,499  (5,936,499) 5,936,499

Expenditures denominated in EURO (171,129,498)  171,129,498  (171,129,498) 171,129,498

Expenditures denominated in JPY (189,673,264)  189,673,264  (189,673,264) 189,673,264

Exchange rate sensitivity (1,206,007,648) 1,206,007,648  (1,206,007,648) 1,206,007,648

2009 (Individual)
Expenditures denominated in USD (10,158,259)  10,158,259  (10,158,259) 10,158,259

Expenditures denominated in NOK (9,173,395)  9,173,395  (9,173,395) 9,173,395

Expenditures denominated in GBP (10,059)  10,059  (10,059) 10,059

Expenditures denominated in EURO (443,336)  443,336  (443,336) 443,336

Expenditures denominated in JPY (6,655,351)  6,655,351  (6,655,351) 6,655,351

Exchange rate sensitivity (26,440,400)  26,440,400  (26,440,400) 26,440,400

b)   Interest rate risk 
    Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowings. Most foreign currency loans of the 

group were subject to floating rates of interest. Local syndicated loans are, however, not significantly affected by 
fluctuations in interest rates. The group has not entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest 
rate risk as at the reporting date.         

          

i)      Profile 

 As at 31 December, the interest rate profile of the group's interest bearing financial instruments was:

     Carrying amount    

      

 Fixed rate instruments     

 Financial assets         
 Long term deposits 12,594,949 12,594,949 11,635,675
 Short term investment  2,753,729,110 2,753,729,110 500,000,000
 Cash at bank 18,927,765,069 18,671,232,085 14,093,890,895
Financial liabilities      

Finance lease obligation 5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838
 Accrued interest 155,699,144 155,699,144 66,356,035
       
 Floating rate instruments      
 Financial assets - - -
Financial liabilities       
 Foreign currency denominated loans -  - 479,898,835
 Local syndicated loans - - 1,376,893,993

     
ii) Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
 A change of 10 basis points in interest rates for loans and borrowings would have increased/ (decreased) equity and 

profit or loss of the group by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular 
foreign exchange rates remain constant.
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Profit or loss 

10 bp increase 10 bp decrease 10 bp increase 10 bp decrease

Equity

Taka Taka Taka Taka

Profit or loss 

10 bp increase 10 bp decrease 10 bp increase 10 bp decrease

Equity

Taka Taka Taka Taka

2010 (Consolidated) 

Carrying amount Carrying amountFair value Fair value

2009 (Individual)

Taka Taka Taka Taka

 

 2010 (Consolidated)
 Foreign currency denominated loans (251,631)  251,631  (251,631) 251,631 

 Local syndicated loans (630,716)  630,716  (630,716) 630,716 

 Cash flow sensitivity (net) (882,347)  882,347  (882,347) 882,347

 2009 (Individual)

 Foreign currency denominated loans (1,145,653)  1,145,653  (1,145,653) 1,145,653 
 Local syndicated loans (1,627,448)  1,627,448  (1,627,448) 1,627,448 
 Cash flow sensitivity (net) (2,773,101)  2,773,101  (2,773,101) 2,773,101

 

 Cash flow sensitivity for foreign currency rates and variable interest rates for the separate financial statements does not 
vary significantly from above.

c) Accounting classification and fair values
 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities together with carrying amount shown in the statement of financial position are 

as follows:

 Assets carried at fair value     
 through profit or loss -   -    -    -

 

 Held to maturity assets    
Long term deposits 12,594,949  12,594,949 11,635,675 11,635,675

 Short term investment 2,753,729,110  2,753,729,110 500,000,000 500,000,000

 Loans and receivables   

 Accounts receivable, net 5,247,945,772  5,247,945,772 4,697,066,162 4,697,066,162

 Cash and cash equivalents 18,931,502,552  18,931,502,552 14,101,313,087 14,101,313,087

 Other receivables 928,020,269  928,020,269 762,323,315 762,323,315

  Available for sale financial assets    
Deposit for bank guarantee  127,957,944  127,957,944 127,957,944 127,957,944

  Security deposits  60,483,786  60,483,786 54,897,307 54,897,307

 Liabilities carried at fair value    
through profit or loss -  -   -  -

 Liabilities carried at amortised costs    
 Loans and borrowings -  -    1,954,867,198 1,954,867,198 

 Finance lease obligation 5,019,805,838  5,019,805,838  5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838 

 Accounts payable 10,147,977,191 N/A* 9,814,726,186 N/A*

 Payable to government and     
 autonomous bodies 1,944,753,714 N/A* 1,554,676,546 N/A*

 VAT payable 2,451,869,531 N/A* 2,234,779,133 N/A*

 Accrued interest 155,699,144 N/A* 66,356,035 N/A*

 Other liabilities 38,263,621 N/A* 88,517,671 N/A*
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2010
Taka

Consolidated

2010
Taka

Separate

2009
Taka

Individual

2010
Taka

Consolidated

2010
Taka

Separate

2009
Taka

Individual

 Interest rates used for determining fair value

 The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable were as follows:

 

 
 Loans and borrowings N/A N/A 7.8%-16%
 Finance lease obligation 15.00% 15.00% 15.00%
 
 *  Determination of fair value is not required as per the requirements of IFRS/BFRS 7 : Financial Instruments: Disclosures 

(ref: Para 29). However, fair value of such instruments is not likely to be significantly different from the carrying amounts 
of such instruments.

50 Capital management
 Capital management refers to implementing policies and measures to maintain sufficient capital, assessing group's 

internal capital adequacy to ensure group's operation as a going concern. Board of Directors are charged with the 
ultimate responsibility for maintaining a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence 
and to sustain future development of the business. All major investment and operational decisions with exposure to 
certain amount are evaluated and approved by the board. The Board of Directors also monitors the return on capital, 
which the group defines as result from operating activities divided by total shareholders’ equity. The Board of Directors 
also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

51 Related party disclosures

 During the year ended 31 December 2010, group entered into a number of transactions with related parties in the normal 
course of business. The names of the related parties, nature of these transactions and amount thereof have been set out 
below in accordance with the provisions of IAS/BAS 24: Related Party Disclosures.

51.1 Related party transactions

              Name of related parties Nature Nature of transactions

 Telenor Mobile  Shareholder Dividend payment  7,157,373,378  7,157,373,378 979,430,020
 Communications AS
 Nye Telenor Mobile  -do- -do-  2,043  2,043 280
 Communications II AS 
 Nye Telenor Mobile  -do- -do-  2,043 2,043 280
 Communications III AS 
 Telenor Asia Pte. Ltd. -do- -do-  2,043 2,043 280
 Grameen Telecom -do- Revenue  134,126,628 134,126,628  1,272,082,901
     Commission expense  121,883,391 121,883,391 109,466,803
     Dividend payment  4,386,780,886 4,386,780,886 600,296,320
 Grameen Kalyan -do- Dividend payment  209 209 28
 Grameen Shakti -do- Dividend payment  209 209 28
 Grameenphone IT Ltd. Subsidiary IT service maintenance   - 633,428,614 - 

    charge  
 Telenor ASA Telenor  Sharing of Microsoft license fee  -  - 113,814,025
   group entity  fee   
     Consultancy service fee  622,971,462  622,971,462 485,920,827
 Telenor Consult AS -do- Consultancy and professional   643,459,582 643,459,582 440,128,305
     service fee 
 Telenor Key Partner AS   Consultancy service fee  1,698,750  1,698,750 1,023,312
 Telenor Bedrift    Service fee  20,537,449 20,537,449  (12,979,514)
 Digi Telecommunication -do- Roaming revenue  1,251,786  1,251,786 1,231,645
     Roaming expenses  3,119,827 3,119,827 2,108,688
 Kyivstar GSM - Ukraine -do- Roaming revenue  154,199 154,199  194,152
     Roaming expenses  20,857 20,857 28,201
 Telenor d.o.o (YUGMT) -do- Roaming revenue  61,112 61,112 42,370 

   Roaming expenses  348,926  348,926  14,103
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2010
Taka

Consolidated

2010
Taka

Separate

2009
Taka

Individual              Name of related parties Nature Nature of transactions

  Pannon - GSM -do- Roaming revenue  51,837 51,837 108,391
    Roaming expenses  103,674 103,674 293,892
 Sonofone -do- Roaming revenue  1,272,695 1,272,695 798,048
    Roaming expenses  483,108 483,108 781,145
 Telenor Mobil AS -do- Roaming revenue  3,752,207 3,752,207 2,290,439
    Roaming expenses  1,116,690 1,116,690 899,641
 Telenor Pakistan -do- Roaming revenue  180,957 180,957 326,588
    Roaming expenses  265,219 265,219 280,188 

TAC (Total Access  Telenor  Roaming revenue  1,403,520 1,403,520  1,375,583
  Communication) group entity
    Roaming expenses  9,800,618 9,800,618 9,225,352
 Telenor Sverige  -do- Roaming revenue  1,037,783 1,037,783 626,342
 (Europolitan AB)  
    Roaming expenses  252,155 252,155 467,582
 ProMonte GSM, Serbia and   -do- Roaming revenue  11,859 11,859 29,828
 Montenegro YUGPM  Roaming expenses  88 88 10,914
 Sonofon DNKT2 -do- Roaming revenue  644 644 1,390
 Unitech Wireless -do- Roaming revenue  920,790 920,790 -
    Roaming expenses  99,781  99,781 -
   

51.2 Receivables/(payables) with related parties
 
  Grameen Telecom Shareholder Accounts receivable  10,970,099 10,970,099 7,053,800 
    Accounts payable  (11,591,510)  (11,591,510)  (8,802,872)
 Telenor Asia Pte. Ltd. Shareholder Accounts payable  -  -  (6,893,690)
 Grameenphone IT Ltd. Subsidiary Receivable for IT equipment  - 168,631,962 -
   -do- Receivable for rent, office  - 136,141,336 - 

   running expense, 
    maintenance and others
  
   -do- Advance for NERM  - 161,032,225 -
   -do- Payable for IT service  - (210,935,580) -
 Telenor ASA Telenor  Accounts payable  (1,208,232,989) (1,208,232,989) (1,032,526,483)
   group entity Accounts receivable  1,905,281 1,905,281 2,200,470
 Telenor Consult AS -do- Accounts payable  (462,764,109)  (462,764,109) (752,281,449)
    Accounts receivable  172,227,093 172,227,093 113,000,502
 Telenor International Center -do- Accounts receivable  6,037,058 6,037,058 5,482,914
 Telenor Key Partner AS -do- Accounts payable  (2,557,560)  (2,557,560) (881,330)
 Telenor Bedrift  -do- Accounts payable  (20,704,411)  (20,704,411) (11,681,679)
 Digi Telecommunication -do- Accounts payable   (380,525) (380,525)  (446,891)
     Accounts receivable   269,047 269,047 217,421
 Kyivstar GSM - Ukraine -do- Accounts payable   (2,034)  (2,034)  - 
     Accounts receivable   10,974 10,974 38,702
 Telenor d.o.o (YUGMT) -do- Accounts receivable   34,340 34,340 12,859
 Pannon - GSM -do- Accounts payable   (19,809) (19,809)  (58,082)
     Accounts receivable   28,622 28,622 8,537
 Sonofone -do- Accounts payable   (15,122) (15,122) (231,495)
     Accounts receivable   156,497 156,497 118,319
 Telenor Mobil AS -do-  Accounts payable   (103,349) (103,349) (104,316)
     Accounts receivable   682,881 682,881 473,027
 Telenor Pakistan -do-  Accounts payable   (12,582) (12,582) (41,317)
     Accounts receivable   201,655 201,655 272,340
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2010
Taka

Consolidated

2010
Taka

Separate

2009
Taka

Individual              Name of related parties Nature Nature of transactions

  TAC (Total Access  -do-  Accounts payable   (967,388) (967,388)  (1,885,517)
 Communication)  
    Accounts receivable   282,324  282,324  155,863 
 Telenor Sverige  -do-  Accounts payable   (17,537) (17,537) (62,697)
  (Europolitan AB)  
    Accounts receivable   2,350,643  2,350,643  135,754
  ProMonte GSM, Serbia and  Telenor  Accounts payable   (87)  (87)  - 

 Montenegro YUGPM   group entity
     Accounts receivable   1,706  1,706  2,063
 Sonofon DNKT2 -do- Accounts receivable  584  584  -
 Unitech Wireless -do- Accounts payable  (232,721)  (232,721)  - 

  Accounts receivable  895,668  895,668  -
 Telenor Broadcast Holding -do- Accounts receivable  2,297,658   - -
    Holding AS

51.3 Key management personnel compensation

 Short term employee benefits (salary and other allowances) 1,191,881,187 1,075,167,947 1,355,738,804
 Post employment benefits (provident fund, gratuity etc.) 90,090,555 82,029,590 68,138,604
 Termination benefits   30,139,977 30,139,977 30,139,977
 Other long term benefits    11,408,688  11,408,688 6,173,578
      1,323,520,407  1,198,746,202  1,460,190,963

 Key management personnel includes employees of the rank of Deputy General Manager (DGM), DGM equivalent and 
above.

52 Expenses/expenditure and revenue in foreign currency during the year

 CIF value of imports
 SIM card and scratch card    268,734,995  268,734,995  156,392,060
 Telecommunication equipment  4,795,853,024  4,795,853,024  7,073,204,082
 NERM software    96,164,211  - -
        

Expenditure in foreign currency
 Consultancy fee   1,029,465,734  1,029,465,734  613,392,162
 Consultancy fee - expatriate  613,259,692  613,259,692  387,714,112
 Other fee (travel and training)  33,184,341  33,184,341  87,036,972
 Technical know how    379,757,774  379,757,774  498,603,368
 International roaming cost     218,580,685  218,580,685  192,142,950
 Software (NERM) implementation support  21,243,620  - -
        

Foreign earnings    
  Revenue from roaming partners  209,779,078  209,779,078  169,208,003
  IT service revenue    2,297,652 - -

53 Capital commitments

 Capital commitments represent the orders placed for  purchase of network equipment and other services, mainly from 
Huawei and Ericsson, and outstanding letters of credit. Total amount of such commitment as at 31 December stood at-

 
 Purchase orders   3,982,891,459  3,918,377,435  3,214,712,265
 Outstanding letters of credit   1,100,184,088  1,100,184,088  639,445,111

54 Contingent liabilities

54.1 Bank guarantee provided in favour of different parties

 As at 31 December 2010, GP had outstanding  bank guarantee amounting to Tk. 305,931,947 (2009: Tk 215,130,547) on 
account of import of SIM card, scratch card, capital machinery and other services.
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54.2 Contingent liabilities for lawsuits
 There are few litigations against the group. Management, in consultation with lawyers, has reviewed the merits of those 

lawsuits to assess the potential impact those may have on the financial position and financial performance of the group. 
Based on such assessment, management is of the opinion that the likelihood of losing those lawsuits is remote and 
therefore no provision has been taken in these financial statements.

55 Other disclosures

55.1 Number of employees
 As at 31 December 2010, number of regular employees receiving remuneration of Tk. 36,000 or above per annum was 

3,930  for GP (2009: 4,226), and 4,286 for the group.

55.2 Comparatives
 Comparative information in the following major areas has been rearranged wherever considered necessary to conform to 

the current year’s presentation.

 i) Other receivables
 Other receivables are presented separately (see note 11) from 'Advances, deposits and prepayments' to better reflect the 

nature of such balances.

 ii) Short term investment
 Tk. 500,000,000 representing investment in FDR was presented separately and excluded from cash and cash equivalents 

(see note 14).

 iii) Payable to government and autonomous bodies
 Interconnection charges, revenue sharing with content providers and PCM related expenses, which were included under 

the head 'Payable to government and autonomous bodies and other operators' were reclassified and presented under 
"Accounts payable" (see note 26) to achieve better presentation. The name of the account head 'Payable to government 
and autonomous bodies and other operators' was revised accordingly.

 iv) Foreign exchange gain/(loss)
 Foreign exchange gain/(loss) has been presented separately on the face of the statement of comprehensive income. In 

2009, this was presented under 'Finance income/(expense), net' with detail presented in the notes to the financial 
statements.

55.3 Interim dividend
 GP paid an interim dividend @ Tk 3.50 per share of Tk 10 each aggregating to Tk 4,726,050,077 which was approved by 

the Board of Directors at its 106th meeting held on 22 October 2010.

55.4 Events after the reporting period
 The Board of Directors of GP, at its 109th meeting held on 6 February 2011, proposed Tk 8.50 per share, amounting to a 

total of Tk 11,477,550,187 as final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010, which represents 85% of the paid up 
capital. Total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010 including the interim dividend (see note 55.3) thus comes to 
Tk 16,203,600,264, which is 120% of paid up capital. These dividends are subject to final approval by the shareholders at 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the company.
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Grameenphone IT Ltd.
Directors’ Report
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Dear Shareholders,
On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management, I welcome you all to the 1st Annual General Meeting of GPIT. We are very 
delighted to place herewith the Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended December 31, 2010 for your consideration, approval and adoption.

Socio Economic Perspective
The global economy bounced back steadily in the year 2010. Bangladesh has witnessed firm growth in GDP during  2009- 2010 
fiscal year with a growth rate of 5.8%. In many countries domestic IT consumption is about 5% of the total GDP. In comparison, 
IT adoption is significantly smaller in Bangladesh. However, IT industry is also one of the prospective sectors, where Bangladesh 
has the best potentials to export skilled professionals and earn significant foreign revenue.

Regulatory Environment and Road Map
With the vision for a Digital Bangladesh, the Government shows keen interest in the development of Information and 
Communication Technologies (ICT) sector in Bangladesh. Besides policymaking and awareness development, the Government 
has also initiated implementation of the ICT policy by enacting the ICT Act 2009, setting up of the Controller of Certifying 
Authorities etc, with a view to making the sector more regulated, committed and vibrant. 

However, it is still felt that due to lack of proper infrastructure and connected facilities, the Information Technology (IT) industry 
in Bangladesh is facing various challenges . For example, the tax exemption as offered at present by the Government to the IT 
industry with regard to Information Technology Enabled Services (ITES) will be expiring in 2011, which, if not extended, will 
significantly impede the pace and prospects of development of the industry. Further, although the existing definition of ITES 
includes a number of IT services, it does not cover various types of other IT services. As an incentive to the industry, the definition 
needs to be updated to include more comprehensive IT services.

It is felt that a combined approach is required to promote the industry and to address the challenges that the industry is facing 
both at the domestic and international level. Policies, regulations and Government incentives, that specifically address the 
needs of the IT industry, are to be developed and adopted to allow the sector grow into a profitable and globally recognized 
industry. From another perspective, extensive measures should be taken and resources should be made available to ensure 
sufficient knowledge and training to members of the society, who would help further to promote the industry both at the 
domestic and international levels.

Our Products & Services
GPIT can offer its clients complete end-to-end solutions for all their IT needs.

Solutions:

• Applications Development
• System Integration
• IT Consultancy
• Support & Maintenance
• Business Process Outsourcing

• Mobile Solutions 
• Enterprise Solutions
• Communication Solutions
• Network Solutions
• Infrastructure Solutions

Services:

• ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning)
• CRM (Customer Relationship Management)
• Core Banking
• Business Intelligence and Data Warehouse
• Call Center Solutions
• DR & Data Center

Products:
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Our Employees
With a steady growth in  employment, GPIT has at present 391 employees with world class experience. GPIT has the highest IT 
certifications in the country and many have  international work experience. The Company is looking to cultivate an open  “one 
team” culture with our employees who, apart from routine commitments, are also engaged in sports, health and other 
extramural activities. The company strives to inculcate social consciousness  of workplace ethics and sustainability principles. 
In the coming years, we will be working closely  to build a competent & high performing team.

Investment Risks & Concerns
Although GPIT has huge potentials and opportunities ahead, there are some risks concerns and uncertainties as well, which 
may challenge the pace of growth. Key concerns and uncertainties are as below: 

• Lack of proper policy support from the Government,
• No separate regulatory body to regulate ICT industry,
• Making payments to suppliers outside the country,
• Inadequate  Copyright protection law,
• Shortage of capable  technical resource,
• Connectivity infrastructure,

However, the Government aspires in building a Digital Bangladesh which may address  these risks. GPIT  is committed  to assist 
Bangladesh Government and all its agencies in building a Digital Bangladesh.

Contribution to the National Exchequer
GPIT made significant contributions to the National Exchequer last year. The collective contribution to the National Exchequer 
up to December 2010 was BDT 104 million (BTD 10.4 crore).

Enhanced Value of Shareholders’ Investment
The Directors take pleasure in reporting the financial results of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2010 and 
recommended the appropriation as mentioned in the “Appropriation of Profit” table below:

2010

Profit available for appropriation  

Profit/(loss) after tax             126,175,141

Total amount available for appropriation             126,175,141
Appropriation  

Proposed Dividend for the year 2010 Nil

Retained Earnings             126,175,141

Dividend
Being a new Company, GPIT completed its first financial year successfully. In view of the performance of the Company and 
considering the current cash position, investments plan for the year 2011 and future expansion of the business, the Directors are 
not recommending any dividends to the shareholders for the year 2010.

Board of Directors & Board Meetings
The composition of the Board of Directors who held office during the year is as below:

1. Mr. Oddvar Hesjedal
2. Mr. Raihan Shamsi
3. Mr. Arild Kaale
4. Mr. Frode Stoldal  
5. Mr. Arnfinn Groven
6. Mr. Kazi Monirul Kabir

In addition,  Mr. Tanveer Mohammad was also appointed Director mid-term  at the 8th Board meeting on 17th August, 2010 as 
per provision of the Articles of Association of the Company. 

During 2010, a total of 13 (thirteen) Board meetings were held, which met the regulatory requirement in this respect. 
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Directors’ appointment & Re-appointment
With regard to the appointment, retirement and re-appointment of Directors, the Company is governed by its Articles of 
Association, the Companies Act, 1994 and other related legislations. Accordingly, the following Directors of the Board will retire 
at the Annual General Meeting. They are, however, eligible for re-appointment:

1. Mr. Oddvar Hesjedal
2. Mr. Kazi Monirul Kabir
3. Mr. Frode Stoldal  
4. Mr. Tanveer Mohammad

Appointment of Chief Executive Officer
The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Peter Anthony Dindial as the new Chief Executive Officer (CEO) with effect from 
February 20, 2011. At this occasion, the Board would like to put on record its highest esteem and appreciation for the valuable 
services rendered by Mr. Kazi Islam as the CEO and also for his solid contribution in establishing GPIT. The Board also 
congratulates the incoming CEO Mr. Peter Anthony Dindial and wishes him success in developing GPIT’s position as the leading 
Bangladeshi IT company.

Appointment of Auditors
As per Articles of Association, the statutory auditors of the Company, Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered Accountants, a member 
firm of KPMG, shall retire in this AGM. The Firm, being eligible, has expressed their willingness to be re-appointed. The Board 
recommends their re-appointment for the year 2011 and to continue till the next AGM at a fee of BDT 5,25,000 (Five lacs twenty 
five thousand) plus VAT.

Looking ahead 2011 and beyond
The business of the Company combines both technology and services .We recognize a number of significant challenges ahead 
as mentioned earlier.  In our preparedness to be successful in the coming years, we are working hard with the right people and 
right products to ensure foolproof strategy so as to execute our plans effectively and even more efficiently and thereby taking 
the Company to further heights.

Acknowledgements
Members of the Board take this opportunity to express their gratitude and sincere thanks to the Shareholders for their 
continued support and guidance. 

We are also grateful to Government of Bangladesh, Bangladesh Association of Software & Information Services (BASIS), 
Bangladesh Computer Samity (BCS), Dhaka Chamber of Commerce & Industry (DCCI), Bangladesh Telecommunication 
Regulatory Commission (BTRC), National Board of Revenue, Bangladesh Bank, Board of Investment (BOI), Registrar of Joint 
Stock Companies and Firms (RJSC), our bankers, vendors and other business partners for their strong support and active 
cooperation that the Company has received from them  during the year.

The Board also records its appreciation for the employees at all levels for their dedicated services, sincerity, hard working and 
strong commitment which enabled the Company to rapidly advance on what we fervently perceive to be a sustainable growth 
path.

Thanking you all and with best regards.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Grameenphone IT Ltd.

Oddvar Hesjedal
Chairman
Grameenphone IT Ltd.

January 31, 2011
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Auditors’ Report
to the shareholders of
Grameenphone IT Ltd.

Introduction
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Grameenphone IT Ltd., which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2010 and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows for the period from 28 January to 31 December 2010, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory notes.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 1994, and other applicable laws and regulations. This 
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and 
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 
 
Auditors' responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal 
control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements, prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), give a 
true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2010 and of the results of its operations and cash flows 
for the period from 28 January to 31 December 2010 and comply with the Companies Act 1994, and other applicable laws and 
regulations.

We also report that:
 eht rof yrassecen erew feileb dna egdelwonk ruo fo tseb eht ot hcihw snoitanalpxe dna noitamrofni eht lla deniatbo evah ew )a

purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

 ruo morf deraeppa ti sa raf os ynapmoc eht yb tpek neeb evah wal yb deriuqer sa tnuocca fo skoob reporp ,noinipo ruo ni )b
examination of these books; and

 tlaed )tnuocca ssol dna tiforp( emocni evisneherpmoc fo tnemetats dna )teehs ecnalab( noitisop laicnanif fo tnemetats eht )c
with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns.

Auditors
Rahman Rahman Huq
Dhaka,  January 31, 2011

Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered Accountants
9 Mohakhali C/A (11th & 12th Floors)
Dhaka 1212, Bangladesh.

Telephone  +880 (2) 988 6450-2
Fax             +880 (2) 988 6449
Email           kpmg-rrh@citech-bd.com
Internet     www.rahman-rahman-huq.com
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Assets  

Non current assets:
 Property, plant and equipment, net 4 176,822,402

Current assets:
 Inventories 5 103,488,179
 Accounts receivable 6 221,221,943
 Advances, deposits and prepayments 7 34,076,775
 Advance VAT 8 30,016,625
 Other receivables 9 1,890,705
 Cash and cash equivalents 10 256,572,726
   647,266,953
Total assets  824,089,355

Equity and liabilities

Shareholders' equity:
 Share capital 11 75,000,000
 Retained earnings  126,175,141
   201,175,141

Non-current liabilities  -

Current liabilities:
 Advance from customer 12 161,032,225
 Payable for operating expenses 13 121,923,559
 Payable for capital expenditure 14 176,839,206
 Provision for expenses 15 158,052,956
 Income tax provision 16 532,484
 Other current liabilities 17 4,533,784
   622,914,214
Total equity and liabilities  824,089,355

Grameenphone IT Ltd.
Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2010

Taka

The annexed notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

Dhaka, January 31, 2011 Auditors

Notes
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  Notes 

Revenue 18 642,007,224
Cost of service rendered 19 (315,086,476)
Gross profit  326,920,748 
Operating expenses:
 General and administrative expenses 20 (187,873,262)
   (187,873,262)
Operating profit  139,047,486
Finance income, net 21 1,724,737
Preliminary expenses 22 (13,870,968)
Profit before tax  126,901,255
Income tax expense 3.8 (726,114)
Profit after tax  126,175,141
Other comprehensive income  -
Total comprehensive income for the period  126,175,141

Grameenphone IT Ltd.
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the period from 28 January to 31 December 2010

Taka

The annexed notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary

As per our report of same date.

Dhaka, January 31, 2011 Auditors



Grameenphone IT Ltd.
Statement of Changes in Equity
for the period from 28 January to 31 December 2010

   

Cash flows from operating activities
 Cash received from customers  611,038,596
 Payment to suppliers and others  (170,368,140)
 Payment to employees  (260,628,837)
 Finance income received  1,936,304
 Finance expense paid  (211,567)
 Payment of income tax  (193,630)
Net cash flows from operating activities  181,572,726

Cash flows from investing activities  -

Cash flows from financing activities
 Proceeds from issuance of shares  75,000,000
Net cash flows from financing activities  75,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December  256,572,726 

Share
capital

Taka

Retained 
earnings

Taka

Total
Taka

Issue of shares 75,000,000 - 75,000,000
Net profit for the period - 126,175,141   126,175,141 
Other comprehensive income - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2010 75,000,000 126,175,141 201,175,141

Grameenphone IT Ltd.
Statement of Cash Flows
for the period from 28 January to 31 December 2010

Taka



1. Reporting entity
 Grameenphone IT Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as "GPIT/the company") is a private limited company incorporated in 

Bangladesh under the Companies Act 1994 with an authorised share capital of Tk 7,500,000,000 divided into 
75,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk 100 each. The company was registered on 28 January 2010.  The company is a wholly 
owned subsidiary  of Grameenphone Ltd. ("Grameenphone"/"GP"). Registered office of the company is GPHouse, 
Bashundhara, Baridhara, Dhaka-1229, Bangladesh.

 The company launched its commercial operation on 01 April 2010.

 The objective of this company is to provide IT services to Grameenphone Ltd. and other external parties.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), 

the Companies Act 1994 and other applicable laws in Bangladesh.

 These financial statements have been authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 January 2011.

2.2 Basis of measurement
 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost convention following accrual basis of 

accounting except for Statement of Cash Flows.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk/BDT) which is both functional currency and 
presentation currency of the company. The figures of financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest Taka.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments
 The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that 

affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised 
in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting 
policies that have significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements are described in the following 
notes:

 Note 15 Provision for expenses
 Notes 16 & 3.8 Income taxes
 Note 18 Revenue

2.5 Comparative information
 Comparative information has not been presented since the company was incorporated in 2010.

2.6 Reporting period
 These financial statements cover the period from 28 January 2010 to 31 December 2010.

3. Significant accounting policies
 Accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing these financial statements.

3.1 Property, plant and equipment
(a) Recognition and measurement
 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-refundable 
taxes, after deducting trade discount and rebates, and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the intended manner. Purchased software that is integral to 
the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

Grameenphone IT Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements
as at 31 December and for the period from 28 January to 31 December 2010
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 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate 
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

(b) Subsequent costs
 The cost of replacing or upgrading part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount 

of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the company and its cost 
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day to day servicing 
of the property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

(c) Depreciation
 No depreciation is charged on capital work in progress. 

 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each 
item of property, plant and equipment. For addition to property, plant and equipment, depreciation is charged from the 
date of capitalisation up to the month immediately preceding the month of disposal. Depreciation method, useful lives 
and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date. The estimated useful lives for the current period is as follows: 

   Useful life
 Computer and other IT equipment  4 years

 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the disposal proceeds with the carrying amounts and are 
recognised net.

(d) Capital work-in-progress
 Capital work in progress consists of acquisition costs of  plant, machinery, capital components of other equipment and 

related installation costs incurred until the date placed in service. In case of purchase of components, capital work in 
progress is recognised when risks and rewards associated with such assets are transferred to the company.

3.2 Financial instruments

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.

3.2.1 Financial assets
 Financial assets of the company include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables.

 The company initially recognises receivables on the date they are originated.  All other financial assets are recognised 
initially on the date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the transaction. The company 
derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.

(a) Accounts receivable
 Accounts receivable represents the amounts due from its customers for IT related services, and includes both billed and 

unbilled portion of such services at the reporting date. Accounts receivable is stated net of any impairment loss, if 
applicable.

(b) Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand and balances with various banks. Bank overdrafts that are 

repayable on demand, form an integral part of the company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and 
cash equivalents.

3.2.2 Financial liability
 Financial liabilities are recognised initially on the transaction date at which the company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the liability. The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are 
discharged or cancelled or expire.

 Financial liabilities include payable for expenses, liability for capital expenditure and other current liabilities.

3.3 Impairment

(a) Financial assets
 Accounts receivable and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 

objective evidence of impairment. Financial assets are impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future 
cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include 
default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, etc.
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(b) Non-financial assets
 An asset is impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The company assesses at each reporting 

date whether there is any indication that an asset or a Cash Generating Unit (CGU) may be impaired.  If any such indication 
exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or CGU. The recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU 
is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable 
amount by recognising an impairment loss if, and only if, the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying 
amount. Impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any 
impairment loss of a revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease.

3.4 Preliminary expenses
 Preliminary expenses include expenses incurred in connection with the formation of the company. All preliminary 

expenses have been expensed as incurred following the requirement of BAS  38: Intangible Assets.

3.5 Revenue
 Revenues are measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discount and VAT. Revenues are 

reported gross with separate recording of expenses to vendors of products or services. Revenues of Grameenphone IT Ltd. 
arise from:

 (a) Sale of software
 (b) IT service revenue

(a) Sale of software
 Revenue from the sale of software is recognised when significant risks and rewards associated with the software is 

transferred and the entity retains neither significant managerial involvement nor effective control over the software. The 
other criteria for revenue recognition, i.e. availability of reliable measure for revenue and associated costs and probable 
flow of economic benefits to the entity must also be met.

 Accordingly, revenue is only recognised when the software is shipped and the relevant installation is complete.

(b) IT service revenue
 Revenue from IT service is recognised on a percentage of completion basis. Percentage of completion of service is 

determined upon periodic review and usually evidenced by work completion certificate. Revenue is recognised only when 
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity.

3.6 Foreign currency transactions
 Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the books at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the 

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Bangladesh taka at the rate of 
exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign currency exchange differences arising on foreign currency 
denominated liabilities incurred for acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets have to be 
capitalised and included in the carrying amount of asset as per the provisions of section 185, Part-I, Schedule XI of the 
Companies Act, 1994 while BAS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates requires recognising such 
differences in the profit or loss. However, the above conflict did not have any effect on these financial statements of the 
company as the company did not have any such foreign currency transaction.

3.7 Inventories
 Cost of inventories include expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories,  and other costs incurred in bringing them to 

their existing location and condition. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business  less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

 Generally, the costs of inventories includes cost for the personnel directly engaged in providing the service, including 
supervisory personnel, other direct costs and attributable overheads.

3.8 Income tax expense
 Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items 

recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

 As per the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance 1984 (ITO), IT enabled services are subject to tax exemption until 30 June 
2011. However, income from sources other than IT enabled services are taxable as per Income Tax Ordinance 1984. 
Applicable income tax for such other income is 37.5%. as per Finance Act 2010.

3.9 Employee benefits
 The company maintains both defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent employees.
 
(a)  Defined contribution plan (provident fund)
 The company contributes 10% of basic salary of all eligible employees to a provident fund (defined contribution plan)
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  constituted under an irrevocable trust, while the employees also contribute an equal amount to the fund as per the rules 
of the trust deed.

 The company recognises contribution to defined contribution plan as an expense when an employee has rendered 
services in exchange for such contribution. The legal and constructive obligation is limited to the amount it agrees to 
contribute to the fund.

(b) Defined benefit plan (gratuity)
 The company provides retirement benefit in the form of gratuity payments determined by reference to employees' 

earnings and years of service to each eligible employees at the time of retirement/separation. Gratuity obligation at the 
reporting date is measured on the basis of best estimate of the company from prior experience in its parent company.

(c) Short-term employee benefits
 Short-term employee benefits include salary, bonuses, leave encashment. Obligations for such benefits are measured on 

an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

3.10 Provisions
 A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the company has a legal or constructive obligation as 

a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily measured at the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the date of statement of financial position. Where the effect of 
time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to 
be required to settle the obligation.

3.11 Events after the reporting period
 Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the company's position at the date of 

statement of financial position or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are reflected in the 
financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when 
material.    
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5 Inventories  

 Software  103,488,179
   103,488,179

 This represents the cost of Network Engineering Resource Management (NERM) software acquired for GP and directly 
attributable personnel costs. GPIT is responsible for installation of the software as per the 'Frame Contract for Supply of NERM 
Software' with GP.

6 Accounts receivable

 IT services to Grameenphone  210,935,580
 IT operation maintenance to Cell Bazaar  6,464,717
 IT services to Brac Bank Limited  1,523,994
 IT services to Telenor Broadcast Holding AS  2,297,652
   221,221,943

 As at 31 December 2010, the above receivable does not include any receivable from:

 (a)  the directors and other officers of the company;

 (b)  firms or private limited companies respectively in which  any director of Grameenphone IT Ltd. is a partner, director or    
member.

         The entire amount of the above receivable is considered good. However, no security was received against the amount.

7 Advances, deposits and prepayments

 Advances
 Advance to employees (Note 7.1)  9,048,385
 
 Prepayments
 Group insurance premium  3,631,615
 NERM software implementation support (Note 7.2)  21,243,620
 Other prepayments  153,155
   34,076,775

7.1 Advance to employees

 Advance to employees represents advances made to employees for foreign travel, training, meeting, workshop, presentation etc 
including advances of Tk 545,883 made to directors (employee directors) of the company in connection with business travel and 
training. No advances were made to the shareholder directors during the period.

7.2 NERM software implementation support

 This represents the amount paid in advance to Oracle Corporation Singapore Pte. Ltd. as fees for implementation support 
services.

8 Advance VAT

 This includes debit balance of VAT current account, and VAT deducted at source (which can be reclaimed as input VAT) by 
customers from the company's bills against which VAT deduction certificate and/or VAT challan are yet to be received.

9 Other receivables 

 Other receivables include receivable for reimbursable expenses from Telenor Star II AS, receivable from employee benefit funds 
etc.

10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash in hand  39,742
 Cash at bank:
      Standard Chartered Bank  246,381,467
      Dutch-Bangla Bank Limited  1,956,784
      The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited  8,194,733
    256,532,984
   256,572,726

Taka
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11 Share capital   

 Authorised:
 75,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 100 each  7,500,000,000
   7,500,000,000

 Issued, subscribed and paid-up:
 750,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 100 each  75,000,000
   75,000,000
As at 31 December 2010, shareholding position of the company was as follows:

    
 Name of shareholders   
 Grameenphone Ltd.  749,999 99.9999% 74,999,900
 Mr. Raihan Shamsi 1 0.0001% 100
  750,000 100% 75,000,000

12 Advance from customer

 This represents the amount received by the company from Grameenphone as advance against delivery and implementation of 
NERM software.

13 Payable for operating expenses

 Payable to Grameenphone (Note 13.1)  88,209,424
 Payable to others:
 Service maintenance fees  11,168,780
 Office rent  1,248,500
 Office running expenses  18,700,373
 Employee travel and training expenses  1,373,688
 Other operating expenses  1,222,794
   121,923,559
13.1 Payable to Grameenphone

 This represents the amount payable to Grameenphone on account of preliminary expenses (Tk. 13,870,968), rent for head office 
at  GPHOUSE (Tk. 17,132,616), office running and other operating expenses (Tk. 57,205,840) paid by GP on behalf of GPIT.

 14 Payable for capital expenditure

 Payable to Grameenphone (Note 14.1)  168,631,962
 Payable to others  8,207,244 
   176,839,206
14.1 Payable to Grameenphone

 This represents the cost of computer and other IT equipment transferred from GP to GPIT. The purchase process was facilitated by 
GP in terms of execution of the transaction (including arrangement with vendors, inspection etc.).

15 Provision for expenses

 Short term employee benefits (Note 15.1)  66,190,077
 IT service maintenance charge (Note 15.2)  75,107,867
 Training and travel expenses  14,409,948
 Audit fee  525,000
 Other operational expenses (Note 15.3)  1,820,064
   158,052,956
15.1 Short term employee benefits

 This represents provision for employee salary, bonus and leave encashment outstanding at the reporting  date.

15.2 IT service maintenance charge

 This represents mainly provision for IT maintenance service, software support service and other IT related service received by the 
company during 2010. The amount includes Tk 47,931,921 representing proportionate cost of IT and other related services for 
which payments to vendors were made by GP.

15.3 Other operational expenses

Provision for other operational expenses includes provision for professional fees, office running expenses, etc.

Taka

No. of shares
Percentage
of holding

Amount
Taka
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16 Income tax provision  

 Opening balance  -
 Provision made during the period  726,114
   726,114
 Less: Advance income tax paid  (193,630)
 Closing balance  532,484

17 Other current liabilities

 Other current liabilities include payables to Telenor, tax deducted at source from employees, and tax and VAT deducted at source 
from suppliers etc.

18 Revenue

 IT service revenue from:

      Grameenphone (Note 18.1)  633,428,614
      Cell Bazaar (Note 18.2)  4,955,746
      Local customers  1,325,212
      Telenor Broadcast Holding AS  2,297,652
   642,007,224

18.1 IT service revenue from Grameenphone

 This represents the amount of service charge earned against IT services provided to Grameenphone. These services include 
maintenance of IT equipment, maintenance of billing, financial and other software, IT project implementation, supervision and 
other related services.

18.2 IT service revenue from Cell Bazaar

 This represents the amount of service charge earned against IT services provided in connection with operations of Cell Bazaar.

19 Cost of service rendered

 Personnel expenses (Note 19.1)  231,972,486
 Service maintenance fees  83,097,186
 Depreciation on computer and other IT equipment  16,804
   315,086,476

19.1 Personnel expenses

 Personnel expenses include cost of employee benefits attributable to employees directly involved in providing IT services to the 
customers.

 Personnel expenses incurred during the 2010 were allocated to cost of service rendered and general and administrative 
expenses in the following manner:

 Cost of service rendered  231,972,486
 General and administrative expenses  85,798,043
   317,770,529

20 General and administrative expenses

 Personnel expenses (Note 19.1)  85,798,043
 Legal and consultancy fees  17,443,384
 Statutory audit fee  525,000
 Office rent (Note 20.1)  28,534,815
 Utility and maintenance  5,447,082
 Vehicle running expenses  10,408,628
 Office stationery  8,378,859
 Postage, freight and communications  3,397,576
 Travel and training expenses  20,822,568
 Advertisement, subscription and others   6,556,987
 Entertainment expenses  560,320
   187,873,262
20.1 Office rent

 This includes office rent of Tk. 17,132,616 payable to GP for its Corporate Head Office at GPHouse.

Taka
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21 Finance income, net   

 Finance income  1,936,304
 Finance expense  (211,567)
   1,724,737

 Finance income represents interest earned on bank deposits, while finance expense represents mainly LC related charges.

22 Preliminary expenses

 Legal and professional charges  4,276,065
 Consultancy fees  9,586,693
 Meeting expenses  8,210
   13,870,968

 These amounts represent pre-incorporation expense incurred in connection with formation of the company.

23 Financial risk management

 The company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company's risk management 
framework. Risk management policies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions 
and the company's activities. The company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.

  Credit risk
  Liquidity risk
  Market risk

23.1 Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the company's receivables.

 Management  has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. As at 31 December 
2010, substantial part of the receivables are those from its parent company Grameenphone and other Telenor entities and 
subject to insignificant credit risk. Risk exposures from other financial assets, i.e. Cash at bank and other external receivables are 
also nominal.

(a) Exposure to credit risk

 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 
December 2010 was:

 Accounts receivable
 IT services to Grameenphone  210,935,580
 IT operation maintenance to Cell Bazaar  6,464,717
 IT services to Brac Bank Limited  1,523,994
 IT services to Telenor Broadcast Holding AS  2,297,652
   221,221,943
 Other receivables  1,890,705
 Cash at bank  256,532,984
   479,645,632

 Being a balance with the government authority, advance VAT does not contribute to credit risk.

 The maximum exposure to credit risk for accounts receivable as at 31 December 2010 by geographic region was:

 Domestic  218,924,291
 Foreign  2,297,652
   221,221,943

(b) Ageing of receivables

 The ageing of gross accounts receivable at 31 December 2010 was as follows:

 Invoiced 0-90 days  212,459,574
 Invoiced 90-180 days  -
 Invoiced over 180 days  -
   212,459,574

Taka
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 The above ageing schedule considers only the part of the accounts receivable for which invoices were raised on or before 31 
December 2010.

23.2 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The company's approach 
to managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet 
its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to 
the company's reputation. Typically, the company ensures that it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected 
operational expenses, including financial obligations through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line 
of payment of the financial obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within 
due date.

 In extreme stressed conditions, the company may get support from the parent company in the form of short term financing.

 The carrying amount of financial liabilities represents the maximum exposure to liquidity risk. The maximum exposure to liquidity 
risk at 31 December 2010 was:

  Carrying amount Maturity period
  Taka Months
 Payable for operating expenses 121,923,559 Six months or less
 Payable for capital expenditure 176,839,206 -do-
 Other current liabilities 4,533,784 -do-
  303,296,549

23.3 Market risk

 Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the company's 
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

(a) Currency risk

 The company is exposed to currency risk on certain revenues and purchases such as IT service revenue from foreign customers 
and import of IT equipment, software and software support services.  Majority of the company's foreign currency transactions are 
denominated in USD and  relates to procurement of software and software support service from abroad. As at 31 December 2010, 
only exposure to currency risk arises from receivable for IT services provided to Telenor Broadcast Holding AS amounting to Tk. 
2,297,652.

 Exchange rate for USD as at 31 December 2010 was Tk 71.40.

 Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis:

 An increase/(decrease) of 10 basis points in exchange rate for USD in 2010 would have increased/ (decreased) equity and profit 
or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates remain constant.

  10 bp increase 10 bp decrease
  Taka Taka
 Profit or loss during the period (115,123) 115,123
 Equity (115,123) 115,123

(b) Interest rate risk

 The only interest bearing financial instrument for the company is the special notice deposit (SND) account maintained by the 
company with its banks. Historically, interest rates for such instruments show little fluctuation. Interest rate risk for the company 
is therefore insignificant.

24 Information relating to available bank facilities

 As at 31 December 2010, GPIT had Tk.150 million non-funded credit facilities (LC facilities) with Standard Chartered Bank. No 
funded facility was availed by the company from any bank or other financial institution during 2010.
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25 Related party disclosures

 During the period, the company entered into a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of business. The 
names of the related parties and nature of these transactions have been set out below in accordance with the provisions of 

 IAS 24: Related Party Disclosures.

 Related party transactions during the period

 Name of related parties
 and nature of relationship Nature of transaction Amount Taka

 Grameenphone Ltd. Share capital 74,999,900
 (parent company) Revenue from IT service 633,428,614
  Receipt against IT service (net of VAT) 450,006,371
  Advance received against NERM project 161,032,225
  Office rent 17,132,616

 Telenor Broadcast Holding AS Revenue from IT service 2,297,652
 (Telenor group entity)

 Telenor Star II AS Cell Bazaar revenue sharing 665,746
 (Telenor group entity)

 Receivable from/(payable to) related parties

 Name of related parties
 and nature of relationship Nature of transaction Amount Taka

 Grameenphone Ltd. Receivable for IT services 210,935,580
 (parent company) Payable for operating expenses (88,209,424)
  Advance received against NERM project (161,032,225)
  Payable for capital expenditure (168,631,962)
  Office rent payable (17,132,616)

 Telenor Broadcast Holding AS Receivable for IT service 2,297,652
 (Telenor group entity)

 Telenor Star II AS Payable for Cell Bazaar operations (665,746)
 (Telenor group entity)

25.1 Key management personnel compensation Taka

 Short-term employee benefits (salary and other allowances) 116,713,240
 Post employment benefits (provident fund, gratuity etc.) 8,060,965
   124,774,205

 Key management personnel includes employees of the rank of Deputy General Manager (DGM), DGM equivalent and above.

26 Expenses/expenditures and revenue in foreign currency during 2010

 Expenditure in foreign currency during the 2010:

 CIF value of imports (NERM Software)  96,164,211
 Software (NERM) implementation support  21,243,620
 IT service revenue  2,297,652

27 Capital commitments

 As at 31 December 2010, Grameenphone IT Ltd had a capital commitment of Tk. 64,514,024 for purchase of IT equipment, 
installation of such equipment and other implementation services.

28 Other Disclosures

28.1 Number of employees

 As at 31 December 2010, number of regular employees receiving remuneration of Tk. 36,000 or above per annum was 356.

28.2 Events after the reporting period
 There have been no significant events after the reporting period that might require adjustment or disclosure in these financial 

statements.



With a significant contribution to the GDP, and standing as one of the highest taxpayers to the government and with the recognition as 

an organization with one of the largest number of employees, Grameenphone is moving our economy forward. Tax money builds 

schools, colleges, hospitals and roads that directly add value to our everyday lives. Each new employment gives birth to new possibilities 

and opportunities. And most importantly, a growing GDP bears the stamp of a nation’s improving infrastructure.

wRwWwc-‡Z D‡j-L‡hvM¨ Ae`vb †i‡L, m‡ev©”P Ki w`‡q Avi †`‡ki Ab¨Zg kxl© PvKzwi`vZv cÖwZôvb n‡q MÖvgxY‡dvb GwM‡q wb‡”Q evsjv‡`‡ki 

A_©bxwZ‡K| K‡ii UvKv‡ZB M‡o I‡V ¯‹zj, K‡jR, nvmcvZvj I iv¯—v-NvU, hv mivmwi Ae`vb iv‡L Avgv‡`i ˆ`bw›`b Rxe‡b| bZzb 

Kg©ms¯’vb m„wó K‡i bZzb my‡hvM I m¤¢vebv| Avi m‡ev©cwi GKwU †`‡ki wRwWwc enb K‡i †m‡`‡ki A_©‰bwZK AMÖMwZi ¯^v¶i|
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1. General
 Authorized Capital : BDT 40,000,000,000
 Issued and Fully Paid-up Capital : BDT 13,503,000,220  
 Class of Shares : Ordinary Shares of BDT 10.00 each
 Voting Rights : One vote per Ordinary Share

2. Listing on Stock Exchanges

 The Ordinary Shares of the Company are listed on the Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. Company trading code 
is [GP].

3. Distribution Schedule of the Shares as on December 31, 2010 

 Range of Shareholdings  egatnecreP         serahS fo rebmuN latoT      sredloherahS fo rebmuN

 001 to 500 81,024 17,945,880  1.33%

 501 to 5,000 17,159 24,439,298 1.81%

 5,001 to 10,000 1,089 7,853,255 0.58%

 10,001 to 20,000 527 7,481,613 0.55%

 20,001 to 30,000 121 2,917,988 0.22%

 30,001 to 40,000 73 2,565,305 0.19%

 40,001 to 50,000 46 2,091,771 0.15%

 50,001 to 100,000 85 6,156,150 0.46%

 100,001 to 1,000,000 90 23,516,430 1.74%

 1,000,001 to 1,000,000,000 12 1,255,332,332 92.97%

 Total   100,226 1,350,300,022 100.00%

4. Dividend

 For the Year Dividend Rate                Dividend Per       Par Value       Dividend
                  Share (BDT)       Per Share (BDT)       Type

 2010 85% (Proposed Final Cash Dividend)       8.50       10.00       Cash

  35% (Interim Cash Dividend) 3.50       10.00       Cash  

 2009  60%                 6.00       10.00       Cash

 2008 13%                0.13       1.00       Cash

 In 2008* 400%                -       -       Bonus Share

 2007 62%                26.66       43.00       Cash

 2006 60%                25.80       43.00       Cash

Useful  Information for  Shareholders

* In 2008, we capitalized a portion of our retained earnings through the issuance of bonus shares. The issuance was approved by our shareholders at the 
   Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of shareholders on July 15, 2009 and subsequently by the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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5. GP Share Performance at Stock Exchanges
I.   Monthly Open, Close, High and Low share price and volume of the Company’s Shares traded at Dhaka Stock Exchange 

     Ltd. (DSE) during the year 2010 are -

Note:
a.   The highest share price of Grameenphone Ltd. at Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE) was BDT 395.0 in February 2010 and the 
      lowest share price was BDT 187.0 in January 2010.

II.   Monthly Open, Close, High and Low share price and volume of the Company’s Shares traded at Chittagong Stock 

       Exchange Ltd. (CSE) during the year 2010 are -

Note:
a.   The highest share price of Grameenphone Ltd. at Chittagong Stock Exchange  Ltd. (CSE) was BDT 396.5 in February 2010 and the
       lowest share price was BDT 188.7 in January 2010.

Month Open High Low  Close  Total Volume 
(BDT)  (BDT)   (BDT)   (BDT)  

January 187.0 288.0 187.0 266.9 61,938,600

February 265.2 395.0 265.2 355.3 48,939,800

March 355.0 369.0 304.1 362.2 39,544,400

April 363.0 375.0 321.0 324.7 25,941,600

May 325.0 326.0 264.5 276.4 20,026,000

June 276.6 284.5 233.5 235.7 12,282,800

July 231.5 264.0 221.5 258.4 9,139,800

August 260.0 278.0 252.0 255.5 11,935,400

September 258.9 263.0 236.5 239.4 6,768,800

October 238.1 269.0 225.0 231.9 14,990,600

November 231.1 250.0 209.7 234.7 16,512,200

December 235.0 292.0 211.3 245.8 26,527,800

Total Shares traded during the year 294,547,800

Month Open High Low  Close  Total Volume 
(BDT)  (BDT)   (BDT)   (BDT)  

January 188.6 292.0 188.7 266.7 9,682,800

February 265.0 396.5 265.0 355.2 7,987,400

March 355.2 368.9 305.0 361.3 4,139,600

April 361.3 374.0 322.3 325.1 2,625,600

May 325.1 321.0 263.0 277.3 2,370,600

June 277.3 284.8 234.0 236.3 1,393,800

July 236.3 264.0 224.0 257.7 1,309,000

August 257.7 279.0 250.2 255.3 2,065,200

September 255.3 265.0 236.0 237.1 794,800

October 237.1 267.0 224.4 226.2 1,641,400

November 226.2 250.0 210.0 235.0 1,854,000

December 235.0 294.0 210.0 246.3 6,045,400

Total Shares traded during the year 41,909,600
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III.   Quarterly high-low price of the Company’s share for the year 2010:

IV.   Year-wise GP Share Price Trend:

V.   GP Share Price and Transaction Volume in DSE in 2010:

6. Subsidiary Company

 Name of the Company  Holding  Nature of Business

 Grameenphone IT Ltd.  100%  Information Technology (IT) 
 (The Grameenphone IT Ltd. was incorporated on January 28, 2010)

7. Credit Rating

 The Company’s credit rating was reaffirmed by Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Ltd. (CRAB) on January 10,2011.

  Long Term Short Term

  AAA ST-1

8. Company Website
 Anyone can get information regarding Company’s activities, products & services or can view Annual Report 2010 at 

www.grameenphone.com

9. Investor Relations
 Institutional investors, securities analysts and other members of the professional financial community requiring additional 

financial information can visit the Investor Relations section of the Company website: www.grameenphone.com

10. Shareholder Support
 If you have any query relating to your shareholding, please contact at 01711555888 or mail to GP Share Office at 

shareoffice@grameenphone.com

DSE CSE

High Low High Low 
(BDT) (BDT) (BDT) (BDT)

During Quarter Ended

31-Mar-10 395.0 187.0 396.5 188.7

30-Jun-10 375.0 233.5 374.0 322.3

30-Sep-10 278.0 221.5 279.0 224.0

31-Dec-10 292.0 209.7 294.0 210.0

DSE CSE

2010 2009 2010 2009

Highest Price (BDT) 395.0 195.0 396.5 200.0

Lowest Price (BDT) 187.0 152.0 188.7 151.1
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Notes

Disclaimer

This report contains statements regarding the future in connection with Grameenphone’s growth initiatives, profit levels, outlook, 
strategies and objectives. All statements regarding the future are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties, and many factors may lead to 
actual profits and developments deviating substantially from what has been expressed or implied in such statements.



Telecommunications. 
It’s what a successful 
economy is built on.

There’s much more to being a telecommunications 

company than getting people to talk. You have to 

understand their needs, their dreams and their 

passions. By putting people at the centre of 

everything we do, we build bridges between 

partnerships, like-minded individuals and budding 

entrepreneurs. We give businesses the means to 

expand beyond their wildest forecasts, and compete 

beyond their once clearly defined boundaries. We 

help communities create new sources of income and 

opportunities for employment. Which helps the  

country to grow, develop, and prosper. So even 

though telecommunications is our business, helping 

people build economies, is what we do.

†Uwj‡hvMv‡hvMB M‡o †`q 
GKwU mdj A_©bxwZi wfwË

GKwU †Uwj‡hvMv‡hvM †Kv¤úvbxi `vwqZ¡ ïaygvÎ gvbyl‡K 

K_v ejvi my‡hvM K‡i †`qv‡ZB †kl n‡q hvq bv| Zvi 

eyS‡Z nq gvby‡li Pvwn`v, Rvb‡Z nq Zv‡`i ¯̂cœ Avi 

m¤¢vebv¸‡jv‡K| †mRb¨B Avgiv GKw`‡K †hgb m¤ú‡K©i 

†mZzeÜb M‡o Zzwj Askx`vi, D‡`¨v³v Avi mggbv 

gvbyl‡`i mv‡_, †Zgwb Avgv‡`i cÖwZwU D‡`¨vM Avi 

D”PvKv•¶vi †K‡› ª̀I ivwL Zv‡`i‡KB| Avi cvi¯úwiK 

m¤ú‡K©i GB mw¤§wjZ c_Pjvq e`‡j hvq A‡bK wKQzB| 

mdjZvi bZzb D”PZvq †cuŠ‡Q hvq D‡`¨v³v‡`i e¨emv, 

mvavib gvbyl‡`i Rb¨ ˆZix nq bZzb Kg©ms ’̄vb Avi †`k 

GwM‡q hvq mg„w× Avi ¯̂wbf©iZvi c‡_| †mRb¨B, GKwU 

†Uwj‡hvMv‡hvM †Kv¤úvbx n‡jI Avgiv Avm‡j hv Kwi Zv 

n‡jv †`‡ki A_©bxwZ‡K mg„× Kiv|



Grameenphone wants to contribute to meet climate challenges and aims to reduce 
the consumption of resources and overall impact on the environment. In an effort to 
minimize paper consumption, we limit the scope of the printed annual report. 
Grameenphone’s website provides extensive information about the Company and its 
current activities: www.grameenphone.com

Rjevqy msKU †gvKvwejvq Ae`vb ivL‡Z Pvq MÖvgxY‡dvb Ges G j‡¶¨ cÖwZôvbwU m¤ú‡`i mxwgZ 
e¨env‡ii gva¨‡g cwi‡e‡ki Dci BwZevPK cÖfve wbwðZ Ki‡Z Pvq| Avi G D‡Ï‡k¨ KvM‡Ri e¨envi 
Kgv‡bvi D‡`¨v‡Mi Ask wnmv‡e Avgiv Qvcv‡bv evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi msL¨v AvBwb cwiwai g‡a¨ mxgve× 
ivLvi wm×vš— MÖnY K‡iwQ| Avgv‡`i I‡qemvBU-G MÖvgxY‡dvb I Gi eZ©gvb Kvh©µg m¤ú‡K© we¯—vwiZ 
Rvbv hv‡et www.grameenphone.com 
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